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CASE No. 1. 

MAVELA BOYA vs. DAKAWULA MANGA. 

B uTTERWORTH: 20th January, 1938. Before H. G. Scott, Esq., 
President, and Messrs. L. ~I. Shepstone and H. F. 
1\Iarsberg , l\Iembers of the N.A.C. 

Z>ractice: Sumeruus postponements-undesirable and against 
interest s of .Justice. 

(Appeal from Nativf' Commissioner's Court, Kentani.) 
(Cas<> No. n6 of 1935.) 

No good r eason has bet•n advanct>d for disturbing tlw 
judgment in this case and the appeal is accordingly dismissed 
with costs. 

It is observed that this case was commenced in May, 1935, 
and "·as not complet ed until the 15th November, 1937, after 
tweh·e postponements had been granted. 

It has frequently been pointed out and this Court wishes 
again to emphasise that it is highly undesirable and against 
the interests of justice that cases should be heard in so many 
instalnwnts. 

CASE No. 2. 

MAGUTYWA SONYABASH E vs. MBINA MAQUNGO . 

lluTTERW.ORTH: 20th ,January, 1938. Before H. G. Scott, Esq., 
President, and }lessrs. L. }f. Shepstone and H. F. 
) Jarsb<>rg, ~!embers of the N.A.C. 

JllPgitiuwte Child- l>ou·ry of-" Tombisa " ccreuwny-Native 
Assessors opinio11 us to object of and place where it 
should l1e performed-Performance of ceremony at kraal 
of natuml rather dues not mean that girl belongs to him 
unlPss he hus paid d<!11111ges and uwintenance-Ool!sr•nt 
uf rdatiues uj girl's motht'r- TT'hether necessary. 

Seductiun-Smle of jinPs for second pregnancy-Yingo Custom. 
(Appeal from the Na.tiYe Commissioner's Court, Tsomo.) 

(Case No. 58/1937.) 
In th E' Court below tiH• plain tiff sued dt>fendant for th 

delivery of four head of C'attlP and £2 cash whieh had hl"~l 
paid as dowry for a girl named Qizana who, plaintiff claimed. 
belonged to him. 





l•'rom tlw P\·ideiH'<' it appears that onP Sam, an illegitimate 
son of plaintiff' s sister, rendPrPd Lolosf', defendant's daughter, 
prPgnant on two occasions. As a fl'stdt of the first pregnancy 
a boy, 1\Ilungisi , was born and tlw us ual fine of thrPe hPad 
of cattle "·as paid. Tho g irl , Qizana , \\'as born as a rt'littlt 
of tlw s<>eond pr<>gnaney but Sam had disappPared bPfor<' her 
birth. About that tinw a fourth hPa st, a black heifer , was 
paid to defendant . 

Qizana g rP\\' up at defendant's kraal hnt about four y1'ars 
ago she ,n,nt to plaintiff's kraal to undt'rgo the " tombisa" 
t'PI'('IIIOII,\', 

Plaintiff allt>gPs that thP black heift'r was paid as a finP 
for (Jizana whil1' dPf!'ndant says it "·as '' isondlo " for 
:\lhmgisi. 

'l'ht> Nati,·e Commissioner entPrt>d judgment for the 
<i<'fPndant " ·ith costs, holding that the fonrth beast was paid 
ali maintt>nanee for l\Ilungisi and not as a fine and against 
this judgment an appeal has been nokd on the grounds-

(1) that tht> Native Commissimwr failed to give dnP wPight 
to tlw fact that the girl, Qizana, "·as allowed to go to 
the kraal of the plaintiff for the .. tombisa " ceremony, 
and 

(2) that there is no proof that plaintiff en'r fetched the 
child ::\Ilungisi and as he was taken to plaintiff's kraal 
bv his mothPr wlwn he \ras siek a nd died thPre before 
p'iaintiff thought of fl'tehing him, tht> question of 
maintenam·e eonld not and nerPr did arise. 

ln dealing \rith the grounds of appeal the Xatire 
Commissiont'r says, in his addi tiona l r Pasons fo r judgment:-

" In r Pgard to the first point , I did not accept as a faet 
t hat Qizana " ·as allowed by defe ndan t to ' tomba ' at 
plaintiff's kraal, but beli erPd the Priden ee of defendant and 
Lolose that the cNemony was performed at that kraal " ·ithout 
th<> consent of either. 1 han' not been able to diseov<>r a 
decid ed ease upon the significance of the ceremony and no 
aut!writy \\'af; quoted for the ('ontention that the 'tombisaing' 
of Qizana at plaintiff 's kraal established that she was 
fl'garded as his property . It seems obvious that the eonsl'nt 
of de fendan t mmld he required to the 'tombisaing ' of his 
minor unmarried granddaughter and ward, and having 
a('eepted the e \·idenee of the defence that this eonsent was not 
given, I cou ld not attach any particular significance to the 
fact that t he ceremony wa!" ne,·ertheless performed at 
plaintili" ::: kraal." 

'' In regard to the second point 1 accepted the P\·idenee of 
defendant and Lolose that the ehild Mlungisi was taken to 
plaintiff's kraa l at the latter's instane<>, and disbPiiPved the 
plaintiff 's version of the child 's arrinJ at his kraal. That 
being so 1 could come to no other conclusion than that the 
black heifer "·as paid as maintenance fo r Mlnngisi , and 
plaintiff 's claim could not sueeel'd." 

The fact s of this ease having bl't' n put to t he Native 
.\s:;essors they statl' unanimously: -

" Our custom of tombisa is to protPet a girl agai nst illness. 
In taking out that disease t he child m11st be takPn to her 
father's (the sedueer) kraal. The nwre fact that the ceremony 
is performed there does not ml'an that she belongs to him 
unless he has donP all the ne(•essary t hings, i.C'. paid damagl's 
and ' sondlo '. The main object of the ceremony is to 
protect tlw girl against di seasP. Tlw pnform:nwe of thP 
('Premon.'' at a partieul ar kraal has no signifieancP in f;O far as 
thP rights in a girl are l'Ont'l'rite<L 'I' h1' r eason shP is takPu 
t!t('rt' is lweaHsP the ePremOI(\' mui'it lw pl'rfornwd h.'· thL' mal<' 





relatin•:, on lwr father's ~ide. It makes no differeneo 
wlJPtlwr she went th<>re with tlw ('onsent of her mother 's 
relatives or without their knowiPdge. 

Amongst the Fingo two ht>ad of eattiP are usually paid f01 
a sPeond pregnanc-y." 

1'hP Native Commissioner has giv0n sound reasons f01 
:l<'('l'('tiug; tlw PYidenee of thP tlefPndant in preference to that 
for plaintiff and this Court agrees with his finding. 

'I'll<' a pp Pal is dismissed with eosts. 

CASE Xo. 3. 

HARRISON NZANZANA vs. KNOX DAFETI PUKU. 

BuTTERWOHTH: 20th January, 1938. Bt>fore H. G. Seott, Esq .. 
President, .Messrs. L. M. Shepstmw and H. 1<'. l\Iarsberg 
Members of the N.A.C. 

l'mdicc-Appeul-Application for po.~tponernent tu enal1le 
respnndent to raise funds to instnlct attorney tn defend­
.Vot su.fficient cause for ura.nting postponement-()ujec tioll 
that suiiWlOns discloses nu cause of action-should be 
taken in lim·ine in Co-wrt below and cannot be raised fat 
first tiTttt' on appeal-l'Jvidence led on matter not pleaded 
- lf not objccte(L to by opposing attorney Judicial Officer 
should not 1·oise objection himself in his 1·easons for judg­
ment-Claim in summons for property prr.piously disposed 
of by plaintifj-Judgml'nt for nnt compctent-Liabilit!) 
of person in charge of property belonging to anothe1· /ot 
disposals m-ade by his 1Pife to whom he is mmTied md of 
commundy of property- Pleadings- Duty of 11ractitioners 
in dnnl'ing. 

(Appeal from XativP Commissioner's Court , Kentani.) 

(Case No. 86/1936.) 

Before eommPtwing his argument iu this ease l\lr. 'Vehh 
~tated that the respondent's attorney in the Court below had 
not been paid snfficient fees to enable him to rPpresPnt hi~ 
dient on appPal and suggestPd that the matter be postponed 
to the next sPssion of this Court to enahle the respondent to 
ra ise funds to instruet his attorney. 

The Court did not eonsider the reason given suffieient 
cause for postponing the matter and, therefore, refused to 
allow it to stand over. 

In the Court below the plaintiff (respondent) claimed from 
defendant (appellant) the following eattle or their value 
£25 whieh he alleged Lelonged to the estate of his brother tho 
late Bnrnside of whieh he is the hPir, viz.:-

1. A blaek cow. 
2. A red and white ox. 
3. A red heifer, white underneath. 
4. A black and white heifer. 
5. A hlaek heifer \\'ith white belly. 

In his plea defendant stated that all the stoek bclonging 
to llurnside's Estate had been handed to plaintiff by defen­
dants' wife to whom s1.eh stock had bePn left by Bnrnside at 
his dPath, prior to the issue of summons, that the red and 
white ox was neYer Burnsides' prop<>rty andl that th<> rPd and 
whitP heifPr was sold by def(\tHlant's wifP with the knowled ge 
and eonsent of plaintiff. 
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The Xatin' Commissioner entere<l judgment for plaintiff 
for the return .1f the black cow, red heifPr whitP undPr­
neath and the blaek lwif<'r whitP underneath or their value 
.£11) and costs of suit. 

The appeal is against that portion of the judgment order­
ing the return of the two heifers, on the ground! that the 
rPd heifer whit!' underneath was sold by d!'fendant' s wife 
to whom he wm; married by Chri:.;tian H.ites without eom­
munitv of propert~· a nd that he (defendant) is riot liahle for 
her torts, and that th0 black heifer white nndNneath had 
heen so ld by plain tifF to a third part,\· to whom it had b!'!'ll 
d\']i,·Ned and it was no longer in def!'IHlant's possession. 

The .\ssistant N ativP Commissioner found as a fact that 
defendant's late wife had disposed of tlw red heif('l' whieh 
formed portion of tho estate and that prior to the issu e of 
summons plaintiff disposed of a lwast, portion of the !'statP, 
to one Zulnlake and \vith th!'sl' fin<lings of fa!'t we ar<' in 
agreement. 

Tt rPmains onlv to del·ide whether defendant is liable for 
the return of th~se animnls. 

Tt was nrgu ed in this court that the summons disclosed no 
ea use of action and for that rPa~on alone plaintiff was not 
entitl e,c] to a judgment. 

Tliis is one of the objeetions \\'hic·h may be taken to a 
summons in terms of Hule 2 (1) or Order Xli of Proclamation 
No. 145 of HJ2:3. That objection, however, must be. tnken, in 
limine, in the Court below nnd eannot he raised for the 
first timE' on nppeal. The defendant allowPd the summons to 
stand and the defec·t \\'ns cured hv tlw evidence which disclosPd 
t hat the cause of ac·t ion \\'a:.; t}{p possession by d!'fPndant of 
•·prtain cattle in the estate> of one Bnrnside of whieh plnin­
tiff is heir and hir-~ refusal to hnnd them o\'er. 

lt was fu rther argued that th<'r<'· was no evidenc·e thnt 
def0nclant \Yns in ehnrge of these <·attle. Tt is true that 
the e\'idcnee on that point is not strong hut defendant appt>ars 
to have acl'epted that that was the po::~ition otherwise hP 
would have appealed against the whole juclgnwnt. 

Finnll~- it was nrguecl that defendant , hnving b!'en married 
by Christinn rites and eommunity of property having boon 
exduded by se!'tion 5 (1) of Proclnmation No. 142 of 1910, 
was not responsibl!' for t he tort of his "·ife in selling the reel 
h<>ifer wh ite underneath b!'longing to the estnte. 

In r eply to this argunwnt it is suffici!'nt to say that the 
n<·tion in regard to this beast is not based on tort. 

If the d!'fPndant wa:-~ in charge of thP !'attle he is rcsponsihlt' 
to a<·!'otmt for them. If lw \\'Pnt nwav it \\'US his dutv to 
place somPon e in charge of the estate t'o see that it wa~ not 
dissi pnted nnd he is not reli!'Y!'d of responsibility mer!'ly 
because it \Vas his wife who clispo~ed of the be>ast. Defendant 
would still haw· lw<'n liable no matter \Yho it was that hnd 
sold it. 

ln regard to the blac·k heifN, white underneath , tlw 
Assistnnt Native Commissioner states-

" That in viP\\' of dcfPndant's plea }I(' was not entitlPd to 
raiso tlw qnc>stion of tlw sal!' to ZnlulakP , partieulnrly in 
viPw of the fact that tlw transnction occurr<>d prior to tllll 
issue of summons and' \\'as \\'ithin cldPn<lant's knmdedg<' at 
tlw titue he plPncl<•cl over to tlw summonl'!. 'l'lw Court, tlwr!'­
forP, ignored tlw Pvid!'n!'e adchtc·Pd in regard to this trans­
ac·tion and ordered that dd<>ndant hand ov<•r this IJ!'ast , 
\\hic·h is in hi.~ possession, to plaiutitl'. Tlw qnPstion of it ~: 
mrn<'rr-~hip is on<' hdwe<>n Znlulak<' and plaintiff." 





lt ~cems to us that tlw Assistant Native Commissioner has 
approached this question from th(' wrong angle. The evidence 
\\'ith n'gard to the sale to ZululalH' was never objected to by 
plaintiff's attorney and in fact he cross-examined defendant' s 
\\'itness on it. 

If plaintiff's attorney considered that in view of the plea 
ddendaut was not enti tied to lead the evidence then he should 
have objected when it was tendPreu and it was not for the 
Assistant Native Commissioner to raise the objection himself. 

That he did not ignore the evidence is shown by his giving 
a finding in regard to the sale to Zulnlake. 

Now the plaintiff's elaim is for eertain cattle which he 
ela ims to hP his property and in possession of deft>ndant. 
The onus is on him to prov<' those facts. As the animal in 
(JIWstion was sold before the issue of ~ummons it was, at the 
date of issue of summons, no longl'I" plaintiff's property and 
he has, therefore, no claim to it. 

Tho Assistant Native Commissioner says the question of 
ownPrship is one between plaintiff and Zululake but this has 
alread,\· bPcn settled by his finding as to the sale. 

If defendant is compelled to hand over the heifer to 
plaintiff it only means that Zululake will sue plaintiff or 
possibly ('Ven defendant thus bringing about an entirely 
umweessary multiplication of actions. 

T n the opinion of this Court, in view of the faet that 
plaintiff had parted with the ownership of the black lwifPr, 
white underneath, it should not have been included in thP 
judgment. 

The appeal is allowPd \\'ith C'osts in so far as the blal'k 
heifer, whitP undPrneath, is conenned and the judgment in 
the Court below altered to r<'ad " For plaintiff for the delivery 
of the black cow and the red h(•ifer, whitt> underneath, or 
their value, £10 and costs of suit." , 

The plt>adings in the Court belo\\· wen' very inartistically 
drawn and leave much to be desired. The summons is onP to 
which an objt-ction might and should have been taken and 
thP plea was contradictory and it is surprising that it was 
allowed to stand. It is the duty of practitioners, in drawing 
pleading~. to spt out the claim and ground of action clearly 
and eonl'i~wly and the (kfence should similarly be clPar and 
coneise. 

It is trusted that this will be borne in mind, otherwise this 
Court may decide to mark its disapprovnl in making an order 
in rPgard to eosts. 

CASE No. 4. 

DANIEL NDWANDWA vs. ELIAS MINI. 

KoKsTAn: 2nd Ji'pbruary, 1938. Before H. G. Scott, :Esq., 
President, and l\It•ssrs. F. C. PinkPrton and G. Kenyon , 
:\Tembers of the N.A.C. 

l'mcfu'r•: He~ Jndicata- J<Jielll('llfs rr''f''ircrl to determinr plea 
of. 

(Appe'll from Nati\'e Commissionl•r's Comt, l\lonnt Fletehl'r .) 
(Casp No. 46 of 19:37.) 

The plaintiff issued summons ag:1imt dPfendant in thP 
Court bdow, in which lw clainwd-

1. that defendant be obliged to take delivery of his thrcP 
children born to Rt>gina, the daughter of plaintiff, and 
o~ which ehildren defendant is the father, and 





(j 

2. delivt>n· of one horsP and fin• head of cattle, repr<>senting 
the b;lance of fines agr<>ed upon to be paid b;\' defendant 
to plaintiff in respect of tlw five children-two being 
now d<>ad- born to Hegina and of "'hich children 
d<>fendant is tht> fathPr. 

In his particulars of claim lw set out that defendant and 
Ht>gina had lived in concubinage for many years as a result 
of which Hegina had given birth to five childrPn, of whom 
thrt>e are alive and, with Hegina, are living at plaintiff's 
kraal; that defendant has paid all the fines in respect of th<> 
five children, as agret>d upon, except one horse and fi\ '<' head 
of cattll'. 

To this summons ohjt>dion was tak(•n on thP ground of 
Ues Judicata in that then' has been a jndguwnt in a prt>viow; 
ac-tion betwe<>n plaintiff and defendant, based on the sanw 
or substantially the same grounds as tlw pres<>nt ac-tion and 
with respect to the sanH' or substantially tlw sanw subjPc-t 
matter or matters. 

The Nati\'e Commission<>r uplwld the obj<>ction and dismi:;sed 
the summons with costs and an appeal has lwt>n noted on the 
grounds that the subject matter and the cause of action in 
the two casPs are entirt>ly diffPrent. 

In the previous case, which was between tlw same partit>s, 
plaintiff clainwd 20 head of cattle and one hors<> or £110 as 
balance of dowry dne or alternati,·<>ly 17 head of cattle and 
one horse or paynwnt of their value as damages for 
aggravated and repeated sednetion of his daughtPr, Rt-gina 
hy plaintiff and in h"s particu;ars of cblim alleged that in 
1923 on promis<> of marriage defendant seduced and rendered 
pregnant, the said Regina, who wa:; delin•red of a mall' 
child in resp<>d of whom defendant paid three head of eattle; 
that since then defendant had c·ontinuoH'-h· cohabited with 
Reg;na who bore him five childrt>n-two of \d1ieh diPd; that 
defendant had repeatedly promised to pay the Hsnal Hlubi 
dowry of 20 head of cattl<> and one horse, but had failed to 
do so; that in the e\·ent of defendant failing to pay dowry 
plaintiff wa s entitled to damages in the sum claimed in the 
altNnatin' (i.e. 17 head of cattle and one horse). 

Dt>fendant signed a c-onsent to judgment for £8.5 and c·osts 
and judgment was entered accordingly. 

In »o far as the c:aim for the stoek is concerned it is con­
tended inasmuch as the judgment in the first case was for 
damages for repeated seductions when•as the present claim 
is for one horse and five head of cattle being balance of fines 
as agreed upon that the two cau~es of action are not the 
same. 

Among the essential requirements of the exeeptio rei jud:­
catae are that the previous judgment shall ha,·e been given 
in an aetion-

(1) iYith re~;pt>et to the :;ame :,uhjPd mattPr. and 
(2) based upon the same ground. 

The same subjPc-t matter will be regarded as in issu e 
between the parties when the same th:ng:, " ·hPiher inereased 
or diminished in Yalue. is prayed for, as also wh<>n only pan 
of the thing claimed in thP first action is sued for in the 
second; nor does it matter whether the sa me \Yards arP u sed 
in describing it. !Jl'ovided it is in fad the sanw thing (l\Laas­
dorp 3rd T<~dition , Vol. IY .. p. 25~). 

The sPC;ond (•ssential Is that the ground of action ~-;hn 11 
have bePn the same, it not !wing e nough that tlw, thing 
c-laimed "·as the sam<>. The same ground of ac·tion ma.Y h<> 
present , e\'Pn though a different form of action nw~· be 
brought , tlw defence of Hes ,Judirnfa not being ckfeatPd by 
the fad that the a<.:tion (liffers in form from the on<> pr<>~ 





viousl,v brought, so long onl~· as the matter in isslw is the 
same (l\Iaasdorp ibid p. 26.5). 
~ow in so far as the suhjeet matter is eonc·erned it sc•ems 

!'!ear that plaintiff is sning for part of what was clain1l'd 
in tlw first aetion in whic·h hP obtained judgment for the 
,·alue of 17 head of cattle and one horse as dama~eo; for 
repeated seduction for hP does not a\'er that that judgment 
wm; no,·a t ed by a new agreement aiHl lw is therefore elaiming 
something for whieh he has alrea dy got judgment. As the 
N"a ti,·e Commisssioner say in his r f'aso ns for judgment: -

" Tlw fac·t that tlw stcwk c·laimed in the pre,·ious ease was 
des!'ribed as ' damages ' and t hat now c·laimed is dc>seribed 
a:·:' balan c·c> of fines agref'Cl upon ' does not alter the position 
tha t the two rlaims are for damagPs in rpspeet of the fin•. 
eh ildren. Plaintiff has alreacl~· ohtained judgment for thP 
full :nnount of damagl's claillled h~· him and this Cou rt c-on­
siders that , as he is not entitled to elaim ' fin es ' in addition 
to ' damagt's' his present ela im for fi\' e head of cattle and a 
horse described as 'balanee of fin ps agrePd upon ' !'an only 
mean that he is now suing for the un satisfied portion of his 
JHe\·ious judgment and t hat the objeetion of R l's Judimto 
should he upheld. " 

Tn regard to tlw second essential mentioned aboYe it i~ 
c·,·ident that both aetions a n• based upon the same eause of 
complaint, namely . the cohabitation of defendan t with plaiii­
tiff's daughter, He,gina, and the hearing by thl' latter of 
fiYe children to defendant . 

. \ s tlw parti<>s in the t\\·o a c·tion s are the same all the essen­
tials to support a plea of TI'S judiroto in regard to the stock 
claimed are present and t his Court is of opinion that the plea 
in regard thereto was rightly upheld. 

The claim that dPfendant should hE'! compelled to take 
delivery of the woman Hegina and the three C'hildren stands 
on a different footing. This did not figure in the previous 
ens0 at all. 

fn dealing with this elaim the Native Commissioner says: 
" The claim in t he present case for an order eomvelling 
defendant to take deliven· of the thret'> ehildren t en ds to c·on­
fuse the issue . This Cou~t does not know of anv sueh aetion 
under NatiYe Law. .-\eeording to Nati,·e Cnst~m he shonld 
keep the el1ildren and then, when defendant elaims their 
deli,·ery, he ean elaim cattle for their maintenanc-e. The 
Court, therefore, disregarded this ela im. " 

T lw NatiYe Commissioner appear>; to haYe o\·erlooked t lw 
faet that h e was asked to deeide whether or not a ef'rtain 
elaim wa s or was not R es Judicntn. not whether plaintiff h ad 
an~· ea use of action in c-onnect ion wi t h it. If in fad there i" 
no sueh aetion nnder NatiYe Law and Custom that is a 
matter for plea or possibly exception hut it ea nnot he dis­
regarded for the pnrpose of deciding on a plea of R('s Judi­
ntfn . 

It may well he that plaintiff may hesi tate to proeeed with 
the aetion on this point alone but, if he dc.>si r Ps to ohtain a 
ruling of tlw ( 'ourt on it. there is n o reason wh~· he should 
not be allowE:>cl to do so. 

In t he opinion of this Court t he Nati,·e Co1~missioner 
P•ITPd in di sregarding this elaim. It is elea rly not eov!'l'ed 
by the plea . 

Tlw result is that the appeal is allowed and the judgment 
in th e Court below a mendL·d to read-

" Obj ection of Tl's iurlim to upheld only in I'c>ganl to the 
c·laim for one horse and fiye head of cattle, hnt m·ern1kd in 
rc>gard to thP balanc·e of tlw claim. No order as to costs." 

In rega rd to the eost~; in this Co urt WP are of opinion that 
tlwm should be no order. 
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CARF. No. 5. 

ZAC HA R IA H MP ANDE vs. UMQANTO NQOLOSI. 

KoKsTAIJ: 2nd February, 1938. Before H. G. Scott, Esq ., 
President and l\lessrs. F. C. Pinkerton and G. Kenyan, 
}!embers of the Native Appeal Court. 

namaaes- Trespa ss- Land R eaulations- Permission of Nnfit· c 
('ornrnissi oner to occupy luud sufficieut eve n thouah eerti­
!imfe of otcttpution not issurd- Applicont for land nut 
to /11' i'erwlised for neul ec t of duty IJy officials- l'rocln. ­
'nrdtoTis 125 of 1!J0:3, ID!) of 1008, 14:3 of 1919 and 26 of 
19:~6. 

(Appeal from Natin~ Commissioner 's Court , Mount Fleteher .) 
(Case No. 35 of 1937.) 

In tile Court below pla.intiff (appellant) claimed from 
defendant (respondent) the sum of £7 as damages for trespass 
by three horses of the clefe.nclant in his land on four separate 
occasions. 

In his plea defPndant me n·l,\· clPnied the trespass , and plain­
tiff then gave e\·idence in th e comse of \vhich it appeared 
that he was not in possession of a ('Prtificate of oecupation 
in respe<"t of tlw land in question and that he had demanded 
from de.fenclant 13s. Gel. in r espel't of the trespass on the four 
occasions. Defendant then filed an additional plea in th e 
following terms :-

" 1. That plaintiff having; suec·Peded t o the land upon whic-h 
the four trespasses as elaimed in the summons took place afte r 
plaintift"'s father died in th<' ~·ear 1918 plaintiff ean only he 
consid','rNl the owner of snch land hv virtue of a eertifieate of 
occupation in his favour and this '~as Jievl'r granted to him , 
whercforP plaintiff's claim should be dismissed with eost s. 

2. That as plaintiff formally demanded payment of tres­
pas~ fees 13s. Gel. in respect of the four trespa sses a s claimed 
in the snmmons he is estopped from claiming damages in 
respec-t of the said trespass as done in the summons. " rhen:> 
fore ch•fendant prays that plaintiff's claim may be di smissed 
with eosts. '' 

After hearing eYidence the Xative Commissioner entered 
a judgment of absolution from the instance with eost s on the 
ground that plaintiff had failed to show that he was in law­
f ul occupation of the land on which the alleged trespass took 
place. The grounds of appeal are : -

1. It is not a condition preeedent or legally necessary to 
enable plaintiff to sueceedl in his aetion that plaintiff shonld 
lw in possession of a eertificate of occupation . 

2. ProYided, as is the case in this action, no certifica te has 
riglttly or wrongl.\· lwPn issu<'cl to another party in r cspPct 
of t he land to \Yhich plaintiff' s claim relatc>s , it is only IH' ePs­
~ary for plaintiff to prove that he is in lawful oecupation of 
s uch land. 

:3. ;o;uch proof \Yas duly nddueed on behalf of pla intiff and 
the fact that the Native Commissioners of l\Iount Fleteher 
failed in their duties in issuing to plaintifi the requi site 
certific-ate of o<·cnpation and in seeing to it that the necessary 
entries in the appropriate land hooks or registe rs were madP 
is no fault of p laintiff and cannot prejudice hi s lawful claim 
nor does such clr>fault destroy or rwgative the proof of Ja,dul 
occupation of the said land adduced by plaintiff. 

4. 'l'he jndgnH•nt is against tbe weight of evicl<'nce and no t 
in aeconlancP with th<' l<'gal principles dPclueihle thPrefrom 
and is opposc>d to principles of justi<'f'. 





Tlw undisputed e1·idem·e in this case i::; to the effect that 
tlw land in question, which is in an unsurveyed district, 
oril!:inally belonged to tlw plaiutitf's father. After his death 
it was oc<·upied hy the plaintiff am1 about six years ago it 
was nwasuretl and marked off by the H eadman and OIW Bod 
Lehana and allotted to plaintiff and the allotment was duly 
eonfinned by the then 1\ativo Commissiouer. 

~o entry appears to have been made in the register re­
quired by 1[\w to be kept by the Xatin· Commissioner nor 
was any certificate of occupation in tC'rllls of the law issued 
to plaintiff. 

In tlw<se cin;umstauees defe ndant contends that plaintiff is 
in" unlawful occupation and cannot sue for trespass. 

In a ll!Jmher of eases whieh haYe l'Oille before the Native 
.Appeal Court it has been held that a pPrson who is not in 
pm.session of a certifi<'ate of oecupation cannot be regarded 
a::; being in lawful occupation and, thPrPfore, cannot Sl't:) for 
tlamagl's for trespa~s. A rcfe>rence to the reports of these 
ca::;es Jisdost>s that in Paclt instan<·e the allegation is that 
thP laud had been allotted by tlw Headman but the approval 
thereto of the }Lagi::;trate of the distril't had not been obtained 
and the ( 'ourts held that allotment by the Head'Inan alone 
w:t s immtficient and the approYal of tl~e }lagistrate was also 
neee::;sary. 

In tlw <'a se of Blikman }Jduna t·s. ~gubo (3, N.A.C., 277) 
the President in the course of his judgment said: " Under 
the provisions of Sec-tion 5 of Proelamation No. 125 of 1903, 
no man mav eultiYate anY land which has not been allotted 
to him by the Headman ,· with the approval of the Resid~nt 
}[agistrate, and Seetion 12 addell to this Proclamation by 
Proc·lamation 195 of 1908, provides the manner in which any 
grant of land shall be registered, and go€s on to say that any 
person charged with contravening either of the said HPg nla­
tions shall be deem ed not to lmrc obtained the necessary 
co nsent or pcrrn·ission, unless such entry or cert-ified copy shall 
IJc produced in proof thereof." The evidence goes to show 
that no grant of the land to the plaintiff has been registered, 
anrl it follows that uo grant has been made to him with 
tho approval of tlw :\lagistrate, and, therefore, eyen though 
the Headman may have allotted the land to the plaintiff, 
until such allotment has been approved by the l\lagistrate 
the plaintiff conld not lawfully o<·eupy such land. 

lt seems quite clear that this jnd1gmen t "·as based on the 
nTy st ringent provisions of Prodamation Xo. 19.'5 of 1908, but. 
en·n so, i t is to be doubted whether. if there had been 
evidence that the }lagistrate had approved of the allotment 
th" Court would :; till han' held that the land was unlawfully 
occupied. The case of "\Villiam }labinda n. T. M elwane (j, 
1'\ . .A.C. 279) r eferred to by the Native Commissioner in hi s 
reasons for judgment was decided while Proclamation ?\o. 
195 of 1908 was in force and the judgment was no doubt , 
influenced by that Proclamation. 

Proclamation No. 195 of 1908, together with othl·r pmclll­
nw tions dealing with tlw occ·upation of land in unsun·pycd 
districts in the Transkeian Territories, was rcp<>alcd by 
Proc·lamation Xo. 14:3 of 1919 whic·h , in turn , was repealed 
by Proclamation No. 2G of 193G. In ne ither of the last two 
named proclamations were the provisions of Prodamation 
~o. 19.) of 1908, referred to in the case of Blikman l\Iduna 
rs. l'\gubo (supra) repea tPCl, an omission, which is significant 
a:, indicating a realization b,v the legislature of thP injust ice 
of penalizing an innoc·cnt party for the neglPct of dutj· by a 
person oYer whom he had no shadow of eontrol. 

T he dec·isions in i.he easel'; ahov<• refpn·Pd to nn• eousequ<'ntly 
no safe guide for casl's arising sub-;('(juen tly to t.lt P rPpPal 
of tlw Proclamation of 1908. 
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All that is required by Proclamation No. 26 of 1936 , whi<"i1 
now governs these matters, is that the Natin• Commissioner 
shall have given permission to oc·cupy. 

The entry in the land J'Pgister or tlw produdion of a 
ct>rtificate of occupation would be conclusin• proof of tlw 
grant of such permission but the abscmcc of such entry or 
<:ertificate does not prt>cludP other proof being given. 

1t is the permission of tlw Native Commissimwr which 
1·enders the oecnpation lawful and not the entry in the 
register or the grant of a <:ertificate of occupation. As long 
as a person ca11 prove that he has that permission he has 
complied with the JHOYisions of the proclamation and hi s 
o<:cupation is lawful. His omission to obtaiu a certificate of 
o<·eupation naturally makes his task of proving his right to 
oc-cupy more difficult, hut it c·annot render his occupation 
unlawful. 

lt would be unreasonable to subjec·t a person who has done 
all that is in his power to comply with the law to pr.nalti<>s 
and disabilities merely because the officers eharged with 
certain duties had failed to carry out those duties. 

Ln this parti cu lar district we find that for a period of at 
!Past two years <:ertificates of occupation for land which 
had been duly allottc•d had not been issued. It is unthinkable' 
that an,\' C~urt would hold that these lands were being 
unlawfull,\· occupied'. This Court is certainly not prepared to 
do so. 

Tlw Native Couunissioner has clearly been guided by pre­
vious decisions of the XatiYe .\ppeal Court hut his attt>ntiou 
does not appear to have Lwen drawn to the provisions of the 
law obtaining at the time the decisiou he relied upon was 
deli ,·ered. If it had he might possibly have cmne to a 
different condusion. 

In the present case, as pointed out above, tht>re is umlis­
puted e,·id'ence that the allotment to plaintiff was made by 
the Headman of the loc;ttion 'l.nd oppro~·ed of by the Snfil'l' 
f'om .missione r, and, therefore, as far as the record goes, his 
ol'cupation is lawful. 

The appeal is accordingly allowed with cost,'>, the judgment 
in the Court below is set aside and the record returned for 
further hearing. 

CASE No. 6. 

NIVARD TEBELE q.q. vs. GEORGE KLAAS. 

KoKRTAD: 3rd Februar,v, 1938. Befor<> H. G. Scott, ERq .. 
Pn•sident, and .:\Iessrs. F. C. Pinkerton and G. Kenyon, 
){embers of the N.A.C. 

Practire-Hes .Judicata-Requirements of plea of-TT'here 
cauM' of adiu11 i11. two t'tl.~t·s not flu· samr•, plea of ('(1/IJ!fd 

stand. 

(Appeal from Nati,·c Commissi01wr's Court , }fatatiel<>.) 
(Case No. 274 of 1937.) 

This is an appeal against a judgment of the Acting Assistant 
Native Commissioner, }lataticle, in upholding an obj<>ction 
of res j1ulirata to a portiou of plaintiff's elaim. 

The plaintiff stwd for the sum of £20. 12s., bt>ing tlH• vain<> 
of 4 oxen and 2 chains and £7. 8s. damages. The partic11lars 
of daim an• as follows: -

" ]. On or about :3rd April, ]9:3.5, plaintifl' obtaint>d .iudg­
ment against defc>ndant for tlw dclivPrv of c<>rtain 14 !wad 
of cattl<> , 2 chains, ] harrow and l plongh'. 
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2. Tlw plaintiff re<·<>ived from defendant thereafter 10 head 
only of the cattle, the harrow and the plough but defendant 
wrongly fail0d to deliver the remaining 4 cattle and 2 chains 
and although a writ of execution was levied, defendant 
continued to fail to point out or deliver to the .:\Iessenger of 
the Court the said 4 ca ttle and 2 chains and t he .:\Iessenger 
was unable to find and attach same. 

:3. In consequence, plaintiff is entitled to the val nP of thl' 
cattle and claims as abovl' set-off by wa:.v of damages or 
otherwise. 

4. lly reason of defendant's fai lure to deliver and plaintiff 
being thus unabl0 to obtain the property, he is enti tled to 
furthPr damages in the sum of £7. 8s., being 1s. per head per 
month for the loss of the use a nd possession of tlw oxen." 

Objection was taken to tlw s ummons on tlw ground that 
" The claim made thNPin is res judicata , the claim forming 
a portion of the judgnwnt granted by the Court in Case No. 
132/1934 between the same parties ". 

The obj ection was upheld in r espect of the claim for 4 cattle 
and 2 chains or their value , £20. 12s. , 'vith costs. 

The appeal is on th e ground that the ca use and subject 
matter of the action in the present case are diff0rent from 
those> in Case No. 132 of 193J. 

To establish a plea of res judica ta it is necessary to shmv 
that the previous judgment was given in an action (1) with 
respect to the same subject matter (2) based upon the same 
grounds, and (3) between the same parti es. 

In regard to (1) l\Iaasdorp (3rd Edition, Vol. IV , page 263) 
states: " The same subject matter will be regarded as in 
issue between the parties when the same thing, whether 
increased or diminished in value, is prayed for, as also when 
any part of the thing claimed in the first action is sued for 
in the second; nor does it matter whether the same words 
are used in describing it , provided it is in fact the same 
thing' '. 

It might appear from a casual reading of the summons that 
plaintiff claimed part of what he obtained judgment for in the 
previou,; ca'>e h1~t close scrutiny uf the claim rPveals that this 
is in fact not so. The original case was for specific 
performance, i.e . the delivery of certain property-a form 
of action which is within the limits of the jurisdiction of 
Courts of Native Commissioners. As the cattle and other 
articles wNe in existence, plaintiff was under no obligation , 
legal or otherwise , to plact.' a money value on the articles sn<'d 
for. 

Tlw case of Nortje rs. Nort.ic (6, S.C. 9) refNred to by the 
Additional Assistant Native Commissioner in his r easons for 
judgment is no authority for his conten tion that the plaintiff 
should have claimed the alternative valne of the cattle and 
other articles in tlw original case. That case mt•rt>ly decided 
that wlll're there "·as a j ndgment of a competl•nt Court in a 
divorce action decreeing a division of the joint estate it was 
not competent for the plaintiff in that action subsequently to 
bring another action claiming that defenda nt had forfeited 
tht> benefits arising out of tlw m arriage in commun ity of 
propPrty and that that claim should have been made in th e 
original action . 

DPfendant consentl'd to judgml'nt for tlw return of all thP 
propl•rty claim0d. H e, however, it is alll'ged, d0liven•d only 
10 head of catt!P, one harrow and mw plough and a "Tit of 
PXl'Clltion was issued for the balance of four ll<'ad of cattle 
and two chains. lt is admitted that at the time tlw consPnt 
jlldgment was signPd, dPfPndant was in possPssion of all the 
property and was in a position to make f11ll restitution. 
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It was stated by the Additional Assistant Native Commis­
sioner, in his reasons for judgment, and was also argued in 
this Court, that if plaintiff obtains judgment in the present 
claim he would be in the t·xtraordinary position of having one 
judgment in his favour for the articles and anoth er for their 
value. This may be so but that is no reason for saying that 
the cause of action is the same in both cases. In the case of 
Ras vrrs11s Simpson (1904, 1'.8. , p. 254) , Inn es, O.J ., sta t ed 
that if specific performance had been asked for a nd decr eed 
a ud had not be<>n carriPcl out it would havl' ht>en compet ent 
for the plaintiff in another action to have asked in lieu of that 
dec-ree for cancellation of the contract and damages. The 
case of Gordon wrsus .i\loffett (1934, E.D.L. 155) is ver y 
similar to the present action. There a consent judgment had 
been entered for the payment by defendant of £106, purchase 
price of certain erven, to be paid within four months against 
transfer. Execution was levied on this judgment and a 
return of n11lla bona made. Thc>reafter plaintiff instituted 
aetion claiming a rescission of the contract of sale, e jeC' tment 
and damages. Exception was taken that the matter was r es 
judicata, but was overruled by the Magistrate . On appeal 
it was held that tlw judgment in Ras ve1·s11S Simpson was 
direct authority in favour of the course adopted by the 
plaintiff in Gordon v ersus l\[offet and that the grounds of 
action differed materially from those upon which the original 
action was based. 

That appears to be the position in the case now under 
C'onsideration. Pia in tiff obta im•d judgment for the dPlivery 
of specific cattle and articles and as that judgment was not 
fully complied with he was entitled to claim damages for tha t 
fai lure. It is true that the summons has been loosely drawn 
and does not indicate clearly that the present claim is in lieu 
of the delivery of the cattle and chains but that should not , 
in the opinion of this Court, bar the plaintiff from his 
remedy and is not a matter which can effect the question as 
to wh ether or not a claim is res judicata. 

In order to clarify the position, ::\Ir. Zietsman, for appellant , 
has undertaken that application will be made for the necessary 
amendment to the summons. 

ln the opinion of this Court the ea use of action in the two 
cases is not the same and the Additional Assistant Native 
Commissioner erred in upholding the plea of res jvdi.cata. 

The appeal will be allowed with costs and the judgment 
in the Court below amended to read : " Obj ection overruled 
with costs '' and the case returned for hearii_Ig on the merits. 

UASE Ko. 7. 

AARON NDLANYA vs. DRUMMOND TOBELA. 

KoKSTAD · 3rd Febrnan 1938. Before H. G. Scott , Esq ., 
Presid.ent, and .;\less;·~. F. C. Pinkerton and G. K enyon , 
.:\(embers of the N.A.C. 

J<Jjectrnent- Dunw.g es for- ll'h ere d efendant pnt it out of 
power of plaintiff to minimise da111ag es /11' is liabl e for fu ll 
a1n.uu.nt of daubag es sv.~tain e d. 

Cost of appeal- Where appellant sncceed ed in obta ining 11 

snbstnntial reduction in nmonnt of judgtnent h e is entitled 
to costs. 

(Appeal from Native Commiss ioner 's Uonrt , Umzimkulu .) 
(CasH No. 2GO of 193G. ) 

1 n thP Court below tht• plaintiff suPd defendant for 
£77. 9s. 9d. damages for the foreible Pjectment of hi s wife 
and property from his huts. 
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The Assistant Native Commissioner entered judgment for 
plaintiff for £64. 9s. 9d. with costs, and against this judgment 
an appeal has been noted on the ground that the damages 
awarded are excessive , in that-

(u) If plaintiff's wife, who was in charge of his kraal during 
his absence, did leave all his property lying outside the 
kraal, as alleged, with no regard as to whether the sanw 
was stolen or destroyed, she aggravated the damages by 
het· aetions in this eonnection. 

(b) That under the circumstances disclosed damages should 
not have been awarded exeept in respect to the value 
of those goods or articles which are perishable and 
might have been damaged or destroyed by weather 
conditions before they could haYe been reasonablr 
removed. 

(c) That the values plaeed upon the various artides hy 
plaintiff \\·ere excessiYe. 

The main facts of the case are not seriously in dispute and 
are as follows: The plaintiff is a lawful resident on the farm 
'Veh·erdient, in the District of Umzimkulu, where he has four 
huts and three lands in possession of which he has been for 
a number of years. The farm is tribally owned by a section 
of the Amawushe tribe and defendant is the Acting Chief 
of that tribe, is Headman of the location of which the farm 
'VelYeraient forms a part and has full control over the said 
farm. During 1936 there was some trouble between plaintiff's 
daughter and a girl named Lucy Ann over some clothing. 
The matter was reported to the police who said that defendant 
should enquire into it as it was of a civil nature. Plaintiff 
told defendant not to hold an enquiry as the case was one 
between his danght<>r and his ni.ece. Defendant then demanded 
a beast from plaintiff as a fine for stopping the enquiry. 
Plaintiff refused to pay and reported to the magistrate 
who sent for defendant and instructed him not to demand 
the fine or eject plaintiff. 

Plaintiff then went up to Johanne~>burg and, in his absence 
a letter dated 23rd June. 1936, was sent by an attorney on 
instructions from the Chief of the Amawushe tribe giving 
plaintiff notic·e to leave the farm with his family and stock 
on or before 31st August, 1936, and threatening legal proceed­
ings for ejectment and damages on failure to comply. This 
letter was sent to plaintiff by his wife and he wrote to his 
attorney to defend the matter. 

During September, 1936, plaintiff's wife was away from her 
kraal and on her return found the huts locked and her 
belongings thrown outside. She broke the locks and put her 
property back in the huts. Defendant haa admittedly put 
the locks on the doors. 

On the 23rd September, 1936, defendant and eleven oth<> r 
men went to plaintiff's kraal, ordered his wife to leave, dug 
out the doors and windows of the huts and threw her belong­
ings out. Plaintiff's wife alleges that defendant also instructed 
the other residents of the farm not to take her or her family 
or her property to their homes. Defenuant denies this but this 
Court is satisfied on the e\·idenee that he did gi,·e such 
instructions, with the result that the property remained in 
the open unprotected and it gradually disappeared. 

The defendant alleges that plaintiff' s wife had prior to this 
date removed all her property to the kraal of one Panzi and 
that on the date when he destroyed the huts there r emaint•d 
only a box, a bundle of kaffir corn, an old mattress and a 
quantity of mealie meal. He admits, however , that plaintiff's 
,\'ife lived in the kraal for t\\'O days after he locked the hu ts 
on the first occasion. As plaintiff , e,·en according to sou1 e 
of defendant' s witnesses , was a man of substancf' it is 
improbable that his wife would have been content to occupy 





tho huts without bedding, <·ooking; utt>nsi],; and other neces­
f;i ties of life. W<> are satisfied on the evi den< ·e that defendant 's 
Hta tement is not col'l'Pf't. Plaintiff 's wife states that on the 
day she was Pjectecl she made a li st of all t he property that 
was taken out and this list was handed in at the hearing: 
of the (':\Se, an estimate of the value being placed against 
ea('h artiele, the total eoming to £-!G. 2,;, 9d. ln addition, 
plaintiff daimed .£18. I s. as the value of the huts and £13 
a~ damages owing to his lands being taken away from him 
and rP-allotted to other per sons. The latter claim was <lis­
allowed by tht> A~-;istant N ati,·e Conuni;;,;ioner. 

It is conte nded that the values placed on the variou s a rtieles 
aro exces;;iYe, but the dt•fendant in his evidenee did not 
question the values and this Court is of opinion that , with 
t he <>xception of the huts, t hey are not excessive. As far as 
t he huts are concerned it will be sePn , on reference to the 
account annexed to the summons, t hat plaintiff has inelucl ed 
a. separate claim for the doors and windows remoYed from 
the~=;e huts whieh would lea,·e only the walls and possibly some 
thatch and rafters. Xo eYidence \Yhate,·er was given on behalf 
of plaintiff in regard to thei r ,·nine. It seems unlikely t hat 
the \' r ea llv were of anv value to him and t he claim should 
not' ha,·e l;t>en allowed i1; the absence of P\·iden('e_. 

It is contended also that plaintiff's wi fe nggra,·ated the 
damages by leaving the property outside without taking steps 
to pmtect it against theft or destnH'tion and that in any 
case damages should only ha,·e been awarded in respeet of 
peri shables which might have been damaged by weather 
conditions before they eould r easonably have been remo,·ed. 

In ordinary eircumstances there might have been a good 
deal of substance in these contentions. In the present ease, 
howe,·er, it must be r emembered that defendant by his own 
actions put it out of the pmver of plaintiff 's wife to obtain 
sheltei' loca lly for her property. Her relatives say they could 
not take he r property in beeause of defendant 's orders and 
t heir attitude is not surprising in ,-iew of the extremely 
arbitrary, high-handed and illegal mann er in which he had 
dealt with plaintiff 's property. 

Lt must be remembered that defendant was a man in 
authority whose orders had to be obeyed. It is true that 
the relatin•s of the plaintiff's 'vife did give her and her 
children shelter eontra r y to these orders but it can be 
understood that they would take a risk where human beings 
were eoneerned which they would not take for inanimate 
objects. Plaintiff's wife sta t es that there was no kraal to 
whieh she could ha,· e removed the property and there is 
nothing to show that she could have safe-guarded it in view 
of t he defendant 's orders. 

In the opinion of this Court the loss of the plaintiff's pro­
p<:>rty was the direct consequ e nee of defendant's illegal aets 
and orders and he is liable to compensate plai ntiff therefor . 
. \s pointed out above, the ,-alue of the huts should not ha\'!' 
bet>n allowed , but in so far as the othe r artieles are concerned 
t hi s Court is of opinion that the Assistan t Native Comm issioner 
was justified in aeeeptin g the valu es placed then•on hy 
plaintiff. 

The appeal will be allowed and the judgmen t in the Court 
lwlow amended to read " For plaintiff for £4G. 2s. 9cl. with 
costs''. 

As appellant has suc<·Pedecl in obtaining a substantial 
reduction in the amount of th<> judg1nent he is entitlc•<l to the 
<'o:sts of appeal. 
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CASE No. 8. 

MZENDANA GEBUZA vs. MATANA GEBUZA. 

TTliiTATA: 18th February, 1938. Before H. G. Scott, Esq ., 
Prl'sidt•nt, and ~Jessrs. W .. J. G. ~lears and W. H. P. 
Freemantle, Members of the N.A.C. 

lnhrritance: Adulterine child r·annvt inherit in pre/e1'C'ItCI' 
to a leaitimatc son of Customary Uninn-Temlnt Custom. 

(Appeal from tlw Native Commissioner's Court, nlqanduli.) 
(Case No. 231 of 1937.) 

In the Court helm\· plaintiff (respondent) sued the defendant 
(appellant) for nine head of cattle or their value, £4.5, and in 
his summons alleged:-

•; 1. Plaintiff is the eldest son and heir of the late Gebuza 
.:\lpik\m, and is still a minor and is assisted in this case by 
Sinyingi l\lpik\\·a, his legal guardian, "·ho is a brother of the 
late Gebuza .:\1 pikwa. 

2. That defendant is an ilh·gitimate son of thP late Gebuza 
l\Ipilnva's "·ife, one :\Iatshini Sigidi having committed 
adultery with her and baying paid fine to the said late 
Gebuza for such adultery. 

3. That defendant, during :\lay last , without the co nsent 
of plaintiff or his said guardian disposed of 9 head of eattle 
belonging to the said late Gebuza's Estate. 

4. That these 9 head of cattle are the propPrty of plaintiff 
by virtue of his hei rship to the late Gebuza, and defendant 
had no right to disposP of them." 

In his plPa the dt>fendant allt>ged that plaintiff \\'as the 
second son of the latP Gebuza .:\Ipilm·a, denit>d that lw 
(defendant) was illegitimate and while admitting that one 
~Iatshini Sigidi had committed adultery with the late GPbuza 
.:\lpikwa's wifP and that he had paid damage!' for such 
adultery, denied that these facts ousted him from his position 
as the eldest son of the union between the latt• Gt>buza and his 
wife. 

\Vhen tlw case came on for hearing, plaintiff 's attorn ey 
admitted that defendant was recognized as a son of tlw late 
Gebuza :Upikwa, hut not as his heir. Defendant's attorney 
admitted that defendant was born shortly after one Matshini 
Sigidi had committed adultery with the wife of the late 
Gebuza :\Ipikwa and that he had paid damages for adultery 
and pregnancy. 

The only witness ca ll ed was Singingi l\Ipikwa, a brother of 
the late Gebuza :\Ipikwa, and guardian of plaintiff. It was 
admittPd that plaintiff was born after defendant. l•'rom the 
e\·idenee given by this witness it appears that defendant's 
mother was rendered pregnant by :\I atshini and that four head 
of cattlP \n•re paid as damages, that deft>ndant "·as born as 
a result of this pregnancy and that Gt•buza was absPnt at the 
mim•s during tlw period of gPstation and could not haYe been 
thP father of dt>fendant. It appears also that deft•ndant grPw 
up at the late Gebuza's kraal and was treatPd as a son. H,• 
was circumcised at Gebuza ' s kraal aftt>r tlw latter 's dPath. 
Th l~ cattle in dispute were taken by deft>ndant to pay dowry 
for his wife·. After this witnt-ss's evidence had heen takPn , 
argument was heard on tlH' lt•gal point whether an adulterim• 
('hild can inherit in prPfPrcn<:l' to a legitimate son of tht> 
eustomary union. 
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'J'he Native Commissimwr held that defendant as the 
adulterine son, though older than plaintiff , could not inherit 
tho Estate of the late Gebm;a Mpikwa to the exclusion of 
the latter's legitimate male issue and entered judgment in 
favour of plaintiff for the restoration of the nine head of 
cattle disposed of by dcf<>ndant or their value , £4.5, and costs. 

Against this judgment an appeal has been noted on the 
following ground : -

That the said judgment is contrary to Native· Law and 
Custom in which the legal maxim "Pater est quem matrimonio 
demonstrnt '' (the maxim properly is " Pater est quem 
nuptiae demonstrant ") also applies, and that t>\"en assuming 
tlw latP Gebuza's wife had committed adultery , as he the 
said late Gebnza accepted the defendant as his son , no one 
else <"<lll challenge his position. 

At the outset it may bP said that the legal maxim referred 
to is not applicable. The presumption is that all children 
born of a lawfully married woman are the children of her 
husband, but it may be rebutted by evidence that the husband 
was absent from home or had no access to his wife for a time 
inconsistent with the period of gestation. ln the present case 
there is uncontradicted evidence on the record that the late 
Gebnza Mpikwa was away at the mines during the whole 
period of gestation and could not have been the father of the 
defendant. That being so it is somewhat difficult to under­
stand why this appeal has been brought, for the decided cases 
clearly show that, in Tembuland at any rate, an a dulterine 
son cannot succeed to his mother's husband's estate wher e 
thero is legitimate male issue of the marriage between his 
mother and the deceased as will be seen from the following 
cases. 

In the case of Sidubulekana vs. Fuba (1, N.A.C. , 49) the 
Native Appeal Court went even further and held that 
Sidubulekana, \vho was an adulterine son, eould not succeed 
to the exclusion of legitimate sons in other houses. 

It is true that in a case between the same parties heard at 
a latPr session (see 1, N.A.C., 52) the Native Appeal Court 
held that , there being no sons in the Right-hand House but 
SidubulPkana, as he had not been repudiated he was entitled 
to succeed to the property of that house although there were 
legitimate sons in the Great House. The Court , however, was 
careful to point out that this decision did not in any way 
affect the previous decision which was correctly decided in 
accordance with Tembu Custom while the latter case was dealt 
with according to Fingo Custom. 

Another case dealt with under Tembu Custom was that of 
Baatje vs. Mtnyedwa (1, N.A.C., 110). While the report 
indicates that Baatje, who was an adulterine child, was twice 
publicly declared to be illegitimate, this did not affect the 
custom in the case. The President of the Native Appeal 
Court, in giving judgment said, inter alia: " According to 
Native Custom such a child cannot inherit where there is 
legitimate male issue of the marriage as in the present case ". 

In l\IbudPlwa l\ladlongo vs. ~Inyulu Nandi (3, N.A.C .. 119) 
it was held that under Tembu Custom no married woman 
produces a bastard and the only man who can bastardize her 
son is her husband. This case does not apply in the present 
instance because it is clearly proved that the defendant is 
illegitimate and the mere fact that ho was not publicly 
repudiated does not give him precedence over the legi timate 
son. Even although he was accepted as a son he would rank 
merl•ly as a younger brotht>r to the legitimate son. 

Finally in the case of Lndidi I"S. Msikelwa (5, N.A.C., 28) 
it was held that an adulterine son could succeed to his 
mother's husband's l'StatP in d rfoult of leai timut e issue. 
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'l'lw last-mentioned case is one in which members of tho 
Pondomiso Tribe were concerned amongst whom, apparently, 
adulterine sons are allowed to succeed to the exclusion of 
collaterals. The custom of this tribe is different from that 
of the Tembu Tribe but l'Ven there an adulterine son is not 
allowed to oust a legitimate son in the same house from his 
position as heir. 

The appeal is dismissed with costs. 

C.\SE .No. 9. 

BUNGA MAHASHI vs. ZIHLALELE MAHASHI. 

U:IIT.\TA: 18th February, 1938. Before H. G. Scott, Esq., 
President, and .:\Iessr~ ,V. J. G. l\lears and ,V. H. P. 
Freementlc, l\Iembers of the X.A.C. 

Inheritance-Son of thiTd v:ife municd whether JYUt in Great 
Ilousr or as Qadi would sncceed to GTeat Ilouse property 
-Jlurriage- Facts indicatiny. 

(Appeal from Native Commissioner's Court, Engcobo.) 
(Case No. 66 of 1936.) 

In the Court below plaintiff (appellant) cl~imed lrJm 
defendant (respondent) five head of cattle or their value £25 
and alleged in his ~:>nmmons that he was the eldest son and 
heir in the Great House of the late l\Iahashi l\Itsheke; that 
defendant is the eldest son and heir to the Right Hand 
House of the late l\Iahashi Mtsheke and had possessed him­
self of certain oxen the property of the Great House. 

Defendant denied that plaintiff is the heir in the Great 
House of 1\Iahashi but says he is the sun of ona Mascbeni 
whose heir is one Cinizele; he admits being in possession of 
threo head of cattle belonging to the Great House but says 
the fourth beast daimedl (a red and white ox) is his property 
and denies that there is a fifth beast. 

During th~ eourse of his e\·idence the plaintiff admitted that 
the red and white ox belongs to defendant and the claim to 
it was abandoned. The Assistant Native Commissioner 
entered judgment in favour of defendant and found the 
following facts proved:-

1. That Nojam is the Right Hand House widow of the late 
1\Iahashi. 

2. That Zihlalele is the eldest son and heir of the Right 
Hand House. 

3. That Nosayini was merely a conc·ubine to the late 
.i\fahashi. 

4. That no son was born to Novayile who was the Great 
Wife of )Iahashi, and 

5. That, therefore-, Zihlalele is the heir to the Estate ol 
the lnte .:\[ahashi. 

This finding of facts seems to show that the Assistant 
l'-ative Commissioner has paid \"er,)" little attention to the 
r vidence. lf he had read the evidPnc-e only cursorily he could 
wt possibly so compietPlr ha,·e eoufused the names and st a tus 

of the various wi,·es. 
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The position is ac·tually that the late l\lahashi married as 
his Grc>at wife , Nojam, who had no mail• issue, and as his 
Right Hand \vife , No,·ayile, who is the mother of the defen­
dant , 7-ihlalele. The marriage with Nojam was dissolved 
and tlw dowry paid1 for her returned. The late l\lahashi 
thPn took Nosayini, tho mother of plaintiff, and the dispute 
f•eutres round hPr status. 

The plaintiff'<s case is that l\lahashi married Xosayini, paid 
seven head of cattle as dowry for her and plaeed her in the 
Great House. Defendant on the other hand asserts that she 
was merely a con<·ubine and that no dowry \\'as paid for her. 
It is common ea use that as a girl N osa,vini \Vas rendered preg­
nant by some man and gave birth to a boy named Cinizele. 

The only question to be decided is \vhether or not ~lahashi 
marrietl Nosayini. lf lw did it does not really signify whether 
shP was put into the Gr<>at House or whether she was the 
third wifl' for in eit her case her son would be the heir to 
the Great House. 

In favour of there ha,·ing been a marriage we have the 
fol!m,·ing faf·ts which an• not d1isputed:-

1. That she lived at l\lahahi's kraal as a wife for a number 
of years. 

2. That nlahashi's oldPst land was, afte.r his death, made 
over to .Nosayini by Luvukuvu, who was then guardian of 
tlw family , and no protest was ever made in regard to this. 
lf Xosayini had not been Mahashi's widow it is unlikelv that 
she would have been gi,·en a land at all. .NoYayil~. the 
Hight Hand wife, only got a virgin land. 

;j , That the Great House stock was registe.recl' in plain­
tiff'r-; name by Luvukun1 \Yithout protest. 

J. That plaintiff was circumcised at ~lahashi's kraal. 
Xontsumpa, defendant's only witness, attempts to do away 
with the significance of this fact by saying that plaintiff 
was really circumcised hy Cinizele but he has to admit that 
the circumcision took place near his kraal and at the same 
time as his own son. At that time Nontsumpa was the 
guardian of the family as Luvukuvu was dead and it is 
unlikelY that he \\'ourd have allo\ved the circumcision of an 
unrecognized son at the kraal particula.rly as he must have 
heen aware of the light in which such an action would be 
regardccl. 

In addition to the above-mentioned undisputed facts there 
is Yery strong Pvidence on behalf of plaintiff that seven head 
of catt le \VE'l'e paid as dmny for Nosayini, that a meeting of 
relatives was called and it \Vas then intimated that she was 
being put into the Great House and that she lived for ma.ny 
years with .Mahashi. lf she had been only a concubine it is 
in the highest d1egree improba hie that she would have heen 
allo\Yed to live at his Great Kraal. 

.\gainst this array of evidence there is only that of .Nont­
sumpa which does not explain a\\·ay the \'ery significant facts 
already referred to. 

In the opinion of this Court the evidf'nce in fa\'onr of 
plaintiff's contention is overwhelming. 

In regard to the number of cattle in the defendant's 
possession the only dispute is in regard to onP ntusi ox. 
'Vh ile defendant and Nontsumpa deny that there ever \\'aS 
such au ox there is the evidem·e of Gangilanga and Wagcza, 
in addition to plaintiff and his motlwr, that thew was Sl~ch 
an ox and that it \Vas disposPd of hy clefc•ndant ancl wc .tl11nk 
this evideneC' is sufficient to out-w<>igh tile harP dental of 
defendant aud his witnPss. 
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The appeal i:s allowed with costs and the judgment in the 
Court below altered to one in favour of plaintiff for the 
return of one_ black (wab~) ox, on~ ntusi ox, one red (nala) ox 
and one bad1 ox or theu collective value £20 with costs of 
snit. 

CASE No. 10. 

SITOZA SORWIDI vs. NOJAWUSI SORWIDI. 

UliiTATA: 18th February, 1938. Before H. G. Scott, Esq., 
President, and 1\fessrs. \V. J. G. l\lears and \\r. H. P. 
Freemantle, l\fembers of the N.A.C. 

Practice-Appeal-Additional grounds of-Irregularity-
Judicial officer u1-ust confine himself to pleadings-Judg­

ment not in terms of claim. 

(Appeal from Xative Commissioner's Court, Engcobo.) 
(Case No. 276 of lD3G.) 

In this case, plaintiff (respondent) sued defenaant (appel­
lant) on a summons, the particulars of which are as 
follows:-

1. Plaintiff is the Right Hand House widow of the late 
Sorwidi :;\fngonongwana who died about five- years ago 
and who has no male issue in his Hight Hand House 
where plaintiff resides. 

2. Defendant is the eldest son and heir of the said late 
Sorwidi :;\lngonongwana in his Great House and 
guardian of plaintiff. 

3. Plaintiff is the owner in her own right and by nqoma 
of some 83 sheep, all appertaining to the said Right 
Hand House and in addition certain 10 goats are the 
property of the said Right Hand House. 

4. Defendant recently wrongfully and unlawfully and 
against the will and consent of plaintiff forcibly removed 
23 of the aforesaid sheep from the said Right Hand 
House and the saia 10 goats from the kraal of one 
Dumalisile, where plaintiff kept them for the benefit 
of the said Right Hand House, and diverted the same 
to the aforesaid Great House where defendant now 
keeps and kraals them, and controls them to the entire 
exclusion of plaintiff, denying her any right thereto. 

5. Defendant further threatens to remo\·e and divert to the 
said Great House the whole of the stock at the said 
Hight Hand House. 

6. Defendant refu ses and neglects to support plaintiff. 
\Yherefore plaintiff prays for: (1) a Declaration of Rights 

that she Is the owner or lawful possessor of the aforesaid 83 
sheep and 10 goats. and is entitled to keep and control them 
at the said Hight Hand House. (2) That defendant be ordered 
frwthwith to return the aforPsaid 23 sheep and 10 goats and 
any increase thereof to plaintiff at the said Hight Hand House. 
(3) That defendant be ordered to refrain from interfering 
with any of the aforesaid stock in the future, and from 
diverting any of the same to the said Great House or else­
where. 

The plea was to the effect that the plaintiff was not the 
wife of the late Sorwidi Mngonongwana in the Hight Hand 
House and that the shePp and goats were Great Honse pro­
perty. 
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After hear ing eYid<'nC'e the Assistant Xative Commissioner 
entered the following judgment: -

1. Plaintiff is deelared Hight Hand House widow of the 
late Sorwidi. 

2. The stock in question, Yiz.: 23 ~heep and ten goats are 
dedared Right Hand House propert~· and their return 
to plaintiff is ordered. 

3. An order restraining defendant from intPrfering; with 
stock in future. 

Defendant to pay costs. 

Against this judgment an appeal was noted on the fol­
lowing grounds: -

1. Defendant i:-- the he ir of the Right Hand House of the 
late Sorwidi l\T ngonongwana, and also guardian of the 
proJwrty and persons in the said house. 

2. That as such he is the owner of, and entitled to the 
possession of the said stock, and 

3. Also entitled to deal with the said stoc·k. 

Applic·ation is now made, after due notice to r espondent , 
to amend, amplify and add to the grounds of appeal in the 
following manner:-

(u) 

(b) 

That in as much as respondent claimed a declaration 
of rights that certain sheep and goats were either her 
personal property or loaned to her, she was bound by 
her summons and the trial Court acted irregularly in 
giving her a judgment declaring her to be the Right 
Hand widow of the late Sorwidi and appellant refers 
to the allegations in Par. 3 of the Particulars of claim 
in the action in particular. 

That upon the facts , as found by the Court below, 
plaintiff failed to provP that the 23 sheep and 10 goats 
in question in the suit were personal or nqoma property 
belonging to her and defendant should accordingly have 
been absolved from the instance or awarded a final 
\'Prdict on tlw issue. 

(c) That the Trial Court acted irregularly in declaring the 
said 23 sheep and 10 goats to be the property of the 
late Sorwidi's Right-hand House as plaintiff' s claim is 
based on the allegation that they arP either her 
personal property or that of a third party. 

(d) That the order restraining the appellant's rights, as 
owner, was not compet0nt of the Trial Court, haYing 
regard to the nature of the claim, which was neither 
for an ord0r of support or maintenance , nor for the 
removal of defendant from his position as the lawful 
custodian of the said sheep and goats and as respondent's 
guardian aePording to Xative Custom. 

Respond0nt's attorney object0d to the granting of the 
application, relying upon Rule 22 of Government Notice 
No. 2254 of 1928, which provides that in the hearing of an 
appeal the parties shall be limited to the grounds stated in 
the notice of appeal, exce pt where the ap1wllant is not 
represent0d by a lPgal practitioner and was not so rc•pres<'nt<'d 
in the Native CommissionC'r's Court. Th0 meaning of this 
rule is, in the opinion of this Court, that the partiPs will not 
ordinarily b0 allow0d to argue upon any points not nwnticmcd 
in the notice of appeal but that do0s not preclude the Court, 
upon application, in terms of Rule 19 of the aforC'said 
GovPrnment Notice, from nllo\\'ing additional grounds of 
appeal to bP p11t in in suita hie casPs. 
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ln thl' case of Aaron Xgqabayo vs. Mpiyousa Bolokodlela 
(1933 N .A., i6) the Court said, inter aliu: " In the same way 
that,' notwithstanding the rules, this Court will allow an 
appPllant to urge on appeal a ground not stat ed in his notice 
of appeal, provided it is not exclusively one of procedure, it 
is felt that the same privilege should be accorded to a 
respondent, otherwise the Court may find itself in this position 
that it ,rill have to confirm a judgment based on an erroneous 
conception of the law governing the case--even if the 
application be refused it will still be incumbent on the Court 
of its own motion to raise the question of illegality." 

In tlw case of Poselo Qashilanga vs. Ntsintsi }ltuyedwa 
(1936 N.A.C., 89) application was also made for the inclusion 
of a ground of appeal not contained in the original notice of 
appeal. Respondent's attorney objected on the ground that 
it raised an entirely new defence which was prejudicial to the 
respondent but the Court, following the decision in ::\Igabo vs. 
Bolokodlela (supra) granted the application, as it was of 
opinion that there was no prej udice to r espondent , the point 
was merely one of law which did not require evidence to be 
called to meet it . 

While this Court will not readily accede to applications for 
additional grounds of appeal to be filed , it is of opinion that 
the present case is one, in which its indulg<>nce should be 
exercised , the respondent not being prejudicPd tlH'reby. 

The application is accordingly granted with costs. 

In this case the Assistant Native Commissioner seems 
entirely to have ignored the claims in the summons and has 
given a judgment upon what he imagined was the issue 
between the parties. 

The claim of the plaintiff was that she was the owner in her 
own Tight and by Nqoma of some 83 sheep, and also that 
certain ten goats are the property of the Right Hand House. 
It is true that she states that the sheep all appertain to tha t 
House, but this is meaningless in view of her evidence. In 
the prayer to the summons she asks for a declaration of rights 
that she is the mYner or lawful possessor of the afo resaid 
sheep and goats and is entitled to keep and control them at 
the said Right Hand House. 

The plaintiff then proceeds t o call evidence. Her own 
statement is a mass of contradictions but it would appear that 
her allegation is that some of the 83 sheep are the progeny of 
sheep nqomaed to her by her father or purchased from their 
wool sold by her , while others are the progeny of four sheep 
nqomaed to her by a mythical Gaika man who lives beyond the 
K l'i. 

Now if her statement is true none of these sheep appertain 
to the Right Hand House of the late Sorwidi l\Jngonongwana. 

In regard to the goats, plaintiff has given two versions. 
First that her husband exchanged a hamel from the Right 
Hand House for two ewe goats which have incrPased to ten 
and then that the hamel which was exchangPd came o11t of the 
nqoma slH'<'P· She does, however, cla im these goat s as hPr own 
property. 





Kow the Assistant Natin' Conunissioner did not believe the 
evidence for the plaintiff as to the slwep bnt found that the 
twenty-thrL'O sheep and ten goats taken by defendant bt•longed 
to the Hight Hand House " ·hich was something he was not 
askt•tl to do. According to the summons he was asked to 
declare that the plaintiff is tlw owner or lawful possesso1· of 
the stock. She clearly is not the owner and if it reallv is 
Pstate stock then also· she is not the lawful possessor. · 

ft is quite irregular for a judicial officer to enter a judgment 
which is not claimed in the summons. It was argued in this 
Court that the real issue between the parties was that tlw 
stock was Right Hand House propert:v. lf that is so thPn it 
has been very succcssfnlh· hidden both in the summons ancl 
the e,·iclence. · It is not fo'r tl1is Cmu·t to assume a claim which 
is not set forth d<>finitdy. 

\V<> are Pntirely in agreenwnt with the Assistant NativP 
Commissioner in his rejC'ction of the evidence on behalf of thP 
plaintiff that the 23 slwPp taken by defendant really belonged 
to a Gaika who had nqomaed them to her , bnt cannot follow 
why he should for that reason have d eclared them to be Right 
Hand House stock. This surely is illegal. 

Plaintiff does not claim that this is so and dC'fendant says 
they belong to the Great House . Upon what principle th~n 
does the Assistant Native Commissioner gi,·e a finding upon 
which there is no evidence? 

As stated above the plaintiff claimed that she was the owner 
or lawful possessor of the sheep and goats in question and in 
the opinion of this Court she has failed to JHo,·e that, and 
absolution from the instance should have been granted. The 
appeal succeeds therefore on ground (b) of the additional 
reasons for appeal. This being so it is unnecC'ssary to consider 
the other grounds of appeal. 

The result is that the appeal is allowed with costs and the 
judgment in the Court below altered to one of absolution from 
the instance with costs. 

If the defendant is refusing to support plaintiff she has her 
remedy but should bring her action in proper form. 
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C'.\SJ•: Xo. 11. 

ROBERT MABUYA vs. WII..LIAM MLONYENI . 

BuTTEUWOHTH: 20th }lay, 1938. Before K N. Braatvedt, 
Esq., Ac·ting Prel'ident, and }Jessrs. A. G. Strachan and 
H. F. )[arsberg, l\Iembers of the N.A.C. 

Animals-Stabbing of O.c-Ujj'e1· of compensation--Claim for 
£lamages-l'ractifr,-Dismissal of s11:nunons on ground 
that Plaintiff hwl compounded a crime-No evidence of 
fompmmdi·ng-8itmmo rM wrnngf?t dismissed. 

(Appeal from Native Commissioner's Court, Kentani.) 
Case No. 1-!7 of 1936. 

In this matter Appella nt, who was l'laintiff in the Court 
below, elaimed £-!. lOs. damages for the death of an ox stabbcu 
by Defendant. 

The summo11s alleged that on being questioned Defendant 
admitted the stabbing and offl'red to pay the amount claimed. 

Exception was taken to the summons as disclosing no cause 
of action in that Plaintiff had compounded the crime of cattle 
killing. 

This exc·eption was overruled and a plea was then filed 
denying the killing of the ox, the making of the admission and 
the offer of reparation. 

To the plea n replication was filed denying the compoundi11g 
of a crime. 

\\'lwn the !tearing took place it came before a different 
judicial officer, and after Plaintiff's case had been presented, 
on the npplieation of Defendant's attorney the summons was 
dismissed with costs on the grounds that Plaintiff had com­
pounded a fe lony . 

• \ppeal has been noted against this decision on the following 
ground,;:-

1. That there is no rnle of our law which I'equires the 
Appellant to prosecute the Respondent before suing for 
compensation. 

2. That the action was based on a claim for damages 
sustained by the Appellant, and arising from the 
stabbing of a beast, the property of "\ppellant, by the 
l{espondent, and which wrongful aet he alleges the 
Respondent admitted. 

3. That the daim is not based on an illegal or an immoral 
contra('t at all, nor do the particulars of claim in the 
Appellant's summons aver any such contract or any 
eriminal offence; that no illegality appeared from the 
the facts before the Native Commissioner whereby he 
should have refused to hear the case on the merits, 
especin lly as the Respondent's exception to the summons 
had already been overruled; and that as the Hespon­
clent did not formally allege illegality in his pll:'a , th<' 
Native Commissioner erred in dismissing the Appellant's 
summons before he, the Native Commissioner, had 
inYestigated all the facts of the case and had heard 
evidence of both the Appellant and the H.espondent and 
their witnesses. 

It seems hardly necessary to nbspn·e that if in fact Plaintiff 
had ueen guilty of C(JI11pounding a c·rime h<' would not lw able 
to succeed, for no Conrt would Pnforee a contract based on 
this olfen('e whic·h is defined in BPII's Ll•gal Di!'tionary as " .\n 
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agreement when· by, for a consideration, a person injured 
agrees to refrain from prosecuting or if possible to discontinue 
a prosecution ". 

AcTording to the evidenc0-and in passing it may be said 
that the admission made by Defendant tu the ~ub-Headman 
in the presence of the Headman is admissible evidence-what 
actually occurred is this:-

Plaintiff says a meeting of men was called in conne<.:tion 
with this matter and that Defendant, on being questioned, 
stat<>d: " l stabbed it. 1 am asking for pardon. I stabbed it 
by accident. 1 will pay for it "; and later: " Defendant 
said: ' I stabbed the ox by accident as it was scattering my 
thatch grass. ' " . Again: " Defendant was not handed into 
eustod,· on this admission. Defendant admitted and at the 
same time begged me> to allow him to pay in l\Iarch. He did 
not beg me not to cha rge him. I did not charge him. I know 
it is a cnminal offence to stab anotlwr' s beast. Defendant 
begged me to allow him to pay for the beast. If he had not 
promised to pay me the £-!. 10s. 1 would have charged him 
criminally. The reason I did not charge him is because he 
promised to pay me "; and finally: " I did not know the 
difference between a civil and a criminal matter. \Ylwn I 
found the lwast and ihe person who stabbed it, L merely 
wanted him to raise my beast .... No mention was made of 
criminal ac-tion at any time during this investigation." 

Nowhere in this evidence is there anything tu show that 
there was any agreement to refrain from prosecuting the 
defendant in return for a consideration nor , in fact, is there 
an;rthing to show that Defendant actually committed any 
crime. Defendant's excuse, according tu Plaintiff , is that he 
stabbed the ox by ac~ident , and if that is so he would not be 
cr iminally liable. Further evidence may show that the stab­
bi n;;; was not accidental, but the Assistant Native Commis­
sioner was not justified in coming to the conclu sion that a 
crime had been committed without hearing all the evidence, 
more particulary as Plaintiff seeks to be r eimbursed in the 
total sum of £6. lOs. for the death of his beast at which 
figure he valued it , and there was therefore no valuable con­
sideration or reward in the legal sense for refraining from 
prosecution even if such agreement had been made. 

As there is no evidence of the compounding of a crime the 
Assistant Native Commissioner erred in dismissing the 
summons. 

The appeal io, allowed with costs, the judgm0nt in the Court 
below set aside and the case returned to be heard on its merits. 

<' .\SE Xo. 1~. 

BENSON BALA vs. NGEMTU MATIWANE. 

BuTTERWOitTII: 20th l\la,Y, 193o. Before E. N. Braatvedt, 
Esq., Acting !'resident, and 1\lPssrs. A. G. Strachan and 
H. F . .Marsberg, l\lembc>rs of th e N .A. C. 

lntrrplcadn· A_ction: Awurd of co.~ts to zmrfy parrtial/y 
SIICCess jul. 

(Appeal from NativP Commissioner's Court, Nqamakwe.) 
CasP I\ o. 24:3 of 19:-li . 

This is an inte rpleadl'r action in whic·h is elaimed CPrtain 
three cattle, 1:3 slwep, and OllP horse• , attachPd at the iustance 
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of present He~pondent in pursuance of a judgment obtained 
Ly him against one Andrew Bala,. father ?f claimant, who is 
now the Appellant. All the stock 111 questwn was attached in 
possession of the judgment debtor, thus throwing the onus of 
proof of ownership upon Claimant. 

The NatiYP Commissioner found for Claimant in respect of 
the sheep and the horse but declared the cattle executable and 
made no order as to costs. 

From this judgment appeal is brought, firstly against the 
order declaring the cattle executable, and secondly against 
the order as to costs. 

In rPgard to the cattle, Claimant maintains that he pro­
vided the marriage outfit for his sister and that a week after 
the wedding his father allotted him two of the dowry cattle 
paid for Ius sister (the third beast claimed is the progeny of 
one of them). 

The only evidence led for Claimant was his own, and that 
of his father, the judgment debtor concerned , and they say 
that the adult cattle were branded B.B. when acquired in 
1933 and were left at the judgment debtor's kraal for his 
support. Moreover, they admit that the only other person 
present when the allotment was made was one Paul, uncle 
to Claimant. This person was not called in support of the 
claim, it being stated that he was at the time unwell. By 
Native Custom such an allotment of dowry as is here alleged 
must be publicly made and in the presence of as many members 
of the family as possihlc before it is regarded as effective 
and it is therefore strange that not even Paul was called to 
add weight to this testimony. In his evi dence Claimant's 
father states that the brand on one of the beasts was plainly 
visible at the date of attachment in November, 1937, yet 
when examined by the pres iding judicial officer in February, 
1938, no semblance of a brand could be found. 

The animal is stated to haYe been branded in 1933, and if 
the brand endured so clearly for four years it is remarkable 
that it should disappear in the ensuing three months. It is 
furthermore significant that the other animals also bear no 
brand, as pointed out by the Native Commis~oner in his 
reasons tor judgment, despite Claimant's assertion that he 
habitually went to his father's kraal during the December 
school vacations in order to earmark his sheep. No reason 
is adduced as to why he did not take the opportunity of 
branding the cattle at the same time. 

In Yiew of the surrounding circumstances, this Court is not 
prepared to say that the K ative Commissioner erred in coming 
to the conclusion he did, and the appeal on the first ground 
must therefore fail. 

The second ground of appeal is worded as follows:-
(a) That as the Appellant was successful and obtained 

judgment for a substantial amount, he was entitled to 
an order awarding him costs. 

(b) That the interpleader suit became necessary owing to 
Hespondent's refusal to release the stock from attach­
ment; he had sufficient opportunity of releasing the 
13 mixed shePp, 4 lambs, and Lay gelding on reeci,·ing 
c:la1m from Appellant. 

(c) That there was no misconduct by the Appellant, or 
other exceptiona l circumstances why he should havP 
been deprived of his costs. 

(d) That the discretion allowed the N ativc Commissioner as 
to thE' award or otherwise of costs was not judicially 
exercised in thP circumstances. 





26 

lt cannot he disputed that the general rule as to costs is 
that the successful party is entitled tu his eosts a nd it was 
laid down in the ease of Godloza vs. Smith 193~ E.D.L.D. 154 
that the principles to be applied in the awarding of costs in 
interpleader matters are t hP same as in trial matters. 

That casP was taken on appeal on the question of costs, 
the lower Court having a wardPd costs on the whole issuP to 
the Claimant in a n interpleader suit which succeeded in part 
only. 'l'he eircumstances wPre that oxen and a wagon had 
been attached at different times a nd places under the Hame 
writ and t he claimant was su ccessful only in respect of the 
oxen , the wagon bPing declared executable. 'l'he Supreme 
Court held that the issues were thus clearly separate and 
distinct a nd that the .J[agistrate should have awarded the 
costs of each issue to the party successful in that issue. 

1 n the present case all the animals attached were found at 
the kraal of t he judgment Debtor at one and the same timl', 
and all we rP claimed to be the property of Appellant. There 
would thus appea r to lw no g round for claiming that separate 
and disti net issues were involved in this matter such as werP 
r efern•d to in t he case of Godloza n;. Smith (suzm)) :md the 
ordinary rules in rega rd to costs should therefore apply. 

Indeed , no co ntention was raised in the lo\rer Court that 
more than the one issue was invoh-ed, a nd it is only on 
appeal that it has been argued on behalf of the Respondent 
that such Is the case. 

With that Yiew this Court is unable to agree and holds 
that there are not sepa r ate and distinct issu es involved and 
that the Appellant is entitled to hi::; costs on the whol~ issue. 

The appeal on the second ground is therefore uph eld and 
the judgment of the Native Commissioner as to costs altPrecl 
to read " Defendant to pay costs ". 

At the request of Counsel, Claimant m the Court below is 
declared to ha,·e bee n a necessary witness. 

BENSON BALA vs. NGEMTU MATIWANE. 

ADDITIONAL JUDGMENT IN THE ABOVE-l\IENTIONED CASE. 

(A ppeal from the Native Commissioner's Court, Nqamakwe.) 
Case No. 243 of 1937. 

The R esponden t obtained a judgment against the Appel­
lant's father , Andrew Bala , and a \nit of exPcu tion for the 
judgment debt and cost s was issu ed . The Court Messenger 
a ttached a black heifer , a red cow with white face, a black 
bull, a bay gelding, and 17 slwep. The Appellant claimed 
that all the animal s attached were hi :s property. Respondent 
did not admit tlw elaim, a nd interpleader action rPsulted. 

The Native Commissioner, after hearing all aYailable 
evidence, declared that t he cattle atta<·hed WNP Pxecutable, 
but that the sheep and horse were not executa ble. HP madP 
no order as to costs. It is against this judgnwn t t hat the 
present appeal is brought. 

The Appellant, who is a teacher by profpssion, l<>ft his 
father' :s kraa l some years ago. All t he animals which wcr<' 
attached were found in his father's kraal, and were entNed 
in hi s fathPr' s name in the dipping tank register. The slwPp, 





it would seem, bore the Appellant 's earmark, and the horse 
was branded L.D., being the initia ls of a Native (now 
deceased) from whom the Appellant stat es that he bought it. 
The cattle were adjudged by the Native Commissioner not to 
he branded despite Appellant 's assertion to the contrary. The 
Appellant did not discharge the onus which rested on him 
to prove that the cattle were his property. His story on the 
point appears to be a highly improbable one. One of the 
cattle attached-namely a black heifer - was the animal which 
the Hespondent had claimed from Appellant's father and fo r 
which he had obtained judgment. In spite of this fact the 
Appellant claimed it as his property in the interpleader 
action. 

On the evidence before him th e Native Commissioner cor­
rectly held that the cattle claimeu were executable. 

In regard to the question of costs, the appeal is brought 
on the following grounds:-

(a) That the judgment as to the costs is against the law. 

(b) That as the Appelant was sm'C'essful and obtained judg­
ment for a substantial amount he was entitled to an 
order awarding him costs. 

(r) That the interpleader suit became necessary owing to 
R espondent' s r efusal to release the stock from attach­
m ent, h e had sufficient opportunity of releasing the 13 
mi xed sheep , -! lambs and bay gelding on receiving claim 
from Appellant . 

(d) That there was no misconduct by the Appellanti or 
other exceptional circumstances why he should 1ave 
been deprived of his costs. 

(e) Tbat the discretion allowed the Native Commissioner as 
to the award or otherwise of costs was not judicially 
exercised in the circumstances. 

The Native Commissioner gives as his r eason for making no 
order as to costs that the Appellant succeeded only to the 
extent of approximately half the value of the claim. 

lt has been held in man~· cases that the Court has a judicial 
discretion as to costs, and that a successful varty should, as 
a general rule, be awarded costs. In the case of F ripp vs. 
Gibbon & Co. A.D. 1913, de Vilhers, J.P., said: " Questions 
of costs are always important, and someti mes complex and 
difficult to determine, and in leaving the :Magistr ate a discre­
tion t he law contemplates that he should take into considera­
tion the circumstances of each case, ca r efully weighing the 
various issues in the case, the conduct of the parties and a ny 
other circumstances which may have a bearing upon the 
question of costs, a nd then make such order as to costs as 
would be fair and just between the parties." 

Although, therefore, the general rule is that a suc('essful 
party should be awarded <·osts- and it was held in the case 
of Godhloza vs. Smith KD.C. 132" t hat costs in intPr­
pleader proceedings are governed hy the same principle which 
applies to ordinary actions-yet the Court has a judicial dis­
cretion to depart fro m this rule where there arc exceptional 
circumstances which justi fy sueh departure in th e interests of 
fairness and justiee. 

The Xat 1ve CommissionPr does not say that in his opinion 
such special circumsta nc cs were di sclosed in the present ease. 
It was on the g round that th e Claimant (A ppellant) had oul.v 
parti a lly succeeded that he made no order as to costs. It is 
argU1'd on behalf of the respondent that thcrP are' two issues 
in the case-namely tlw claim to the shcq> a nd horse, and 
the claim to the catt le-and that as each of thP two parties 
sn<·cPe·d.ed each should h avt> hc<' n awarded costs in regard tu 
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the issue on whi ch lw was successful. I do no think, howe\·er, 
t hat t his contention is correct. All the animals were in the 
possess ion of t he judgment debtor when attached, and they 
were attached on hP same day and under the same writ. 

The Appella nt must have been aware when he claimed the 
cattle as bei ng his property that his claim was false. 'l'he 
evidence est ablishes t hat fact. The Hespondent was compelled 
to ca ll five witnesses to prove that Appellant's claim was 
wrong. I n these circumstances the Native Commissioner could 
r ightly ha ve held t hat therp were exceptional circumstances in 
t he casP which would have justified him in making no order 
as to costs, 

\Ve :J I" P, however, bound by the nword, and for the reasons 
stated I somewhat reluctantly agree with my brotlwrs that 
the a ppeal must suceed on the quPstion of costs. 

E. N. BnAATVEnT. 
Ac·ting President of the Court. 

Butterworth, 20th l\Iay, 1938. 

CAS~~ ~o. ]:3. 

TLALINYANE MOJAKISANE vs. ALBERT M. C. K HO APA. 

KoKSTAD : 1st .J nne, 1938. Before E. N. Braatvedt, Esq., 
Acting P residen t and Messrs. J. Addison and F. E. 
Pi ukerton, Members of the ~.A.C. 

Marriage-Dowry-Husband failing to pay during subsis­
t ence of his marriage-Danghters born and grown up at 
kraal of uncle-Claim by father for daughter's dowTy in 
possession of uncle-CownteTClaim by uncle for dowry in 
respect of girl's nwtheT-Plea that payment of dowry 
u-ai !Jed by woman's father-As dowry fixed by Basuto 
Custom agreement to waive must be pToved conclusively­
Set off of da1tghtrr' s dolPry against that due for mother­
Costs. 

(A p peal from Native Commissioner's Court, ~Iatatiele.) 

Case No. 162 of 1937, 

In this casP Plaintiff· sued Defendant for the return of 
his daughter, one l\I oroana. The particulars of the claim are 
as follows :-

" L Plaintiff is the father of a female nam-ed Moroana, 
born to h is wife Ell en Nthoesele l\Iojakisane in or a bout 
1912, and is, under Native custom, the legal guardian 
of the said daughter. 

2. W hen the said Moroana was about 5 days old, the said 
E lle n Nthoesele l\Iojakisane died, and Plaintiff, at 
t he request of t he mother of the said Ellen Nthoesele 
.:\Iojakisane and of Defendant, left the said Moroana 
with her. 

3. Fpon the death of the said mother, !~lieu Ntshoescle 
l\Iojakisa ne, Plaintiff called upon the Defendant, who 
was t he Pldest son and heir to the Estate Khoapha, to 
return the said daughtPr to him. 

4. Upon representations made to him hy the Df'fPndant, 
Pla intiff agreed to allow the saicl daughter l\loroana 
to remaiu with Defpndnnt for a furtlwr period to he 
dPtermiuahle u pon Plaintiff's plPasm·p, 





5. Subsequently thereto plaintiff has called upon Defendant 
to return to him his aforesaid daughter Moroana, 
but despite this demand therefor , Defendant ha s re­
fused to do so, and the said l\loroana sti ll r esides with 
the Defendant. 

To this he added a further claim for the immediate delivery 
by Defendant to him of 18 head of cattle or value £90 (later 
reduced to 14) paid to Defendant by Letibane l\lajoro 1\Ioli­
lokoane and l\Inso l\lajoro on account of dowry in respect of 
the said l\foroana. 

Defendant pleaded: -
1. As to paragraph 5 of particulars, Defendant states that 

l\Ioroana is and wa s at the da te of summons a Major 
and this being so Plaintiff has no legal right to claim 
her r eturn at all , much less to claim her return from 
Defendant. 

2. That in view of paragraph 1 hereof the a llegations in 
paragraphs 1 , 2 , 3 and 4 of summons are irrelevant. 
However paragraph 1 is admitted; paragraph 2 is 
admitted as substantially correct, save that Defendant 
made no request as t herei n stated ; paragraph 3 is 
admitted: paragraph 4 is not admitted. 

3. As to paragraph 5, it is admitted that l\Ioroana lives 
at Defendant's kraal , where, so far as Defendant is 
concerned. she is very welcome to continue to stay, 
Defendant d enying that he has any control over her 
whatsoerer as she is a major. 

Defendant prays fo r judgment with costs. 
and also filed the a dditional plea: -

(a) As to the original claim for a person or l\Ioroana 
Defendant reiterates his origina l plea which he prays 
may he considered as inserted herein. 

(b) As to the additional claim for l\Ioroana's dowry Defen­
dant states:-
(1) His deceased father duly adopted l\Ioroana as his 

daughter and her dowry would belong to D efendant 
who is the eldest son and heir of his fathe r, 
l\loroana being; his adopted sister and was brought 
up as such. 

(2) That furt her in ,.iC'w of the counterclaim herein the 
Defendant claims the right to set off any dowry 
received by him for l\Ioroana against the dowry 
due to him for h er mother by Plaintiff in the 
event of the Court holding that Defendant is not 
entitled to Moroana's dowry in terms of the pre­
ceding paragraph (1). 

(3) That in a ny case Defendant has none of the dowry 
(whi ch was 14 head of cattle) of l\loroana to hand 
to Plaintiff as she has broken off h er engagem ent 
and any cattle received have been returned." 

Plaintiff in his plea to the claim in reconvention denies that 
any dowry whatsoever was payable in respect of his marriage 
to Ellen t he mother of 1\loroana, it having been agreed that no 
such dowry would be payable on the ground t h at the obser­
vance of the dowrv custom was against the tenets of the 
Paris Evangelical ·}fissionary Society to which the parties 
to the agreement belonged. 

Judgment was ent ered -
(1) for Plaintiff (in connmtion) for 1 ~ head of cattl<• or 

their value £70; 
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(2) for Plaintiff (in n•t·onvention) for 20 head of cattle, one 
horse, 10 sheep or their Yalue £110. No further order 
as to costs. 

Against the first part of this judgment Defendant appealed 
on the following grounds:-

l. The judgment depri ving Defendant of the right to set 
off l\Ioroana 's dowry against any dowry due to him for 
Ellen was against Basuto Custom in that as the 
Court hold!i he was in possession of fourteen head of 
cattle he could set those off because of that fact. 
Further he had expended some of the animals. Further 
in any ease according to Basuto Custom he could set 
off the whole of l\Ioroana's dowry as and when received, 
or to be received, b,,. him in the circumstances disclosed 
of record. 

2. The judgment that Defendant was not entitled to 
}loroana 's dowry by 1 eason of her adoption was against 
the weight of evidence and Native Custom. 

3. Defendant havmg succeeded in the disputed (']aim for 
F,llen's dowry was entitled to costs in reconvention. 

Plaintiff lodged a cr')ss appeal in respect of the secon,l 
portion of t)JP judgment on the grounds :-

l. The judgment is against the weight of eYidence and the 
probabilities. 

2. The Court should haYe given judgment in f.n·oni' of 
Defendant-in-reconvention with costs on both conven­
tional and rt>conventional claims. 

3. The Defendant <Plaintiff-in-reconvention) failed to dis­
charge the onus of proving the claim in n•convencion. 

4. The magistrate erred in saying tha t Plaintiff said that 
" dowr~· w:ls allowet! after marriage '', and that the 
witness Shadrack l\Iojakisane said chat "dowry was 
allowed before but not after marriage" by the French 
}lission. His misconception and misconstruction of the 
e-vidence on these points have obviously seriously pre­
judiced his judgment. 

The points which call for det'ision by this Comt are:-
Has Plaintiff established the alleged agreement that no 

dmny was payable for his wife Ellen, the mother of l\Ioroana? 
Has Defe ndan t pro>ed his allegation, that )loroana was 

adopted hy either his father or himself? 
Has Defendant the right to set off ::\Ioroana' s dowry against 

dowry due to him for Ellen? 

The question of costs: 
In view of the fact that Basuto Custom proYides for the 

pa~·ment of a fixed dowry. the onus of proving a departure 
from this custom rested on Plaintiff, and in order to set 
up a state of affairs contrary to Native Custom, clear and 
conclusive evidence is required to satish· t his Court, that 
an agreement to ""aive the payment of dowry, was duly 
entered into. It is a \YPll known fact that even those natiYes , 
who occupy a high place in the socia l scale. and have come 
under missionarr influence, still strictb· obsene the dowry 
cu,tom. eYen though they marry ac·cording to chri~tian rit0s . 

Plaintiff states that he married !':lien in 18.~9. that he 
paid no down· for her, owing to tlw attitude of cli~approval of 
the Church. He admits, howeYer, that the que~tion of dmvn' 
was enqui red into hy the Chi<•f in 192.'1. at the instanc·<'. of 
Charlie Khoapa, tlw broth0r of EIIPn, who "·as dPm ;•ndmg 
dowry. H e went on to say that in complianf'r with this 
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demand, eattle were offered to Charlie, but in spite of his 
demand, Char lie refused to accept dowry, saying that it 
was uot in accordance with their custom that dowry should 
be paid for .Ellen, as they were adherents of the French 
Chureh. The Plaintiff went on to say: " The Church wishes 
to avoid cohabition before marriage, but did not object to 
dowry payment after marriage. lt is the same position 
to-day. \Ve were prepared to pay dowry, but Defendant 
prevented himself tram getting any. Don't know why we 
wen• prepared to pay betore, and then not prepared to pay 
after marnage. \Vou't admit that French Church allowed 
dowry after marriage. No l\Iinister ever told me that Church 
did not allow dowry ." 

Shadrack , a minister of religion and brother of the Plaintiff, 
is the only witness called to support Plaintiff. He states: 
" The Frem·h Church clisconnteuances payment of dowry. If 
it fo und that dowry had been paid after a marriage the person 
who paid the dowry would be excommunicated. The Church 
did not object to dowry payment before marriage." In the 
face of such contradictory e\·idence this Court is not satisfied 
that it was agreed that no dowry was payable for Ellen, 
particularly as Plaintiff admits that the rule of the Church 
has not deterred him from claiming and r eeei\·ing dowries 
for his owu daughter. 

There is no satisfactory e\·idence that l\Ioroana was adopted 
by Defendant, nor was the matter of adoption seriously 
pressed on appeal. It is common cause that :Moroana was 
born at Defe ndant' s k raal and has always lived there, and 
there is little doubt that Defendant expected to benefit by 
her dowry eventually, as a set off agai!Jst the dowry due to him 
for her mothet· Ellett. Assuming this to he the case, Defen­
dant would be Pntitlcd to resist any claim for the delivery 
of dowry paid for l\Ioroana and this Court is of opinion 
that, having failed to pay the dowry due for Ellen Plaintiff 
was not entitled to claim l\Ioroana's dowry of 14 head of 
cattle, which Defendant admits having received. Defendant 
has a clear right to set off l\Ioroana's dowry against that c1ue 
to him in respect of Plaintiff's wife, Ellen. 

The appeal brought by Defendant on the question of costs 
succeeds and that brought by Plaintiff is dismissed and the 
judgment of the Native Commissioner is altered to read 
for Plaintiff in reconvention for 20 head of cattle, 1 horse, 
10 sheep or their value, £110, less 14 head of cattle or their 
\·alue £70. (Dowry received for l\Ioroana) with costs in this 
Court and the Court below. 

E. N. Braah·edt, Esq .. acting President, dissents. 

TLALINYANE MOJAKISANE vs. ALBERT M. C. KHOAPA. 

KoKSTAD: Dissenting judgment - in the above-mentioned f'ase. 

(.\ppeal fl'Om XatiYe Commissioner's Court. 1\Iatatiele). 
Ca!';e No. 162 of Hl:37. 

The Appc>Haut in couvention was the Plaintiff in thP Court 
of the Native Commissioner. HP claimed the return of his 
daughter Moroana. 

When the case came into Court he obtainf'd pertnission 
to inr·l11de an additional claim for 18 head of cattlP or their 
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value, £90, being the dowry alleged to have been received by 
the Defendant in respect of the said J\Ioroana. 

ln regard to the claim for the return of the gi rl the Defen­
dant pleaded that she wa s a major , and that for that reason 
t he Plaintiff had no legal right to elaim her. Ht> denied that 
he had any eontrol over her for t he sam e reaso n. 

'\'ith respeet to t he ela im for dowry the Defendant fil ed 
a counter -c laim for 20 head of cattle, 10 sheep and a horse 
or a lteruatively for .£5 for eaeh head of large stock and 10s. 
for each head of sma ll stoek , be ing t he dowry which he alleged 
was du e by t he Plaintiff for Moroana' s mothe r. 

Defenda n t's plea to the additional claim brought by the 
Plaintiff wa s as follows: -

(1) That his late father had adopted J\Ioroana as his 
daughter and t hat Defendant as th e eldest son and 
heir of his father was entitled to her dowry. 

(2) That in view of the counter-claim he had the right to set 
off any dowry reeeived by him for l\Ioroana against the 
dowry due to him for her mother in the eve nt of the 
Court holding that D efendant was not entitled to 
.i\Ioroana 's dowry. 

(:3) That in any case the Defendant had none of the dowry 
which was 14 head of eattle) of Moroana to hand to 
Plaintiff as she had broken off her engagement, and 
the cattlt> recei,·ed lwd been returned. 

Plaintiff in conv ention is the father of the gi rl l\Ioroana. 
The mother of the gi rl was named Ellen. She was a sister 
of Defendant 's late father Charlie. Ellen died a few davs 
a fter gi,·ing birth to l\Ioroana. She was eonfined at her 
father 's kraal and died there. H er mother Nolina (grand­
mother of Defendant) asked the Plaintiff to allow her to keep 
the child , and he ga,·e his eonsent. l\Ioroana grew up 
under Kolina's ca re in the kr;Jal now in eharge of the Defen­
dant (Respondent). Nolina died about two years ago. The 
Plaintiff (Appellant) went to the funeral. and there told t he 
Defendant \Vho was then in charge of the kraal (his father 
Cha rli e having apparently predeceased Nolina) that he wished 
to take )[oroana hack to hi s kraal. 

The Defendant and the girl objected to her going hack to 
he r father. She remained with D efendant , became e ngaged 
to a man and 1-! head of ea t t le were paid for her by her 
intended husband. The cattle were r eceived h> the Defenda n t. 
'fhe Appellant thereupon instituted action . · 

The girl l\Ioroana :1-dmits in e,·idenee that she ·married in 
J anuary. 1938. She says t ha t t he dowr;\· cattle paid to 
Defendant in conventio.n (R espondent) were not u sed for 
her dowry outfit or clothing, and that sh e does not know 
what became of them. The Respondent states that h e ex­
pended five of the ca ttle on the girl' s marriage outfit and that 
the remaind 0r are in hi s possession althou gh he made attempts 
to restore them to the man who is now her husband. 

The Appellant married Ellen-the mother of l\Ioroana- in 
1RR9. He admits that he did not pay dowry for her. He 
states tl1at it was ag reed at the time that no dowry should 
he pnid for J•jllen. He stat0s that at the time he and Ellen's 
fa t her belonged to the Fr0n0h Chu reh whieh was oppose<! to 
the payment of dowry , and that it was for that reason that 
it wa s agreed t hat no dowrr should he paid. 

Tn 1923, after the death of Ellen's fath er , the Respondent's 
father Charli e made a claim before the Headm a n for Ellen's 
dowry. The evidPnce in regard to the Headman's decision 
is eonflicti ng. Respond en t states that t he H eadman ruled 
that dowr.v ~honld he paid, hut Appellan t states that judgment 
was givC>n in his favour. ne thnt it as it may t he fact 

~ 





remair.rs t!tat Ellen married Appell~nt 49 years ago and that 
no dann for dowry was brought bPiore anv Court during her 
fathet·'s lifetime. Appellant had four dauo.hters by Ellen and 
.Moroana is the youngest . The girls mar~·ied and App~llant 
recei ,·ed their dowry. 

The Native Commissioner ga,·e the following judgment:­
For Plaintiff in convention of 14 head of cattle or their 

\"alue £70. ' 

L<' or Plaintiff in reconvention for 20 head of cattle one 
horse, 10 sheep, or their value £110. No furthe r 'order 
as to costs. 

Hoth parties a re now appPaling against this judgmen t. 
l\Ir. Walker, for the Plaintiff in convention, argues that 

the Defendant (Plaintiff in reconvention) failed to disdrarae 
the onus of proving the claim in rPcom·ention. "' 

)Lr. Zietsmnn, for the Plaintiff in reconvention araues 
that l\Ioroana was adopted, and that his client was ' entrlled 
to her dowry. He furth er contends that he was entitled to 
costs in t he reconventional claim. 

It is perfectly clear that Respondent (Defendant in con­
vention) has received 14 head of cattle as dowry for ::\Ioroana, 
and also that the girl was never adopted by his father. Her 
dowry is payable to the Plaintiff in convention. 

Coming to the claim in reconvention we find that t he 
marriage of l\ioroana's parents took place 49 years ago, 
and that no claim for dowrv was made until 33 or 3-l 
years later when the matte r ~vas brought befo re the Head­
man after the death of Ellen's father. 

lt is not clear what the Headman's decision was, but 
no further action has been taken until now. l\Ioroana had 
three older sisters, and no claim for the dowry alleged 
to be due for her mother was made, when they married. The 
proper time to claim such dowry- if due-would have !wen 
when the first girl married. 

Tt is admitted by the Plaintiff in convention that he did 
not pay dowry for Ellen, and, in the absence of any agree­
ment to the contrary, he would be liable at any time since 
preseription is unknown to Native Law, but in view of the 
\·ery long time which has elapsed before the institution of 
action for recO\·ery, and the considerably strong evidence 
that Ellen's father agreed to waive any claim for dowry , 
it appears to me that the correct judgment on the recon­
ventional claim should have been an absolntion from th e 
instance. The R espondent has brought up and maintained 
~Ioroana since she was a babv, and he is entitled to com­
pensation for what he has expended on her behalf , hut that 
claim is not before the Court. 

E. N. BRAATVEDT. 
Acting President of the Conrt. 

Kokstad, 1st June, 1938. 

C'.\.SE Xo. U. 

NKWENKWEMBI GABIYANA vs. VOYIZANA QOLO . 

PoRT ST. Jouxs: 8th June, 1938. Before E. N. Braatvedt. 
Esq., Acting President and l\Iessrs. H. M. Nourse and 
l\l. Adams, Memhcrs of the ~.A.C. 

Chilrl-Riahts ill resulting from seduction prior to ma1Tioae 
by man other than woman's lms/J(Ind. 
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(Appeal from Natvir Commissionrr's Court, Bizana.) 
Case No. 83 of 19:37. 

The Hespondeut sued the .\.ppellant for a declaration of 
rights in respect of a child named Nomzingelezo. 

'l'he NatiYe Commissioner derlared that the Respondent 
was the chi ld's lawlnl g uardian and entitled to her custody, 
and ordered the Appellant to hand her oYer to thr Respon­
dent and to pay costs of the suit. 

The appeal is brought against t hi s order. 

The R espondent married the Appellant's sister l\lagabi­
yana in 19:34. She was pregnant by a man named ..:\Izantsi 
at the time of her marriage and in due rourse gave birth 
to the child Nomzingdezo. ln l\Iarrh 1937 ~Iagabiyana 
visited Appellant's kraal with her chi ld . When she re­
turned she r r ported that Appellant was keeping the rhild. 
Respondent demandPd that Appellant should deliver the child 
to him , but Appellant refused and summons was then issued 
aga inst him. 

Tlw Appellant states that ~lzantsi paid him two head of 
eattle on aecount of damages for having seduced and im­
pregnated 1\Iagabiyana. He alleges that Hespondent eloped 
with Magabiyana , but la ter paid five head of cattle as 
dowry and that consent to thr marriage was given on 
Uespondent 's promise that when the child was born and 
weaned it would be handed o1•er to him (Appellant). He 
admi ts that acrording to Nati1·r Custom-Pond(}--that natu­
ral father of the child , namely l\Jzantsi, will bP entitled to 
it when he has paid full damages, that is, fh·e head of cattle, 
but that until then, he (Appell ant) is entitled to its f'ustody. 

Appellant c·alled his two brothers Jamani Gabiyana and 
l\langala Gabiyana and his mother Magxiza Gahiyana who 
conoborat f'd his story. 

The Hespo ndent states that he was unawarP when he 
married l\Iagabiyana that she was pregnant hut that he dis­
eoYered her condition shortly afterwards, and that shf' c·on­
fessed t hat .l\Izantsi was responsible. He denies that he agrPed 
to hand the child over to Appellant, and states that no 
mention was made of the pregnanf'y when he married the girl. 
He further states that he paid 9 head of f'attle as clown· for 
her. H e is supported in full by Zekani l\Izipo who was an en­
tire!~, disi n terested witness, and who impressed the :NatiYe 
Commissioner when givi ng his eYidence. )lagabiyana \Yas 
called but proYed hostile and supports thP Appellant. 

The Native Commissioner in his rf'asons for judgment states 
that he was not impressed by Appellant's witnesses, parti­
cularly with l\Iagxiza and l\langala. He also mentions that 
it was quite oln·ions to thf' Court that Magabiyana was not 
speaking the truth, and that he was satisfied that Respon­
dent's story was the f'orrect one. A f'hild born in wedlof'k 
would under ~atiYe Law belong to the kraal of the husband 
of the mother, in the absenf'e of a spef'ial agi:Pement to the 
contrary. The onus lay on the Appellant to prove suf'h 
sp0eia l agrf'ement and tlw NatiYe Commissioner who had 
thf' witnesses before him was satisfied that his story was 
not true. This Court f'an find no reason for difff'ring from 
his finding. 

The appeal is dismissed with C'osts, and the Nati1·e Com­
missioner's judgment is f'onfirmf'd. 
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CASE No. 10. 

MH LABENI PA LAZA vs. MBUZWENI PALAZA. 

PoHT ST. JouNs: 8th June, 1938. Before E. N. Braatvedt, 
Esq., Acting President nnd Messrs. H. E. Bunn ami 
) I . Adam!l , l\Iembers of the ~.A.C. 

Estate of deceased twin brotheT-H eir to-Panda Custom. 

(Appeal from the Native Commissioner 's Court, 
Lusikisik i.) 

Case No. 207 of 1937). 

The facts as set out in the summons are that Plaintiff 
(now Hespondent) is the eldest son and heir of the late 
Palaza. Defendant {now Appellant ) is Respondent's younger 
brother in the same house and he had a twin brother named 
Gahiso, who died leaving two daughters , and no male issue. 

R espondent as eldest son and heir of Palaza claims an 
order of Court d eclaring him to be the legal guardian of 
and h eir to the said two girls and as such , entitled to their 
rPspec tive dowries. 

Appellant in reply states that according to Pondo Custom, 
he , as a twin brother of the deceased is the lawful h eir of 
the late Gabiso and that all rights in and to the esta t e are 
Yested in him. 

Vei'.Y definite customs have been accepted and are esta b­
lished on suc-cession to Native Estates and under thesP, 
the father and on his death his eldest son, in this case 
l\ihlabeni, should succeed to the estate of any younger 
brother who di eE. without male issue. To vary this estab­
lished custom in the ease of twins, as asked for by the 
Defendant, it is essential to produce the strongest of eYi­
dence of the existcnPe of the unknmn1 custom , suggested by 
Appellant. 

" ' hat evidence is the re on t his point ? 
Firstly, a member of the Hoy a l H ouse of Eastern Pondo­

land emphatieally denies the existence of such a custom. 
Secondly, the Native Assessors by a majority of 3 to 2 

eonfirm that no such custom is known to the Pondos. Their 
opinion is ex pressed as follows:-

" l\ipayipeli Nqwiliso speaking fo r himself a nd l\'lxetyelwa 
Dzuma and Ta t a Jiyajiya. 

According to our Pondo Custom, the usual fo rm of succes­
s ion is followed upon the death of a twi n brother, that is, 
the sun·iv ing t win does not of right sueeeed to the estatP, 
whic·h goes to t he man who would have succeeded had tiJ(')'e 
been no twin." 

Rimayile and Xabaniso state: -
" It is Pondo Custom for the surv1vm g male twin to 

sueeeed to the estat e of hi s deceased twi n brother to the <>xelu­
sion of a ll , except the deceased ' s malP issue. They are of 
the same stomach and are as one. " 

One of t he assessors aclmitted that prior to a un exation 
(18H4) it was not unusual for one of t he twins to lw. killed 
serretely by the insertion of earth in its mouth at timP of 
birth. 

As against the stong ly Psta hlishecl enstom that tlH' eldest 
brother succeeds to the estatP of any younger brothel' who 
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dies without male issue--the father being dead-there is 
tlw very meagerest of evidence that t his is varied in t he case 
of twin brothers. 

Thi s Court is of opinion that such evidence does not justify 
the acceptance of this as an established custom and the 
a ppeal is therefore dismissed with C'osts. 

CASE No. 16. 

GEORGE PEEL MPONGWANA vs. ELIJAH MQOQI . 

PonT ST. JoHNS: 8th .June, 1938. Before E. N. Braatvedt , 
Esq., Acting President and l\Iessrs. H. M. Nourse, and 
H . K Bunn , l\femhers of tlw K.A.C'. 

Glairn, by party married by christian rites, for a child, the 
resu-lt of his adulterous intercourse, refused by Court : 
Co nflict of rolonia l and Nati1'" Laws. 

(Appeal from Native Commissioner's Court, Libode) 
Case No. 156 of 1937. 

In this case Plaintiff , now Appellant , claimed a declaration 
of rights concernin g a g irl Nomahlubi and in his particulars 
of claim states as follows:-

1. That about five or six years ago he caused the pregnancy 
of one J erelina , daughter of Defendant. 

2. That the sa id J erelin a gave bi r th to a female child 
named Nomahlubi of whom Plaintiff is the father. 

3. That Plaintiff duly paid damages to Defendant for the 
said seduction and pregnancy and Plaintiff is the 
right ful owner according to Native Custom of the said 
Nomahlubi. 

Defendant while admitti ng the allegations contained in 
Plaintiff's summons, plea ds specially that both Plaintiff and 
Defendant are Christian Natives who are liv ing as such 
a nd who have ceased to follow Native Custom. That Plain­
tiff's claim based, on Native Custom is not applicable as same 
is totally opposed to the principles of Christianity and 
n atural justice and consequently Plain t iff has no claim to 
the child born of his adulterous intercourse with the woman 
Jerelina. 

It is common cause t hat both the Plaintiff and Defendant 
were married by Christian Rites. 

The Native Commissioner upheld the special plea and 
Plaintiff appealed. 

In the case of 1\Inintshana vs . .Ngqingili (.N.A.C. 5 p. 20) 
which is on a ll fours with the present ease, it was held t hat 
the Appellant ha ving married according to Christian Rites 
had no claim to the child born of his adulterous intercourse 
with another woman; that hi s relations with her were a 
breach of thC' solemn marriage contract and t ha t NatiYe 
Custom could no apply. 

This Co urt is in full agreement with the decision in that 
case and the appPal is di smisse{) with costs. 
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CASE No. 17. 

MGIDI MANTSHUPU vs. MNYAMEZELI KWEBI. 

ll:lllTATA: 17th June, 19:38. Before E. N. Braatvedt, Esq., 
Acting President, and Me~~rs. W. J. G. Mean; and 
C . .J. N. J,ever. l\Temhers of tlw N.A.C. 

J.lfnrriaue - Desertion of wife - Ret'urn of dowry - Clainh 
against receiver of dowry- Agency-Receiver of dowry 
not linbl e to payer when. he has acconnted for the dOII'1"JJ 
to person entitlrrl thrrrto. 

(Appeal from Native Commissioner's Court , Umtata.) 
Case No. 722 of 1937. 

Plaintiff, now Appellant, sued Defendant now Respondt'n t, 
in the duly constituted Court of Chief David Dalindyibo for 
the retnrn of his wife. After trial ,judgment was given in 
favour of the Defendant and against this an appeal was 
in due course noted to the Court of the Native Commissioner , 
Umtata. Appellant's claim was formulated as follows: -

" Plaintiff's daim is for the return of his wife Novumile 
or restoration of the dowry paid for her, 10 cattle which 
were paid by Plaintiff to Defendant about 6 years ago. 
The woman deserted Plaintiff 4 years ago and has not 
returned and has not been restored by Defendant though 
ca lled npon." 

And Respondent' s repl~· stated: -

" That when Plaintiff asked for X ovumilc in marriage he 
was that informed she is the daughter of l\Iazabele of Kentani. 
That Defendant reported to l\fazabele the offer of marriage 
and received the dowry on behaff of l\Iazabele to whom the 
dowry of 10 head of cattle was handed over. 

That in these circumstances Plaintiff has no claim against 
Defendant for the return of his wife or dowry but should 
sue l\Iazabele." 

Tlw record reads: -

"At a late hour, namely. J.10 p.m. on 2nd February , 
1938 l\Ir. Hemming desires to call a witness from Kentani. " 

The evidence of Landingwc Sobozo, son and heir of l\faza­
bele was then recorded after which the case was postponed 
to 4th February. On this date both parties closed their 
cases without further evidence having been recorded. 

On the 14th February the Additional Native Commis­
sioner gave judgment dismissing the appeal and confirming 
the judgment of the Court helow , with costs. 

The appeal from the Additional Native Commi!'lsioner's 
judgment has been noted on the following grounds: -

(1) That the judgment is against th0 conclusion:> and 
inferences to be drawn from the evidence ::tdduceli and 
the probabilities. 

(2) That the judgment is against the Native Law and 
Custom appertaining to the right of action against 
the person who receives a dowry for a girl and the 
genera 1 custom thereanent .'' 

The Additional Native Commissioner in giving his reasons 
for judgment said that the following facts were not dis­
puted: -





l. Plaintiff married Xovumile , the sister of Landingwp 
Sobozo, e ldest son and heir of 1\fagabele, a r es ident 
of Kentaui District in 1932, by Native Custom. 

~. Plaintiff paid lO head of cattle, as dowry, to Defendant 
with whom Novumile was living at the time. 

3. Novumile left Plaintiff's kraal. 

4. In 1935 Landingwe came to Umtata and found his 
sister living at Defendan's kraal. He then allotted ;3 
head of cattle to Defendant an·d )pft the remainder with 
Stanford Kiva in Umtata District , as he was unable 
to remove them to Kentani on account of East Coast 
Fever restrictions. He then returned to Kentani 
taking Novmnile and his mother with him. 

5. In 1937 he removed the cattle, left with Stanford , to 
Kentani. 

6. Landingwe never met Plaintiff. 

With this statement this Court agrees and the point for 
de!·isiun is whet her or not Defendant is the proper pPrson 
to be sued. 

After an exhaustive analysis of the relative reported eal-ies 
the judicial officer concludes " From these decisions it is 
clear that the husband is entitle>d to sue th e person to whom 
dowry was paid irrespective of whether or not the wife is 
under his control, but that he could evade liabilitr where he 
could satisfy the Court that he had accounted for the dowry 
to the p erson entitled thereto." 

This Court is in agreement with this stat ement of the legal 
portion. 

rn view of the admitted facts the only point to be decided 
is whether the D efendant has accounted for the dowry to 
the person entitled thereto. 

From the evidence of Landingwe the person entitled 
to Xovumile's dowry, it appears 

(11) that the proposed marriage of his sister was reported 
to him by Plaintiff by a messenger in 1931 and that 
he gave his consent: 

(u) that on New Year, 1932. when he heard that the 
marriage had t..1ken place and 10 head of dowry paid 
he sent his messenger \r etshn to take the cattle and 
place them at Defendant's kraal as cattle moH'ments 
to K entan i were restricted; 

(c) that in 1935 when he came to Umtata to fetch his 
mother and see about the dowry he allotted three head 
to Def,endant and left the remaining cattle with 
Stanford Kiva. At that time he found his sister 
living with his mother and removed them both to 
Kentani; 

(d) in July, 1937, he removed his cattle to Kentani. 

It is on record that Plaintiff's attorney did not dispute 
the above facts except the allegation that l\fvctshu came 
to the Plaintiff's kraal from Kentani. 

It is however, significant that no evidence was called for 
Plaintiff to disprove this assertion. The fact s in regard to 
the delivery of the dowry cattle are within Plaintiff' s know­
ledge and it is curious that the opportunity of discrediting 
Landingwe's c>vidence on a most vital issue was not taken , 
if the Pvidence is not truP. 

This Court finds a s a fact that l\Jvetshu was sent aH 
stated and it follows, therefore, that as far hack as 19:32, 
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l'laintitf was aware that the heir had assumed eontrol of 
the dowry. It has also been proved that an apportionment 
took place in 1U35 so that at the time of the institution of 
these proeeedings Defendant was neither in possession of the 
dowry nor the woman. 

There iH an e ntire lack of ev idence indicating that J>efen­
dant and Landingwe arc acting in concert to defeat Plain­
tiff's claim. 

The appeal is, accordingly, dismissed with costs. 

CASE Ko. 18. 

MTSHATO NGQANGULA vs. NKANTSELANA MQAYI. 

l'::\ITATA: 17th June, 1938. Before E. N. B1·aatvedt, !<.:sq. , 
Acting President, and ~lessrs. W. J. G. l\Iears and 
C. J. N. Lever, l\Iembers of the N.A.C. 

A.dultery-]<J-vidence m l'roof o/-Cwstom-"Ntlonze. 

(Appeal from Native Commissioner's Court, Umtata.) 

Case No. 104 of 1938. 

ln Lhe Court of the 1\'"ative Commissioner Respondent sued 
Appellant for 3 head of cattle or their value £9 in r espect 
of the adultery of the latter with the former's wife Nomunyu. 

Judgment was entered for Plaintiff with costs and against 
this judgment Defendant h as appealed on three grounds 
viz.:-

1. That the judgment is against the weight of evidence 
and the probabilities of the case. 

2. That the eviclenee adduced was insufficient to entitle 
Plaintiff to a judgment and was inconclusive. 

3. That the customary evidence in such cases though avail­
able was not produced nor any satisfactory reason 
given for such failure. 

The facts may be briefly cited as follows:-
The woman Nomunyu was on a visit at Xakata's kraal 

and on the day in question Hespondent paid a visit to that 
kraal. Finding nobody at home he passed on and on 
observing two pl·ople seated together at a stream below 
the lands approached them. \\' hen some 300 yards distant 
he rePognizPd them as being Appellant ancl his (Hespondent's) 
wife. Owing to the existence of a fence hi s progress was 
impeded and Appellant esca ped but he caught his wife who 
confesserl to her adultery with 1\ppellant. 

At the spot where these two had been sitt ing was found 
a kilt and a ca n of beer. Hespondeut at once followed np 
the customary practices of reporting the case. 

The Appellant ha.-; all along denied intimacy and dis­
claimed ownership of the kilt which was produced as Ntlon;r.P. 

Now thP mere sitting togdher of two persons is in itself 
no proof of arlultery hu t the c in·umstanecs surround ing 
such adion woulrl matPrially alter the view to he taken of 
it and in this ease t he comparative isolation of t he place, 
the finding of the kilt and the immPdiate obsPrvance of the 
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normal customary procedurC' confirm the view that a catch 
\His effected. As against this the Appellant sets up a 
denial and goes further in t hat he in his plPa ch allenges 
t he marriage of Hespondent and Nomunyn, and denies t ha t 
t he kilt was produced at his kraal. 

The failure to call the go-between Ko-Orange and the woman 
~omboYana is explained and t he reason given is in our 
opinion not unreasonable. 

The judicial officer has examined caref ully t he testimony of 
the various witnesses and ha~ g iven good reason s fo r aceepting 
thC' testimony of Plaintiff' s witnessC's in preference to that of 
DefPndant. 

If the Plaintiff 's witnesses are worthy of belief t hen Plain­
tiff's case is abundantly proved. The Additional Native 
Commissioner is an experienced judieia l offieer accustomed 
to the weighing of evidence and he says " I have no hesita­
tion in aeeepting the evidenee of these witnesses." 

The case is one of credibility a nd one particularly in which 
a. judicial officer would be guided to his conclusions by the 
impression er eated by th e witnesses who a ppeared before him. 

In the cin·umstances this Court is not prepared to disturb 
the judgment of the Court below and the appeal is dismissed 
with costs. 

E. K. Braatvedt , Esq., Acting President , dissents. 

MTSHATO NGQANGULA vs. NKANTSELANA MQAYI. 

Disse nting Judgm en t - Native Appeal Co1trt (Cape and 
U.Ji'.S.) in the abo1• ernentioned case. 

~A ppeal from thC' Native Commissioner 's Court, Umtata.) 

Case No. 104 of 1938. 

In the NatiYe Commissioner's Court the Hespondent sued 
the Appellant for three head of cattle, or t heir value £9 on 
the ground that the Appellant had committed adultery with 
H espondent' s wife Nomunyu. 

Judg ment was entered for the Plainti ff as prayed with 
eosts . 

The Hespondent states that during t he last ploughing 
season hi s wife Nomunyn went to the kraal of one Xakata 
on a ,·isit. Early in tlw new year he went to that kraal 
to visit her. There wa s no one at the kraal and he passed 
on. At the Qukuv eni stream h e saw a woman and a man 
sitting down. H e saw t hem from a distance of abou t ! 
a mile. Th ev were both dressed. Some ehildren were also 
in sight of the man and woman. He approaehed them and 
when h e wa s ahont 300 yards from them t hey got up and 
ran in clifferPn t clireetions. The woman was his wife and the 
man was th e Appellant. Hespondent was on horseback. The 
land was fmiePcl and for that reason lw could not <'atch 
t he Appellant. H e ea u gh t up to hi s wife who admittC'd .that 
the appellant was h er lover and that she had conm.ut~Pd 
adultt>ry with hi111 . At tlw spot where shP had bC'C'n sJttlllg 
he found a man's kilt a nd a tin ea n with hPer in it. J\fpu 
were sent to t he Appellant's kraal. He dPnied thC' ehargP. 
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The woman Numunyu, states that Xakata 's wife (No­
Orange) had acted as go-between tu bring her and Appellant 
together and that anotlwr woman named Numbomvana had 
on the day in question brought her a message from Appellan t 
to meet him at the (~ akuwa stream a nd to bring some beer. 
The two women mentioned were not called. Numunyu said 
they would be hostile. She states that the kilt found by 
H.espondeut had been given to her on that day by Appellant. 
She admits that ?\utshopolo's and Appellant 's kraal are in 
sight of the spo t where slw states she and Appellant had 
sexual intercourse, and states that such intercourse took 
place in broad daylight. 

A woman named Nomadada , who alleges she is Appellant's 
Hwecthcart , states t lmt she made the kilt referred to for 
Appellant. 

App ellant denies that he was sitting with the woman and 
th a t he has eYer had intPrcourse with her. He denies that 
the kilt is his. 

Briefly t he only evi dence of intercom se is that of the 
woman. The story told by her appears to be extraordinary 
and unbelievable. She states that intercourse took place 
in broad da_ylight in full Yiew of two kraals , and app arently 
with children in full view. She does not call t he two 
women who are stated to have acted as go-betweens. The 
Appellant, if he was sitti11g with her as alleged , saw the 
Respondent while he was several hundred yards away with 
a fe nce between them, and yet we are asked to belic,·e 
that h e would leave his kilt which would be evidence against 
him on the spot. 

In my opinion stronger evidence than that given on behalf 
of the Respondent is required before it can be said that 
adultery has been proYcd. 

Umtata , 17th June, 1938. 

K N. BRAATVEDT, 
Acting President of the Comt. 

CASE Xo. 19. 

SIKEYI KULU vs. MAKAYA MAHLOBO 

l'.MTATA: 17th June, 1938. Before E. .N. Braatvedt, Esq., 
Acting President and 1\Iessrs. '"· J. G. l\fears and 
C. J. K. Lever, 1\Iember s of the N .. A.C. 

Estate 8tock-1Vidow has no right to deal with tcith01d 
consulting hei r-.clgent-Liabili.ty for losses. 

(Appeal from Native Commissioner's Court , 1\Iqanduli.) 
Case No. 279 of 1937. 

The facts in this case a re not disputed and are as follows: 
Responden t is the heir of the late Nkebc 1\lahlobo, a sou 

of N omgcombolo, wife in the right-hand house of the la to 
1\Tahlobo. 'Vhen Nkebe died his widows return ed tu their 
own people. Nomgcombolo continued to reside at the right­
hand kraal of her late husband where Nkebe had also resided. 
After NkPbe's death !lespondent placc1l Nomgcombolo and 
the stock in charge of Gwaqubanc, the head of the family of 
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Appellant. Gw:~qnbane pl:t<·ecl Nomgcombolo and the stock 
lt the kraal of one Nkonkwana where they. remained for 
about a year. Nomgcombolo then returned with the stock 
to the kraal where she had previously been living and 
placed the stock with her brother, the present Appellant. 
\\'hen l{esponclent again came to see the stock he raised 
no objection to it !wing with Appellant. In 1937 Respondent 
demanded delivery of the stock, but Appellant refused to 
\)art with it as it had originally been handed to him by 
~'l'o mgcombolo and not by Respondent. A letter of demand 
was sent to Appellant and on his again failing to deliver 
summons was issued. At the time he received the letter 
of demand Appellant was in possession of five head of cattle 
and eight sheep belonging to the Estate of Nkebe and 
never made any tender to deliver them to Respondent . 
• \ppellant knew that Respondent was the heir of Nkebe. 
Nomgcombolo, who appears to be of unsound mind claims 
that she is the heir of the right-hand house and entitled to 
the stock in question . 

. The claims set out in the summo ns was for thirty sheep, 
etght h ead of cattle, three goats and various other 
artir!L•s or their collccti,·e value £52, but the Native Com­
missioner entered judgment in favour of Respondent only 
for the stock which Appellant admitted was in his possession 
at the elate he receiYed the lettPr of demand, or their value 
£19 and costs of suit. 

The appea l against this judgment is on the grounds (1) 
that Appellant was m erel.v acting <1S agent for Nomgcombolo 
and that she is the proper person to be sued and (2) that 
t he Native Commissioner ern><! in entering judgment against 
Appellant for three head of cattle which had died since the 
issue of summons, no negligence having been proved. 

fn his r ea sons for judgment the Native Commissioner says 
that Appellant was the agent of Nomgcombolo and the fact 
that Respondent ratified her action in placing the stock 
with Appellant did not make the latter his agent but that 
the ratification created a contract of bailment as between 
Respondent and Appellant. \Ye thus have the extraordinary 
position of R espondent being agent and bailee respectively 
in respect of the same suhj eet matter for two persons whost~ 
interests are diametrically opposed. If the ratification of 
Nomgcombolo's action by Hesponclent resulted in the creatinl! 
of a contract of bailment it follows of necessity that the 
a lleged eontract of ageney with X omgcombolo must then have 
been terminated. 

It becomes necessarv now to consider whether Appellant 
was the agent of No~gcombolo. 

Only person s who are stili juris and have the management 
of their own affairs. and in addition have authoritv to deal 
with t he matter which is the subject of the particlilar man­
elate, are enti tled to give a mandate. (l\Iaasdorp Institutes 
of Cape Law, 3rd Edition, p. 295). 

Under Native Law a widow does not have authority to 
deal with estate stock without consulting the heir. In this 
case she did not consult the heir, and, thereforP, could not 
lawfully make Appellant her agent as against the heir. 

A perusal of the evidence makes it abundantly p]par 
that Appellant was adoptin g his sister's case, which hP must 
have known was unsound. as his own and that lw wa s 
Pndeavourin g to uphold hPr right to the stock. If hP was 
acting purely as agent one would havP expeded him to 
notifv Nomgeombolo of the claim made by Hespondent and 
to ol>ta in her instr11ctions hut the evidence shows that he 
neYPr made any such report to her and that lw was acting 
on his own responsibility. If he wished to escape liability 
he should have returned the stock to N omgcomholo and 
havP left her and Respondent to fight out the mattPr. 





The appeal on the first ground must fail. 
1 n regard to the second ground of appeal it is admitted 

that at t he time the stock was demanded from him, the 
Appell ant was in possession of fi\·e head of cattle and eight 
sheep, t he property of Hespondent. As he did not deli,·er this 
stock when he had tlw opportunity of doing so he is liable 
to make good any that died subsequently. Mdini Matyesini 
vs. Ntampu Dulo, 3 N.A.C. 102 and Mbulali Manxoyi vs. 
Mqotswana and Nonkonxa , 3 N.A.C. 81). 

The appeal is dismissed with costs. 

CASE No. :m. 

NOMGOGWANA NOMADUDWANA vs. MAKOSI 
TOTSHOLO. 

DliiTATA: 17th June, 1938. Before E. N. Braatvedt, Esq .. 
Acting President and Messrs. W. J. G. M ears and 
C. J. N. Lever, l\Iemhers of the N.A.C. 

Ten~bu Custom-Marriage-Death of husband shortly after 
marriage-lVidoto returning to her OW'Tit. peoP'le-Re­
rnarriaae-Second doUJ•ry 1·eceived-First dowry is retunz­
ab le. 

(.\ppeal from Nati\•c Commissioner's Court, Elliotdale.) 
CasP No. 288 of 1937. 

In this case, Plaintiff (now Appellant) claims fr·om the 
Defendant (now Respondent) 9 head of cattle or their Yalue 
the sum of £36 and costs. 

Jn his particulars of claim Plaintiff states:-
1. That Plaintiff is the heir of the estate of the late 

Tyadala Nomadudwana. 
2. That about the year 1934 the said late Tyadala Noma­

dudwana married one Noluzile daughter of the late 
Totsholo and sister of Defendant who is the heir of 
the said late Totsholo and paid 10 head of cattle as 
and for dowQ· for her. 

3. That about 4 months after the said marriage Tyadala 
Nomadndwana (liNl and his said wife Noluzile returned 
to Defendant who have since given her away in 
marriage and received dowry for her . 

4. That Defendant is not entitled to hold two dowries 
and Plaintiff is entitled to a refund of the dowr;\· 
paid to Defendant hy his said late brother Tyadala . 

. 5. That Plaintiff has demanded the restoration of 9 head 
of cattle or £36 from Defendant who n •fuscs to pa;\' 
same. 

Defendant's plea is as follows: -
1. He admits that Plaintiff is the heir of the late Tyadala 

Nomadudwana. 

2. Defendant also admits that about three yC'ars ago the 
late Tyadala married his sister, Noluzile and paid 10 
head of eattle as dowry for her. 
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3. Defendant says that tl1e marriage between the saiu 
Tyadala and the said Noluzile was duly consumated 
and the parties lived together as husband and wife for 
nearly a year, when the said Tyadala died. 

4. That there was no issue of the said marriage and after 
the death of the said Tya-dala the said N oluzile re­
turned to Defendant's kraal, and he admits that he 
has now again giYPn her in marriage and receive-d 
dowry for her. 

5. In regard to paragraphs 4 and 5 of the said particulars 
of claim, Defendant admits that he is not entitled to 
hold two dowries and that Plaintiff has demanded 
restoration of 9 head of cattle but Defendant says 
that upon demand he tendered Plaintiff 5 head of 
cattle out of the dowry paid by him, which tender 
the Defendant and his attorney refused, before the 
issue of summons. 

6. That Defendant maintains that Plaintiff is not entitled 
to recover more than half the dowry paid by him for 
the said Noluzile and again herein tenders Plaintiff , 
fiye head of ea ttle out of the dowry paid by him for 
the said Noluzile, in settlement of the claim herein. 

"'hen the ease came before the Native Commissioner for 
trial the attorneys for the respective parties called no evi­
dence but argued the case on the pleadings as there was no 
dispute in regard to the facts. 

The Xatin• Commissioner gave a considered judgment in 
the course of which he reYiewed many of the leading decisions 
of the Native Appeal Court on the point at issue and entered 
judgment for Pia in tiff for 5 head or £20 and ordered Plain­
tiff to pay costs as he had refused a tender of 5 head of 
cattle. 

It is common cause that the parties to the action are 
resident in Bomvanaland where Tembu Law and Custom 
are followed bnt in the course of his judgment the judicial 
offieer stated that he had been uny.ble to trace any pro­
nouncements in regard to Tembu Customs on the point and 
that the cases which he cited and upon which he based his 
finding arose in districts outside Tembuland. 

Against his judgment Plaintiff has noted an appeal in 
the following terms :-

1. That according to tlH' pleadings and admitted facts 
Plaintiff was entitled to a judgment for 9 head of 
cattle or their value the sum of £36, being 10 head 
of dmny cattle paid less one beast for the wedding 
outfit. 

2. That the judgment given by the Native Commissioner of 
Elliotdale herein. on the 28th March, 1938 is bad 
according to Native Law and Custom ils it prevails 
in Tembuland and he erred in being influencPd in 
his judgment by authoriti es affecting the T;anskei 
propPr, where Fingo and Gcaleka Customs prevail. 

3. That the authorities reliPd upon by the NativP Com­
missioner are not applicable to the r·ireumstanccs of 
th e present case or in Temlmland or Bomvanaland 
generally. 

On behalf of Appellant there WPre citc.rl WhitfiPld, pag<' ~:l:~ 
and the cases of Jilingisi 7.:icpikwana 1?S. Smit 'J'yaliti ~ . A .C . 
1933 pagP R ancl Sulwana 1\fzilikazi 1'S. HPnry Kwaza N .A.C . 
1934 p. 42 whilc> thP cnsPs m<'ntionecl h~' the NatiYP Com ­
missioner wcrP rPl ied on h~· TIPspondPnt. 
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The following questions were submitted to the Native 
Assessors : -

l. A woman marries, bears her husband a child, her 
husband dies and she returns to her father's kraal. 
\Vhen she remarries how much dowrv will be re­
payable by her father to her first husband 's people? 

2. A woman marries and her husband dies soon afterwards. 
She has no children by him. She returns to her 
father's kraal and later on remarries. \Vhat dowry 
is repayable by her father to her first husband'.s 
people? 

3. Is the custom in Bomvanaland the same as in Tembu­
land? 

The relati,·e replies were:-
l. All the cattle will be repayable exce pt 2 head, namely 

one beast for the wPdding outfit and one for the child 
born. 

:2. All the cattle would be repayable except one beast for 
the wedding outfit. 

In pure N a tiYe Custom the full number was repay­
able, hut now a custom has grown up that one beast 
is deducted for the wedding outfit. 

3. Yes. 
In reply to an additioual euquirr the Assessors stated 

that the division of dowry , as practised in the Transkei 
proper when no children are born after the marriage, was 
unknown in Tembn Custom. 

Following this statement of Custom which is consonant 
with a previous expression of custom in the case of Jilingisi 
Ziqukwana t:s. Smit T,valiti X . .A.C. 1933 the appea l is 
allowed with costs. 

This Court has fixed the alternative value of down cattle 
at £3 per head and sees no good r eason for departi1;g from 
this decision. 

The judgment in the Court below is set aside and one 
entered for Plaintiff for 9 head of cattle or their Yalue £21 
anrl. costs. 









DANIEL DLIKILILI vs. MCITAKALI and JIM KLAAS. 

KINGWILLIAMS1'0WN: 29th .\.ugust, 1938. Before H. G. Seott, 
Esq., President, and Messrs. J. J. Yates and G. D. 
Hartmann, :Members of the N.A.() . 

.Seduction and Pregnancy-.4.ction for tlanu.Lges for, against 
prospectire husband who had paid cattle on account 
of dotcry-]Jenial of :seduction by prospective husband­
Voluntary return of engagement cattle by prospective 
bride's people JYT'ejudicial to plamtiff's case as raising 
strony presumption that prospectil'e husband not the 
seduccT-flppcal against j1tdgment of absolution from the 
instance dismissed. 

(Appeal from the ~ ative Commissioner's 0ourt, 
Lady Frere: Case No. 24 of 1938.) 

This wa;., an action for five head of cattle or £23 as 
damages for the seduction and pregnancy of l>Jaintiff's 
(Appellant's) daughter, Hionet, by first Defendant. 

'l'he Assistant Native Comnussioner entered a judgment of 
absolution from the instanee with east;, and the Plaintiff has 
appealed against that JUdgment. 

lt appears from the record that Hionet's mother died in 
1918 and Irom that tune onward she went to live with her 
mother's people and was brought up by Sarah Ntlabati. In 
June, 1937, Hionet became engaged to first Defendant who 
paid five head of cattle on aecount of dowry. Hionet alleges 
that he had eonneetiou with her on three occasions in June, 
1931, and went away to work next mouth. During July she 
became aware that she was pregnant but made no report 
of this to anyone. She is supported by Ivy l\Ibelm in regard 
to the occasions on which first Defendant is alleged to have 
had connection. 

Sarah Xtlabati states that she did not bec·ome mvare of 
Hionet's eondition until she wa& in her seventh month ot 
pregnancy and accounts for the delay in tlisco\·ering the state 
of affairs by saying that she was ill and confined to bed for 
about four months. 'l'here is no information as to what the 
nature of her illness was but she does not allege that her 
eyes wer<' affeC"ted and, if they were· not, then there seems 
tu bt' uo reason why she should not have detected the preg­
nancy sooner. \Yhen she discovered the pregnancy she weut 
with Hionet to first Defendant, who denied that he had 
seduced Hiunet. Necond Defendant thereupon demanded that 
the five lwad of -cattle which had been paid should be 
returned to him. As this was not done the Defendants took 
the case before the Headman eomplaining that Sarah 
Ntlabati refused to hand over the cattle after having agreed 
to do ;;o. The Plaintiff's witnesses do not deny that the 
cattle were handed back to the Defendants but say it was 
only clone becam,e of the Headman's order. The ·Headman 
denies that he made any such order. In this he is probably 
not speaking the truth. Even assuming that he did make 
such an order it is quite certain that the men in charge of 
l'laintiff's affairs (he being absent at the time) would nen'r 
have complie·d with it unless they had been satisfied that 
first Defendant was not responsible for Hionet's condition. 
At one time it might have been argued that a Headman's 
order was one that had to Jw obeyed, but in these clays 
that is not the case. It is of some significance too, that 
Imvane, the man who apparently is, with one l\Ibovane. in 
charge of the luaal affairs and who agreed to the cattle going; 
hack was not called to explain wh:r he agreed. It was 
argued by Appellant's attorney that the defence should hav<' 
called him because Imvane, according to the Headman' s 
evidence, had admitted that he had found out that first 
Defendant was not respon,.ihle for the girl's pregnane;\' and 
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sai d t ha t was why lit' was agreeing to release the cattl e . 
With this contention this Court dot'S not agreP. By the 
retur n of the cuttl• ~ a stron g presumption was nndouhtedly 
raist>d that first DPfendant was not at fault and it was for 
t he Plaintiff to <·all Lnwane to expla in why he acted in thP 
way he did. ln tlw absenee of his e ,·ideHC'<' we are of opinion 
that the Assistant .Nat i,·e C'o lllllli ss ion ei· was justified in 
l'l'garding thP retm·n of the dowry ca t tle ar-; prejndieial to 
Plaintiff's <·ase. If the first D efenda11t had rPndC'I'ed H ionet 
pregnant th<•re seems no poss ible motive for him to deny it . 
H e wa" e ngagPd to the girl , had already paid fi,·e hPad of 
catt l<' and, e\·en if her pPople claimed tlw catt le as damages , 
a ll he had to do was to proeePd with the marriage when 
t he damag••s wonld me r gp in dowry and he would suffer no 
loss. Having c·a r efnll~ · •·onsidered the evidenee we an' of 
opinion that tlw 1\Rsista nt Native Commissioner was fully 
justified in Pntering a judg ment of absolution from tiH' 
in sta nce and the appeal i :; aeeord in gly di smissed with eosts. 

AUGUST MABOTHE vs. ABEL THAELE. 

KINGWILLI.DtSTOW:": 31st Aug ust , 1938. Befo r e H. G. Reott , 
Esq. , Pres ident , and )lessr s. J. J. Yates and G. D. 
Hartmann , .Members of tl1e N.A.C. 

Illegal Uontmct-Contmct in fraud of Jl t~<nicipal Regulations 
- P amnents 01· deposits mwle under su ch conh·act nut 
-recovemble- ll'h eTe IJOtlt parties in thr> tcTong th P on e 
in JIO·~~ess i on s11bject mutter of contract is in the IJrtfPT 
position. 

(Appea l from the 1'\ative C'ollllnissioner's Cour t , 
Bloemfontein : Case No. 2 of Hl38.) 

In t he Court below the Plaintiff (R e:,pondent) claim .. d from 
the Defendan t (Appellant ) cer ta in r ent, an ordPr compelling 
him to tran:;fer certain Stand Xo . J;j;·, Batho Location , 
Blot'lllfontei n , an order of ejectment and an orch•r compelling 
him to pay any acnuing or fu t ure rent to l'lain tiff , a ll egmg 
in his summons tha t he had bought t he stand in question 
from one John Thulo in .\ugnst, 1931, ami arrangPd with 
Defendant to have it register{'{] in tlw latter's name on con­
dition that at any time when so required he would transfer 
it to Plaintiff 's nominee , it being agreed t hat Plaintiff would 
remain the r ea l owner of the propert.'· and entitled to dis­
pose of it at any tiuw. 

Th e plea denied the purcha:,e of the stand by Plaintiff or 
t hat Defe ndant had enter ed into the a lleged agreement and 
stated that Defendant had pun·hased the stand and that 
Plaintiff hacl no right to it. In the alternative Defendant 
pleaded that , if the Court held that Plaintiff had purchased 
the stand and: 'entered into the alleged agreenwnt with 
DefPndant , such agreenwnt was Yoid and illegal and con­
trary to the proYisions of Notices Nos. 20 of 1925 and 48 
of 1932 of the O.F'.S. l'rovin<Cial Ga zette or in fnwdem leg1 s 
of the said notices in that Plaintiff was since 1st August , 
1931, the r egist e r ed owner of a stand in tht' BloPmfontein 
Location of whic·h he is st ill the owner. 

Xotiec l\o. 20 of 1925 promulgated Locat ion Heg nla tiom 
mndP hy t he Municipality of Bloemfonte in under the autho­
rity of Section 23 (3) of Act Xo. 21 of 1923 and Seetion 6 
therpof provides in.ter nlin , that no nati,·e shall be entitled 
to l1av e morP than OIH' stand rPgistered in hi s or her IJ:llllt' 
an<l that married natives or natiVPS li vi ng t ogether a s n1a11 
and wifP shall J,e entitlPcl to one stand onlY whi('h shall h<' 
rt•gist<•rt'Cl for tlwir joint occupation. . 





Notiee No. 20 of 1925 was repealed b.~· Not;ce No. 48 of 
19a2, published i11 the Officinl Gazette of the Otangc Jhec 
~lute l'l·ovincc, dated l'ith .June, 1932, which promulgated 
IIPW location regulations in wltielt the provision ahm·e men­
tiotwd was rPpea tPd. 

Plaintiff's own version of the tra nsal·tion is as follows: 
" In August, 1931, I bought 457 from Thulo. I !mew Muni­
eiJJality would not register 2 houses in my name, so I called 
.Mabote for to use his name ou thP Stand ticket " and in 
eross-cxamiuation: "£(j5 was deposit I gave to ::\[a bote as 
we neared the town office and he bad to tell a lie and 
say he was the lmyet·. 1 knew 1 could not buy house 
because of l\lunieipal regulations and to beat them we did 
this. 1 was prepared to let them lie and I !mew the oath 
was not necessary . . . I admit 1 defrauded l\lunicipality 
on•r this matter as regards nanw of owner ". 

The Defendant a~serted that he had bought tlw stand in 
question from John Thulo for himself and an agreement of 
sale dated 6th August, 1931, drawn up uy an attorney and 
signed b~· Defendant and Thulo was put in which showed that 
the purchase price was £65 in cash payable on registration 
of the stand in the name of the purchaser. '!'he stand was 
registered on that date in the name of Defendant and his 
wife and has remained so registered 1.o the present date. 

On the evidencP the Nati'"e Commissioner came to the 
conclusion that Plaintiff had purchased the stand and entered 
judgment in his favour. 

.Against this judgment an appeal has beeu noted on the 
follmring grounds:-

1. That the Xative Commissioner erred in holding that 
Plaintiff had discharged the onus of proving that he 
bought and paid for the stand in question and not the 
DefPndant, especially in Yie"· of the Deed of Sale and 
the regi~tration of the said stand in Defendant's name. 

2. Alternativelv to the above Defendant says that if Plain­
tiff did ln1y the said stand such pur~hase wa~ illegal 
and void or in fraudem legis of the provisions of 
GoYernment Xotice No. 20 of 1925 and No. 48 of 1932, 
relied on in the Court of the Native Commissioner and 
that any collateral agrePment between Plaintiff and 
Defendant in regard to the ~aid stand was likewise 
ille~;al and void or in fraudem legis and unenforceable 
and that Plaintiff's claim is, therefore, bad as he relies 
on an illPgal and void contract. 

3. The X atiYe Commissioner erred in holding that the 
doctrine of enrichment applies in illegal contracts such 
as this. 

4. In any event Plaintiff should not hm·e been a warded 
costs seeing that the whole trau~action on his own 
showing was based on fraud and deceit on his part. 

On the alternati,'e ground of appeal it was strPtmously 
argued by Respo:q.dent's nttorney that the agreement between 
Thaele and l\Iabothe was not illegal or in fraudern legis in 
that Thaele only purchased the improvements on Stand No. 
4.57, that such improvements have been held to be movables 
and there was nothing in the l\lunicipal regulations to pro­
hibit such transaction. This argument could not be quar­
relled with if Thaele purported to pureha'le the impmvements 
with a view to their removal hut that is not the case he sets 
up. He maintains in his summons that he bought the stand 
and the house on it and claimed the right to ha,·e hoth 
transferred to his nominee and also claimed an order to have 
Appellant ejected. 'Vhile. of course. the Respondent was not 
able to acquire the dominium in the stand itself as it was 
Municipal ground it is quite clear that he bought, or thought 
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he bought, the right to the occupation of the stand and, as 
he luww that the regulations would not permit of having it 
regi~tcred in his own name seeing he wa:-; already in posses­
sion ot one, he Pntercd into an agreement with a view t o 
evadmg tlw regulations. 

It is quite clear from the regulations that the intention of 
the Municipality was that one NatiYe should not be entitled 
to more than on~ stand. The good government of the location 
would undoubtedly be interfered with if one Nati\·e were 
allowed to acquire" the right to a number of stands and to put 
in fiditiou" owners in order to e\'ade the regulations. 

That Hespondent wa:; under the impression that he bought 
the right to the occupation of the stand is clear also from 
the fact that he asked in his summons for an order compel­
ling Appellant to transfer the said stand to his nominee to 
whom he alleged he had sold it. 

He certainly had no right to any such order. He could 
only sell the improvements on the stand and the purchaser 
would ha\·e been at liberty to remove them, hut could not 
claim that he shouj~ allow them to remain on the stand and 
to occupy it. 

A number of authorities were quoted in support of tlw 
argument put up for Hespondent but the~· an• not really in 
point, the one mo:,t greatly relied on LH-'ing the case of Dadoo, 
Ltd., and Others ps. Krugersdorp Municipal Council (1920 
A.D. 530). This ca:;e dealt "·ith the interpretation of Statutes 
prohibiting Asiatic or Coloured persons from owning land and 
it was held that the provisions of the particular statutes did 
not apply to joint stock companies e\·en though their shares 
were held b~· Asiatics or Coloured per:-;ons hecausf' a registered 
company is a legal persona distinct from the members who 
compose it. Ln the course of his judgment in that case, 
Innes, C. J. said (at p. 5-!7): "An examination of tlw 
authorities, therefore, leads me to the conclusion that a 
transaction is in fraudem legis when it is designedly dis­
guised so as to eseape the provision" of the law , but falls in 
truth within those prO\·isions." 

That is exac-tly what has happened in the present case. 
Hespondent knowing lw was not entitled to two stands in his 
own name> entered into a fraudulent agreement in order to 
eircum\·ent tl1e law. 

A case exactly in point iu respect of the present enq tury , 
whi<'h was not referred to bv counsel on either side, is that 
of Singama vs. JPyi (1916 E.D.C. 444). which, so fav as this 
Court is awan•, has ne,·er been overruled and which appears 
to be decisin·. 

The fads of that case are that the East London Municipal 
regulations provide that land in the location shall not be held 
in the names of non-resident or absent persons. The Plain­
tiff was lessee of land in the location. and desiring to be 
absent for a period, entered into an agreement with the 
Defendant by which he ceded all his rights under the lease to 
the Defendant. the DE,!fenda nt undertaking to re-transfer such 
rights when called upon. Thereafter the Defendant obtained 
transfer of the lease to himself. The transfer permit recited 
that the Plaintiff renounced all his rights and was signed 
by the Plaintiff. The Plaintiff having returned, and the 
Defendant having refused to re-transfer the leas£;, the Plain­
tiff sued him to compel him to <lo so. The agre<'llll'Ht hetWf'l'll 
the parties provided that " although he is about to transfer 
same into my name, I wish it definitely understood that this 
property rPmains hi -; own, and is only pi:H·<'d into my nanw 
for his conveniem·p as he is about to leaYe Enst London for 
the time being ". 

This was s1gned by Defendant and witnessed by the Loca­
tion SuperintenrlPnt. Tlw Court lwld that ilw ngreement, 
even though one of thP )funicipal offi<·Prs was awarf' of it . 
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had Leen entered into in fraud of the .:\funicipal Hegulations 
and was null and \'oid as being against public policy and 
refw;ed to grant the or der apphed fur. 

[u the opin ion of this Court the agreement which the Res­
pondeu t says lw euten•d into was one in fraud of the .Munici­
pal Hcgulations and was knowingly entt>rt>d into and cannot 
lw Pn foreed. lf , under snch a contraet . payment or deposit 
has been made by the contracting party, and he has been 
com·t•nwd in tlw otfl•nee, whrit \UJ,; paid or deposited cannot 
IJe n•covered, things accessory to an illegal contract being 
also illega l (Nathan Common Law of South Africa- Second 
I•Aiitio n , Vol. Jl, page U03). A guilt~· party cannot take 
advantage of his own wrong by going to the Court and asking 
to Le rPiieved of his contract for where hoth parties are in 
the wrong the person in poss<•ssion of the subject matter of 
thfl transaction is in the Letter position (ibid). 

It seems to us, also, that it is extremely doubtful whether 
the Native Commissioner was right in finding in H.espon­
t!Pnt's favour on t he fads. It is not, howevPr , nepessary tu 
go into this qtw;;tion nor to deal with the other grqunds of 
appeal. 

The appeal is allowed with eosts and the judgment in the 
Court below altt•red to one of absolution from the instance 
with eostl';. 

J OSE PH MAT L A vs. THE A F RICAN PRESBYT ER IAN 
CHURCH (also known as THE AFRICAN PRESB Y· 
TERIAN BAFOLISI CHURCH ). 

KI.:xGWILLIA;\LS'I"O W :\: 31st August , 1938. Before H. G. Scutt, 
I<Asq., President, and :\ l essrl';. J. J. Yates and G. D. 
Hartmann , :\{embers of the N.A.C. 

()h ·!lreh-()lairn for cjeetrnent of MinisteT from Ch111'eh pro­
pcrty-Ji inister originally legally in oeeupation- Fr£J.il1lre 
to prove that occllpation illegal at time of institution of 
ll.ction-Jrhere change has oeeuTred in name of Chwreh 
wheth er secession. had takrn plaee-On faets found ·riot 
to have occurred-Expulswn of JfinisteT from eh11reh 
without enquiTy- No oppoTtunity of being heard-Rules 
for trial of Jfinisters laid down by Chureh Constitution 
not follo-wed- FJ:cplllsion. of no foree or effeet. 

l 1 radice-Applicntion that Pla.intijj's chwreh furnish see1J1'ity 
for eosts owing to some of its nwm bers being usident 
out side Union- lr heTe Ileadq1wrters in Union and 
property oum.ed therein, not ·necr.~sary to Jli"01•ide seeu1·ity 
for costs-Plaintiff's title to s11e-Ubjeetion to should 
lH! taken in Cmtrt belou· and eannot be raised for fiTst 
time on uvpeal. • 

(Appeal from the Xatin· Commissioner's Court , 
Bethlehem: Case Ko. 5 of 1931.) 

The Plaintiff in this adion, a ~ati,·e Church Organization. 
with its administrative office at Kroonstad. 0.14'.8. , sued the 
Defendant for cjectment from eertain Stand No. 1.58 in the 
NatiYe Location at Bethlehem, O.F.S., and in his particulars 
of claim stated:-

1. On the 24th September, 1921, the Plaintiff duly 
acquired for its loca l Resident Minister the rights of 
residence on and occupation of certain Stand ~ o. 158, 
in the Native Location at BethlPhem, District Bethl<'­
hem, and still holds sueh rights. 

2. f n May, 1936, the Defendant eeased tu be a l\Linister of 
the Plaintiff Chureh and has L<'en sine<' then and still 
is in wrongful and unlawful residenc<' on and occupa-
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tion of the ~aid Stand, and uot\\·ithstanding lawful 
demand duly made• hv Plaintiff, D<>fendant wrongfully 
aH<I unlawfully fails , r<>fnsps o1· I!Pf!Jt>cts to ,·acate tlw 
same. 

At the outsPt of the <·asp the Dt_•f<>n<laut's attorney askPd 
for an ordc>r upon Plaintiff to furuish a list of the. names, 
occupations and addresses of all tlw members of thP .\frif'all 
Presbyterian Church Associatiou. 

Tlw Plaintiff's attorney then handed in a documeut on 
which appeared the nanles and addrPsses of some twenty 
ministers of tlw Afriean Presbyterian Church. 

l)pfendant's attomey objected to this list as it did not 
disclosl' tlw names and addn•s:-;es of all the members bnt the 
~ati\'o Commissioner held that it was adl'qnate for the 
purpose and accepted it. 

Defendant's attonwy tlwreupon applic>d for an order upon 
Plaintiff to furnish security for costs on the ground that 
~>e\'eral of tlw memb<'rs of Plaintiff':-; organisation as shown 
On the Ji~t al.Jon•-lllentionPd are I'PsidPnt out:-;ide tlw l.Tnion 
of ~outh Africa. 'I'Iw applif'ation was refused. 

Def<·ndant pleaded as follows: -
l. That tlw Stand No. 158, Bethlehem Location , was 

acquired hy thP Church of which the Defendant is a 
1nemhPr and which is not the Plaintiff's church, and 

2. That the Defendant has neYer been a member of tiH' 
Plaintiff's church and Pould, therefore, never have 
ceasPd to lw a member or minister of such chureh. 

Application was thPn made for particulars as to-
(1) thP <late of acquisition by Defen<lant' s church of the 

loc·ation stand in question; and 
(2) who or what is the Defendant's church? 

Particulars \\'('re supplied as uncll'r: -
l. The stand in question was acquired Ly the Defendant 's 

clmrch as far as he knows prior to the year 1918; and 
2. That tlw name of the Defendant's church is the " Afri­

can Pn•shvtt·rinn Bafolisi Chui'C·h " which church has 
bPen in la~yful occupation of the said stand e\·er since. 

The case tlwn went to trial and after hearing e,·idPnce the 
...\ ative Commissioner grantt'cl an ord<'r of Pjectment against 
Defendant with costs. 

Against this judgment an appeal has Lc>en noted Qn the 
following grounds: -

1. That the Plaintiff being an unincorporated body, t ltP 
DPfendant was entitled to know who hi:-; opponents arP, 
to ohtain the names of all the members , otherwise such 
members are not beforP the Court and there is no 
effective judgment against them; and the Native Com­
missioner erred in holding that the giving of a fe"' 
names out of the thousands sufficed. 

2. That the Native Commissimwr e!Ted in refusing tiH' 
application for secnrit~· for costs. 

3. That the Native Commissioner erred in refusing Dde n­
dant's application for absolution from the instance. 

4. The Plaintiff, on whom the burden of proof lay , has not 
proved his case , and the finding of the Court is against 
the weight of both the oral and tlw do<·umentary 
evidence. 

The historY of this movenwnt is as follows: A Nativc> 
Congregation" was Pstatllislwd at LovedalP in the Cap<' Pro­
vince nnder the jurisdiction of the Free Church of Scotland. 
In .l\tav. 189R. eertain diff'erc>nces arosP between thP Xosa 
and Fi.ngo sections of tlw Congn•gation of which tlic> HP\'d, 
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J erem iah }[:.~imba was the pa;;tor. As a consequence ::\Izimba 
and many of the deaconfi, elders and office bearers connected 
with the church seceded and for med a body known as the 
Pn•sbyterian Church of Afriea (see Stewart and Others vs . 
.\lazimba and Otlwrs, \l C.T.R. 96). 

In 1908 the R enl. 1 ~. J. l\Iarumo and Renl. Y. D. l\Iag­
waza rPsigned from the Presbyterian Chu reh of Africa and 
formed another Church body to which t lwy gave the name 
" The Afric-an l'resbyterian Chu rch " with headquartt•rs at 
Harrismith , in the Orange Free State and Congregations 
were L·stablisheJ at , nmong;;t other places, Kroonstad and 
Bethlehem in that province. ' 

The Renl. K J . .i\iarumo was elected first :Moderator (also 
rPfcrn•d to in the Constitution of the Church as General 
o,·erseer and General Office r ) and held that office until hi s 
death in 1918. 

On the ~8th DL•t·embL•r· , 1918. the R evel. J . H. Mokalapa 
wa,.; clectecl Moderator in his ste ad. In 1917 the wo.rcl '' Hafo­
lisi " wa:-; added to the title of the Crlurch which then 
becam e known as the African Presbyt erian Bafolisi Church. 

This was merely a change in name and did not signify an~­
br·eak a\\·ay f rom the African Presbyterian Church. One 
witne>:s L'xplained that t he addition was made so that the 
Uasuto would understand that the Church helie,·ed in healing 
the sic·k l1y mea ns of praye r. 

In Hl:32 there wa s a di:spute between .1\loka lapa and l\Ioloan­
toa , then pastor in c-harge of the K roouJ;tad Congregatiou , 
and a meeting was held and a votL• taken, the majority 
,-oting to r etain ~loloantoa and tlw Church building at 
Kroonstad. .:\loloantoa t hen c-hanged the name of t he Churc-h 
at Kroonstad to the " Africa n Presb~·te rian Bara pdi 
Church ". 

In 1927 permission wm; granted by the Locatiou Super­
intendent at Bethlehem to the African Presbyterian Bafo­
lisi Church to occupy Stand No. 158, in the Bethlehem 
Location. and to erect a dwelling-house thereon. The house 
was duly e rect ed and was occupied by Revd. A. Phutsisi, a 
:Minister of the Afric.a,n Presbyterian Bafolisi Church, until 
1935 wh en he was transferred to l\Iaseru and the house wa:; 
then occupied by Revd. Joseph l\Iatla who was sent there 
by thP Conference of the Bafolisi Church. 

In .June, 1937, summons for ejectment was issned agai nst 
J oseph }la tla. 

It will be seen that l\Iokalapa clai ms that he is the Mode­
rator of th e Afric-an Preshvterian Bafolisi Clmreh and that 
::\Ioloautoa seceded from t'hat Church in 1932 and conse­
quently has no rights in thP stand in question. On t he other 
hand .:\loloantoa claims that he is the l\Ioderator and that 
both .:\Iokalapa and Defendant have been expelled from the 
Churc·h and. therefore , haYP no right to the occupation of 
the said stand. 

Tlw e,·idence in this ease ca ll s for c-onsideration under 
several heads, namely: -

l. Did }1oloautoa secede from the African Presbyterian 
Bafolisi Church and form an entirely separate and 
di stinct body under the name of the Afri can Pn•s by­
terian Barapeli Church? 

2. 'Vas M.oloantoa duly appointed Moderator of the African 
Presbyterian Bafolisi Church? 

3. 'Vas ~Iokalapa deposed from his position of Moderator 
and were he and Matla expelled from the Church in 
accordance with tlw Constitution? 

The first question is by no means free from difficulty as 
there arc indications in the e,•idence which poin t either way, 
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lf Moloantoa did secPde then his Church is not <'ntitled to 
a ny of the property of the Church from whi ch he seced L•d ai'! 
against those who did not secede. (See Dwan e vs. Gozu 
and Others, 1 i K D.C. p. 8. ) 

It will l•l' remembered that the di11pute between l\Iok a lapa 
and .:\loloantoa occurreu in 1LHch , l9:J~. Jn F<~bruary , 19:33, 
.:\loloantoa writing to l'etrus Sithole , one of tlw .Ministt>rs of 
the Churcb, :-;a,Y~ : (ExhiiJit A . i') : " 1 !war you art> com ing 
to my l'olllllllttet> at Kroonstad. \Yhom arl' ,d.JU coming to ~ 
Because Moloantoa is out of your lot now. If you have come 
to ma kP dissension here where J am in power you will brin g 
disscn:,ion here and you will go out of 1\:roonstad withou t 
looki ng back and the Go\'ernment will break it up because i t 
is a Church of disputes. .l\lokalapa does not speak the truth. 
Attonwy LoulJser on 15th September , 1932 >- eparatt>d u s . . . 
The house at 1\:roonstad goes to the Kroonstad Congreg at ion . 
.:\lokalapa took another attol'IH' Y \ ' orster, who wrote that 1 
(.:\loloantoa) mu:-;t go out of the house , but 1 t ook the lettt> r 
to ~\.ttorm·y Louhser who said 1 must stay. Then 1 got 
summons. ThPu Loubser asked Superintendent of Location -; 
who took a ,·ott·. At teh meeting of Kroon stad .:\loloantoa got 
the majorit~· . Attorney Vorster tlll'n left the matter at that . 
• \ttorn<>y Louhst>r on 15th Septembt>I', W3~ , ('allcd me. 1 
went. He said tii~c• meeting must giYe tl1e sum of £4. 10s. to 
.:\lokalapa and h<> must give another name because we cannot 
ket>p tht> name of Bafolisi . . . The Congregation has now 
Lcen gi\'en anotht;r name and I am working under that new 
name. ,·iz.: African Presbyterian Barapeli Church. In the 
jlagistrate's Office I do not take the permit for sacramental 
wine under the name of Bafolisi as tlw white men have fixed 
up the thing in the .:\lunicipality. From now onward we can , 
therefore, not speak an~· further to you. .l\lokalapa h as no 
docunwnt re application to .:\lunieipality for stand and t he 
Government does not recogniZL' the Church of l\lokalapa- \\' t> 
want anoth t> r :\loderator ". 

Writing again to the same man on 28th December, 19:33 
( Exhibit .A. 9), .:\loloantoa says: ''Now I let you know that 1 
havt> receind your notice per David Sillo . . . H e said 
you say we must come together again in one Church .. . 
\\'hen l\lokalapa is no longer Moderator of the Church you 
ean come back . . . If it was you and other ministers 
a ppointed hy .l\Iarumo I could understand it , but the )linis­
ters appointed by l\larumo are no longer in the Church 
except ... " 

Xow in this letter while l\loloantoa spt>a ks about them 
coming together agl).in in one Church it is plain that he still 
regards himself as l_Lelonging to the Church founded by l\laru­
mo and hi's objcrtion is merely to l\lokalapa as Moderator. 

Another letter which might possibly be rt>garded a s showing 
that tlwre had been a sect>ssion is one from the Superinten ~ 
dent of Locations at Kroonstad, dated 2:3rd .Ju ly , 193i, to the 
Dt>fendant's attorneys (Exhihit A. 11). This le tter is a s 
follows:-
"Re African l'resbyf e rian Unrapeli t!/wrch, 69 D. Location 
1\..rnnnstad: l:ct·d. Samuel 1lloluanfna , J>a s fur in clwry c. 

Further to our phone conversation of even date, 1 ha,·e tt> 
advise that the above-mentioned Chmch was onginally r egis· 
tered in the name of tlw African PresbYterian Church. ]u 
HJ:32 the HP,·d . .l\Ioloantoa had an argunien t with his Bi~o;hop 
t he Renl. l\lokalapa of the African Presbyterian Church. 
On tlw ith December, 1932, the Bishop .l\lokalapa asked nu' 
to arbitrate in the dispute , and I called l!ttorney J. \V. 
Loubser to assist. The whole Congregation attcndc>d the 
proceedings in the Location Hall. On the ballot , whieh the 
Bishop and .l\ioloantoa agreed to abide b~', an overwlwlming 
majority voted rPtaining Moloantoa and the church hnilding 
they had put up and st>ceding from the old Church of .l\loka · 
lap a. 
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Tlw I'P<·tiou Sl'e<>ding caliL·d itself allll its church building 
'The African Harapeli Chureh ', and the name of the Church 
was duly changed from African Preshyterian Church to Afri­
ean Preshyt<>rian Barapcli Church on Hut Tramfer Certifi­
cate No. GOti of the lth. December, 1932. 

[ belie\·e that the full tit!<> of the old Afric-an Preshyt<>riau 
ChurPh under tile Hishopric of Mokalapa was the .\frica1. 
J>n•sbyterian Bafolisi Church ... " 

These letter:s regarded hy them:-;L•h·es do undoubtedly sug­
gest tli P possibility of there having been a sPcessiou in 1932. 
but whe n regard is had to other factors and other documen· 
tary evi<lence this suggest ion is negatiYed. The Ch'urch a~ 
originally foundP<l by the Revel. ::\Iarumo \ras called simply 
" The African Prm;hyterian C'hureh " to whir·h the won] Bafo. 
lisi \\"m; s ub~eqtwntly addPd. Ko changP. ho\re\·er, wa~ 
effPcted either in the religious tPnets of tlw members or in 
the Constitution. WhPn tile split oceurrPd in 19:32, which 
appears to haYe been purely pPrsonal bet\n•0n Mokalapa and 
~loloantoa, the latter added to the nanw of his Church at 
Kroonstad the \rord " Barapel i ". The PvidPnce clear!~· shO\n 
that tlw \rords " Bafolisi " and " Barapeli " are real!~ 
synonymous, meaning " healing by prayer" or << Faith­
healing ". f n hii" oral C'Vidf'llCe }(okalapa denies that this is 
so, but in a letter \\Titten by him on the 11th December, 
1936, as represe>ntin g the African Presbyterian Bafolisi 
Church to the SupPrintendent of the Bethlehem Location 
(Exhibit D. 3), the foll<ming passage occurs: "The Cabinet 
Committee of the ahon• C:hurclt at a meeting held at \Yanlen 
on 1st July , 1936, passed a ref\olution that the African 
Presbyterian Bafolisi Church and the African Presbyterian 
Barapeli C'hureh are 011e and the sanw. the words Barapeli 
and Bafoli si in SPsnto having the same signfication, nanwl:v, 
' Healing by prayPr '." 

Since 1932 ministerial credentials and certificates of mem­
bership of the Women 's Societ~· of the Church issued b;\· 
.Moloantoa hear the snperscnption "The African Presby­
terian C'hurch " " Establi shed 1908. Founder F.. ,J. ]){ani­
mo", thus showing that he sti ll regarded himself as belong­
ing to the same Churf'!1 which ~Iarumo had founded, the same 
Chnrch to which 1\lokalapa belongs. 

Finall:v we find that ::\Ioloantoa on 20th April, 19.'36. wrote 
to the Nati\·p Commissioner at Harri smith that Mokalapa 
had been expPI!f'd from the African Presbyterian Chnrch. 

His lette1· \\"as apparently refPrred to ::\Iolmlapa or his 
attorne;\" for on the 16th ,July, 1936, .Mr. Attorney CloetP 
wrote to the Xativc Commlissioner [Exhibit S (b)] that 
::\[oloantoa had dissociated him~Plf from t!Jp African Pres­
byterian Bafolisi Church in 1932 and consPquently had 110 

right to make any representations on behalf of that Church. 
This lettPr was rPferred to l\Ioloantoa bv the ~ative Com­
missioner. l\loloantoa sent a reply signed ·],y him and twent.v­
on<' ministers who \rere supporting him emphatically denying 
that theY ha·d dissociated themseh·es from thP African PrPs­
byterian· Church. 

Ha,·ing ca reful!~· considered a ll the Pvidenc<' we are of 
opinion that there \Yas no secession in th<> rPal sense of t lw 
word and that tlw dispntP that arosP was nwrely one b..twccn 
two ministers each of whom claimed to he the leader of the 
Chmch.. 

These rival c-laims must now he considcre<l. It can ],p 
accepted that l\lokalapa was duly appointed as ~[oderator in 
succession to l\larnmo. The pamph!Pt (Exhibit. T) in which 
is printed th0 Coustitntion of the Clmrch contains the fol­
lowing statement: " \Ve, thP undersigned ministers and 
memlwrs of the above ChnrPh in assembly at KestPll, OrangP 
Free State, 011 28th Det:Pmbcr, in the yca"r of our Lord <1918), 
have <H:cordiug to onr Constitution and h0ing gatlwrcd for 





55 

that soh• pnqwsc•, duly cleeted, nominated, and appointed 
our brother Minister, the Renl. J. H. ::\[okalapa, to the 
position as l\lockrator of the Afriean Presbyterian Bafolisi 
Chnreh of South Africa." 

Appended to this an• tlw names of the ~ynod Officers . 
From that time until 193G l\Iokalapa was recognized as the 
}loderator, and it is elea1· that his appointnwnt was made in 
accordnnc<' with the Constitution at a mPPting spt>cially called 
for the purpose. 

\Ye deal now with .i\foloanton 's claim to the l\Ioderatorship. 
His claim is has<'<l on the following document , which ha-; bt>en 
inse rted as an Pxtra page in the pamphlet containing the 
Constitution: " " 'e, the undersigned ministers of tlw African 
Preslwterian Church have nominat<>d and Plceted our Brother , 
tiH• Rev. S. J. Moloantoa, a» }[oderator in a diredional 
position of the a hove-mentioned Church and the sanw was 
confirmed by the R ev. ,J. Q. l\lokuena, of the Apostolie Faith 
~fission Chun·h, on the 30th March, 193ct. \Ve have granted 
him the .Rights of Representatin ll_nd General Moderator of 
the African Presbyterian Church in the five Provim<'s in the 
Union of South Africa." 

Appe!l()pu to this are the names of seventeen penwns 
styling themseh·es Synod Officers. 

There are several points in connection with this document 
whieh call for comment. In the first plaep there is nothing 
to show where and when the meeting at which the eiPction 
took place was held, nor is there any indication that th<> 
meeting was called in accordance with the Constitution or. 
if it was not at an Annual Conference, that dne notice. of 
the date, plaee and ohject of the nwPting wa<; given. There 
is eertainl~, no evidence that l\[okalapa and the church 
members who supported him were notified. :\[oloantoa admits 
that this document " ·as printed in 19:~4. yet we find that eYen 
aftt•r that date he recognized l\Iokalapa as :\loderator. For 
instancl', there is a lette r [Exhibit Q (n)l, dated 27th July , 
1936, signed by Solomon :\[abola for Renl. J. :\[oloantoa to 
:\Jokalapa, address ing him as Right ReYerend and advising 
him of a meeting of the S.A.P. B. Church at Fouriesburg 
Location on 31st August, 1936, and asking him to be presPnt 
with his ministers and saying this would solve the difficulty 
and proceeding: " A resignation eau ah:o he made but this 
will not help if 9ur minister s do not come together and pnt 
right what il': wrong." 

The only resignation he could have hcen referring to was 
that of l\Iokalapa and it " ·ould seem that :\foloantoa and his 
supporters had kept secret the fact of his so-called election. 
The suggestion of secrecy is further borne out by the fact 
that notification of the appointment was not sent to the 
::ic<-retary for .l\ative Affairs until the 9th December, 1936 
(gxhibit A. 1), about two years and nine months after the 
so-called election and n.jter thP lt>tter of demand had hc>Pn 
~Pnt to Defendant iu this case. 

The n again no explanation has OPen offered as to what 
connection the Apostolic Faith Mission Church had with the 
African Presbyte}"ian Church or why the appointment had 
to be eonfirme·d by a minister of tlw fh:.,'>t-mc>ntionc>cl Chn rf'h. 
If this matter had been probe() a good deal of light would 
probably have been thrown on the case. 

The Constitution of the Chureh does not lay down dcfinit<' 
r ules in regard to the supersession or election of ModPrators. 
hut it would appear from a reference to Section 12 of the 
Constitution that a )[oderator would hold office so long as his 
" life and teaching correspond with the Gospel and Philan­
thropi st Nat ion ", whatever that may nwan . 

It is, however, only in accordancP with thP rules of natural 
justicP that hefor<' an offif·ial of the Church is removed from 
his post and another put in liis placP that the full<'st <'IHlnir.v 
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should be made and due notice given to him of such enquiry 
to enable him to def~nd himo.elf (see Cohen vs. Committee of 
~arrismith Hebrew C'ongre12:at ion O.P .D. 9/11/23, reported 
111 2.P.H.-M. 42). 

As a matter of fact the Constitution does lay down rules 
for the trial of minist ers and lay members. These, however, 
will be considert~d when dt'aling with the third question pro­
pounded above, namely , the expnlo.ion of JHokalapa- and 
l\Iatla. 

In so Jar as )J oloantoa 's <·!aim is concerned we are of 
opinion that he has failed satisfactorily to prove that he was 
appointed .Moderator of the African Presbyterian Church in 
due form. 

\V c come now to the third question. f t is somewhat diffi­
cult to gather from the evidence the exact da te when l\Ioka­
lapa is alleged to have been deposed from the Moderatorship. 
The witness Phutsisi says: "Mokalapa was on 16th May. 
1935, no longer Moderator of our Church, he had then already 
been removed from his post." 

Moloantoa says: " Ek ken Joseph Matla-die verweerder 
in hierdie saak. Hy is nie !anger predikant in die Kcrk 
wat ck genoem het daar by dit verlaat het in Mei 1936. Die 
Sinode van m~· genocmde Kerk het J\lokalapa afgesit-Hr 
was destyds d1e .Mode rator van ons Kerk. l\ fatla het toe 
Mokalapa gevolg en ons K erk verlaat ." 

The plain meaning of this io. that Mokalapa was d epo§ed in 
l\Iay , 1936, yet later on in his evidence he says: "Mokalapa 
en sy ander volgeling~ het uit ons Kerk gevlug in 1935 ", and 
he repeato. in anothe11 portion of his evidence that he was put 
out (uitgesit) in 1935. 

On the 20th April , 1936 . Moloantoa m·ites to the Magis­
t rate, Harrismith, reporting that l\Iokalapa had been 
<~xpelled from the Church. Unfortunately l\foloantoa's letter 
has not been 1m t in so that it io. not lmmYn whether be 
indicated when and in what manner the expulsion took place. 

More definite evidence is afforded by a letter written to 
the Town Clerk, Bethlehem, on 30th April, 1936 (Exhibit D. 
1) by the Synod Officers of the African Presbyteria n Church 
in which this passage occurs: " I instructed about the 
Resolution have been passed by our Synod held at Tsime, 
Buthabuth'1 , Basntoland, on the 9th April, as R evd. John H. 
Mokalapa of Harrismith have been expelled by. the Synod on 
many reasons we therefore requeo.t your Councillors to remm·e 
the Revd. Joseph Matla from Site No. 158 ... " 

Tal; mg this in conjunction with the letter to the Magis­
t rate , Harrismith, it seems clear that the final suggestion is 
that. the deposition or expulsion was effected at a meeting of 
th~ Synod held on 9th .April , 1936. 

Whatever date is accept(•d this one faet clearly emerges, 
namely , that Mokalapa was not removed from the Moderator­
ship before 1935. That being so, still further doubt is thrown 
on the legality of the apopiutment of Moloantoa in 1934, for 
it is not possible to have two Moderators of t he sa me body 
at one time. 

Moloantoa is very uncertain as to whether or not l\Iokalapa 
and l\Iatla (Defendant) are still members of his Church. HP 
says in one place that they left the Church in 1935 and la ter 
that they are still lll l'lllhers (i.e. on 6th July, 1937, when he 
was giving evidence). 

He is quite definite, however , that tlw,v were expelled from 
the ministry. It then bPeomes necessary to ascertain whether 
the alleged. expulsion was carriPd out in accordanc(' with the 
Constitution. If it was not the expulsion has no force or 
effect . 
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The Constitution is not too clearly worded, but the proce­
dure to be follow('d in the trial of ministPrs :tnd lav members 
against whom complaints are made appears to 'he as fol­
lows: -

'rhe complaints must first be examined by five ordained 
ministers a:-. a Committet' of investigation who shall report 
to the Annual Conference (s.s. 14). Before the Annual Con­
ference deals with the matter, apparently, the aecused person 
nmst be reported by the elder-in-charge of the district to 
the Senior o,·erseer, or the o,·erseer next in seniority, if the 
:;enior he the accused, who shall appoint a Committee of one 
overseer and four elders to conduct the trial. This Commit­
tee must place in his (aceused's) hand a " bill of complaint 
or charges " at l~ast one week before the date set for trial. 

If an Overseer is fonnd guilty of crime the Committee has 
power to su:--pend him from all official functions until the 
r>nsning Annual Conft'rcnee. If the .\nnual Conferenee deter­
mine in his favour it shall have po\\·er to re,·ersc the decision 
of the Committee and restore him to his former function; 
if it shall find him guilty, it shall continuP hi s suspensiou 
untd the next ensuing General Conference. which has the 
pmYer to 8Uspend or expel him from his l<:piscopal function 
(s.s. 24). 

Throughout the record of this case there is nothing to sho\\' 
that any one of the requirement:, of the Constitution in 
regard to the trial nnd expnlsion of l\Iokalapa and l\Iatla 
\\'f're fulfilled and \\'hatever action was taken was ultra rires 
and of no effect and consequently the,\' are still ministers of 
the African Presbyterian (Bafolisi) Church. 

l\Iokala pa says in his evidence that Defendant was 
appointed a<; minister at Bethlehem by the Conference of the 
African Presbyterian Bafolisi Church, and this statement 
receives strong support from one of the Plaintiff's witnesses, 
namely , the Location Superintendent at Bethlehem. On the 
9th Octolwr, 1936, .Mr. Attorney Canisius, on behalf of l\Iolo­
antoa, \\TOt<' to the Town Clerk at Bethlehem (Exhibit D. 10) 
alleging that th~ Location Superintendent had ejected the 
Hevd. Phutsi~i from Stand No. 158 and allowed Matla 
(Defendant) to take possession. 'fhe letter proceeded: " The 
latter has no connection whatever with the African Pres­
byterian Church and has no right whatever to occupy the 
Stand "·hich has been allocated to the Church and on whieh 
the rates have been paid b~r the Church." 

This letter was replied to by the Superintendent of Loca­
tions on 12th October, 1936 (Exhibit D. 11) denying that he 
had ejected Re,·d. Phutsisi from the stand and proceeded: 
" I can definitely state that he was transferrl'd to Maseru and 
Re,· . .Matla to Bethlehem bv the Conference of the Church.'' 
This actually shows th:tt l\iatla's original occupation of the 
stand in question was quite la"·ful , and before he ran be 
ejected it must be shown that since that date his occupation 
has become unlawful. 

.Moloantoa claims that his occupation has become unla wf~1l 
because he ceased to be a minister of the Plaintiff Church 1n 
May, 1936. 

This Court has found that Plaintiff has failed to prove that 
he was expelled from the Church. In these circumstancPs a 
judgment of absolution from the instance was the most that 
should haYe been granted, leaving it open to Plaintiff to re­
opPn the matter and produce proper pmof of illegal occupa­
tion. 

In view of the decision at which this Court h:ts arriYcd it 
is unnecessary to consider the first ground of appeal. 

In so far as the second ground of appeal is concerned it 
appears from the record that the headquarters of the African 
Presbyterian Bafolisi Church are situate and the Church has 
property within the Union of South Africa. 
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In these cireumstauees we are of opuuon that the Native 
Commissionl'r correctly refu:;ed to order the Plaintiff to fur­
nish security for eosts: The appeal on this ground must fail. 

Before this Court ..Appellant 's Counsel argued that Plaintiff 
in the Court below, h:Hl not proved his title to sue. HP 
submitted that this point had been raised by Plaintiff's attor­
ney when he asked to be supplied with the names and addres­
ses of all the members of the Congregation. This, of' course, 
is not so. An application for information as to tire members 
of a church body ean by no stretch of imagination be 
regarded as an objection to the title of the }foderator of that 
body to >.ne. 

If it had been intended to attack tlw Plaintiff's title to 
sue, this should have been done crisp!~'· 

It is also contended by ..Appellant's counsel that, even if it 
was held that the point had not been taken in the Court 
below, he was entitle_d to raise it for the fir st time on appeal 
as it was a point of law. Now there an' a number of cases 
where a Court of ..Appeal has allowed IU) W points to be taken 
on appeal but this ease is not one where that ean he done . 

" \\'here a new law point involves the decision of quest ion ~ 
of fact, the e\·idenee with regard to which has not heen 
exhausted, or where it is possible that if the point had been 
taken earlier it might ha,·e been met by the production of 
further evidence, then a Court of Appeal will not allow the 
point to prerail. Because it would be manifestly unfair to 
the other litigant to (lo so." (lnnes, .J. in Cole 'L'S. Govern­
ment of the TTnion of South Africa , 1910 ..A.D. at p. 273.) 

In the case of Gerber vs . Richter (3 l\Ienzies 424) it was 
laid down that where objection to the Plaintiff's titlE> to 
sue has not been t.aken in the Court below, it cannot he 
tal>ell on appeal. If the Plaintiff's title to sue in the present 
ease had been challenged in the Court below. it is possible 
that he might have produced further evidence to meet tht> 
point. As this was not done it is not competent to raise tlw 
point on appeal. 

The result is that the appeal is allowed with costs and the 
jndgment in the Court below is alter('d to one of absolution 
from the instance with cost~. 

1147 LT~N) l(f ~-
MOSES KHOLOANI vs. XOTYANA and THOMAS XINIBE. 

KINGWILLIAl\ISTOWN: '30th August, 1938. Before H. G. S(·ott, 
Esq., President, and .Messrs .• J. .J. Yates and G. D. 
Hartmann, Members of the N.A.C' . 

.:lppeal- Practice-Appellant in default-Rule 13, G.N. So. 
2254 of 1928 ]J"rot·ides tha.t appeal shall W..pse unless prose­
nded at nut session of Nati.ve Appeal Cotl7't after appeal 
noted-Appeal noted 30th Jfarch , 1938, and no Teason 
ad·ra,nced /oT failure to prosPc1t.te timeously-:lppeol 
struck off roll with costs. 

(Appeal from Native Commissioner's Court, Lady Gn'.'l': 
Case No. 3 of 1938.) 

There is no appearance for Appellant . 

.l\Ir. Atherstone, who appears for R espondent states he has 
been requested to apply for a post ponement of the apJwal 
to the n<>xt session of this Conrt. 

Rule 13 of the Rules of the Native Appeal Court providPs 
that the party noting an al)peal or C I'oss-app~al shall prosecute 
such appeal at the next session of the Native .\ppeal Court 
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and in default of sueh prost>cntiou the appeal or cross-appeal 
shall lapse, provid1•d that the Court of appeal may permit 
such appea l or cross-appeal to be prose<·uted at any subsequent 
session of such Court. · 

The appeal in t hi s I':JSt> was no tt'd :u; far back as 30th 
.March , 1938, and no rea:>ott wltatever ha s been ach·anced why 
it should not have been ruoceeded with at thi s session of the 
Nati,·e Appeal Cour-t . 

The appeal is struck off the roll with costs. 

SITWAYI vs. BANGANI DOKODA. 

llUTTEHWORTn: 26th September, 1938. Before W . J. G. 
Mears, l~sq. , Acting President , and M essrs. K F. God­
hey and H. F. l\Iarsberg, l\Iembe rs of the ~.A.C. 

A.ppeal-Proced ure- Foilure of .] udiciol Officer to record 
findings in. regard t o i nspection of stock at trial- R emit­
tal uf record for completion a nd re-submission to .!ppenl 
Court. 

(Appeal from t he Native Commis~-;ioner 's Court, Idutywa : 
Case Xo. 116 of 1938.) 

Before addressing the Court on the merits of the case , .l\1 r. 
\Yarner, for Appellant . applies that it he remitted to the 
Native Contmis:-;ion er for an entry to be mad e on th t> record 
of the Judicial Office r 's findings in r egard to the earmarks 
fo und on Plaintiff' s cattle which were produced to the Court 
for inspection. H e states that the record is si lent on this 
point, that it is mate rial and the omission is prejudicial to 
hi s client. 

l\lr. Ellis , for Respondent . admits that th e judicial officer 
did

1 
at the r equest of the parties, inspect certain cattle and 

t heir earmarks, produced on Plaintiff' s behalf but opposes the 
application on the ground that the re are references to sn r- h 
inspection and the ea rmarks in the eYidence of certain \vit­
nesses . 

This Court will exercise it:-; i nher ent powers and remits the 
record to the judicial office r fo r completion and re-submissiou 
thereafter to this Court. 

There will be no onkr as to costs. 

SONKU NTSUNDUSHE vs. NQWILISO TOTU . 

HuTTERWORTH: :!6th September , 1938. Before W. ,J. G. 
Mears, Esq., Acting President. and .:\Iessrs. K F. God­
frey a nd H. F . .:\larsberg , .Membe rs of the N.A.C. 

Danuzges-Adultery- ln 81f,f/i ciency of proof. 

(Appeal from the Xative Commissioner' s Court, ldutywa : 
Case No. 2 of 19:~8.) 

This i~; a claim for 5 head of catt le or £20 a :-; damages for 
adultery and pregnancy. 

Plaintiff <>stabli~;lw-d that he wa s awav from honw fi'Om 
Novt>mlwr , 193.:5 , to DP<'l ·mhe r, HJ:{i. · 

On arri,•ing; home he fo und h is wife in her tltird month of 
pregnane;~'. Defendant . to whom Plaintiff's wifl' was scut both 
he fore and after hi~; return. deni ed lia hilitv to t ltt> llH'SS<' ngPr:>. 
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A certificat<' from a medieal practitioner established that 
on 14th Dl'('ember , HJ37, the woman WaR suffering from a 
recf'nt miscarriage. 

Plaintiff's wile Nose,·eui gave evideiH·e of intimacy with 
Defendant and her resulting pregnancy. 

She further stated that after having made a denial to the 
mes~engers Defc•ndant discussed the matter of hei· }Jregnancy 
with her and gan} her med icine in a tin with a view to pro­
enring a miscarriage which actually took place after her 
husband's return. 

X okamilP, Plaintiff's other wife, Rtatcs that she acted as 
go-between, received a fee and corroborated N oseveni in 
regard to her meeting with Defendant. 

Defendant denied intimacy and liability and produced docu­
mentary evidence to show that he was at work from Frebuarv 
to June , 1931. H e admits that the woman was twice seu't 
to him but alleges that the woman ou the second oecasion 
stated she was then following her monthly eourses. 

The ARsi~tant Native Commissioner referR to various dis­
crepancies in the evidence of Plaintiff 's two chief witnesses, 
both wives of Plaintiff , but states that they do not warrant 
dis-belief in them. 

He , however, does not elaborate his reasons for accepting 
the evidence of these women and rejecting that of Defendant. 

:Nokayiloti the only other witness called for Plaintiff gave 
testimony which was of no 0vidential value and contradicted 
the evidence of the other two wom~n. 

This Court has repeatedly laid down that in cases of this 
nature, Plaintiff must prm•e his allegations beyond reason­
able doubt and in our opinion the Assistant Native Commis­
sioner has failed to give sufficient c·onsideration to the dis­
crepancies which he admits exist in the evidence of the 
"·omen and their unreliabilitv aR teste>d on an issue "·hich 
can be definite>ly proved. · 

Nose,·eni states that during a long intimacy of tweh·e 
months Defendant was never away from work. Nokamile 
admits that he was away for a mm;th or two. Defendant in 
fact was away m·er four months. 

These witness~s also disagree as to details on the occasion 
of Defendant' s visits to Noseveni. 

The crucial test in the case is the evidence iu regard to the 
tin of medicine. 

On this point, Plaintiff only states that he sent the tin to 
the medical practitioner. Xosen'ni herself admits that she 
produced the tin to her husband only after the miscarriage 
whereas Nokamile state that XoseYeni actuallv confrontf'd 
Defendant with th e tin when sent with messengers to him. 
Defendant denies knowledge of the mellicine. 

In our opinion it is highly improbable that Defendant 
after his denial of liability would place in the hands of the 
woman such damning evidence against himself. 

In view of Koseveni's pro,·ed untruthfnlnt>ss iu regard to 
DefPndant's absence and her obvious desire to make the case 
against him as serious as possible coupled with the conflicting 
Pvidence of N okamile, this Court is not prepared to accept 
the evidence teudered on thiR point. 

There is no " eatch " in this case and the evidence addnced 
is meagre and most unreliable. 'J'hc appeal is accordiugly 
allowed with co,.;ts and the judgu1ent altPrPcl to one for Dc•fPn­
dant with cost,;. 
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TWALINDWE and NXOWA NEKU vs. NQOTO MONI. 

BuTTERWOHTU: :21th September, 1938. Before \V. J. G. 
)[ears, g~q., Acting President , and .:\lPssrs. E. F. Godfre~· 
and H. I<'. 1\brsbNg, Members of the N.A.C. 

:!llllltl'l"!t- /Janwyes- l'lea that no 'lllarriagc e.risted betu:een 
l'laintiff and H·ouwn with !!"!tom intercourse took, place­
Jlan·ia,!fl' armnged in l'lainfif!'s absencr-l'ayment of 
tlou-ry 011 afcount- H'o man remaiutny at l'laintiff' s laaal 
after bl'iny tll"alaed and dressing as and performing duti es 
of 11 ife-l'laintiff' s snbsequent return and occupation of 
same ltut us tcouwn-Hcld to tonstitute 1ml-id marria(lP 
tlllder Satipe Cnstom. 

(Appeal from Kati,·e Commissioner's Court, Kentani: 
Case Xo. 190 of 19:31.) 

In this case the Plaintiff in tlw Court belo"· claimed from 
tlw two Defendant~ joi11tly and !;everally, the one paying. 
the other to be absolved-the Hecond Defendant as head of 
the kraal-eight head of cattle or their value £40 as damages 
for alleged adultery by the first Defendant "·ith his (Plain­
tiff's) wife, Notahile', alias 1\Iondc. 

The plea was a denial that any marriage took place, 
existPd, or exiHts between Plaintiff and the woman in questiou 
and he had no grounds of action. 

The Assistant Native Commissioner entered judgment for 
Plaintiff as prayed with costs. 

Agaiwst this judgment an appeal has been noted on the 
followi n g grounds:-

(a) That the finding of the Assistant Xati,·e Commissioner 
is not supported by the evidence adduced. 

(b) That the finding of the Assistant Kative Commissioner 
is contrary to Native Law and Custom in that the 
evideuce :~clduced by the Plaintiff faih•d to establish 
and }Hm·e that ther~' was a marriage between Plaintiff 
and ..'\londe. 

(c) Tlwre is no e,·idence whatsoerer of the conseut of the 
Pla intiff to the marriage, nor did hf on his return take 
any steps to confirm or otherwise. arrangements sa id 
to have been Inade for him. 

(d) The only e,·idence of consent by the "·oman :Moncle is 
that she would have been content to stav had slw been 

(e) 

properly rcceired bv Plaintiff. · 

There is no satisfactory e\·ideiJ('E' of the coJi summatiun 
of th<> marriage exc-ept for that of Plaintiff "·hieh 
evidem-c is directly contradicted b~· the ~'''idence of his 
so-called wife, whose e,·ide nee is to a large exten t 
corroborated lw the absence of pregnancy or issue; and 
in the event ~f the AppPal Court ruling aga in,.,t the 
Appellant on the question of marriage. 

(f) That the Assistant N a tin~ Commissioner eiTed in allow­
ing l'ight head of eattle as damagP>~ in the pc('uliar 
ei rcumsta nces of this case. 

During :n·gnment the attorney fo r the Appellant, on. 
reference hy the Hespondent 's attorney to paragra pl_1 (/) 1?f 
thP Kotiee of AppPal , r ema rked that lw was not prPss mg this 
:11Hl \Ya:-: ahandoninz it. 

From tlw evidence adduced it appears t hat lluring the 
absence of the Hespondent at work ahont the vear of tlH' 
lo<"usts (1935) lw wrote to his 111atcrnal uncle , ":\[ashini, to 
arrange for his marriage with t lw woman in ouestion. 
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'l'hat Mashini negotiatPd the marriage with Mdlungu, the 
natural guardian of the girl, who demanded eight head of 
cattle as dowry. 

That in winter of that year (.:Uay-June, 1933). the gid was 
twalaed to Hespondcnt's home, and five head of cattle were 
taken away on account hy the guardian's messengers , Quada­
lele and 1\Iqulo. 

That the girl was given the name of Xotobile , remained 
at Uespondent's home, put on the breast cloth and wore a 
handkerchief over her eyt•s and performed the usual duties 
of a wife at the l;;raal. 

That Respondent returned home after Christmas (1935) fol­
lowing this winter. 

That he stayed only three weeks during which period he 
occupied the same hut as the girl in question. 

That owing to pressure of debts he returned to work on the 
Rand. 

That the girl in que~tion left the Respondent' s home during 
the month known by natives as "msinsi '' (September, 19:36) . 

That soon after more dowry was d0manded and a black 
heifer tendered by word of mouth. 

That in J auuary, 1937, on receipt of a letter from .l\lr. 
Attorne> Neethling it was found that the girl Monde, olia s 
Nc•tobile, was living in adultery with the first Appellant. 

That in the absence of 1\hllungu, Qudah•le, the man left in 
eharge, offered to return the f1re dowr.Y c-attle-one original 
and four substitute-which were refused. 

That .Nqoto, the Respondent, was ach·ised by letter of the 
position and he rPturned in November, 1937, after issue of 
summons on instructions of ~Iashini. 

For Appellants the facts as disclosed by the Respondents 
are almost in eve ry insta11ce supported b~· them and their 
witnesses. 

In fact, first Appellant, on the 25th March. 1937, in answer 
to a demand, admitted liabilit.\· for the first adultery in three 
head of cattle. The girl herself admitted that she remained 
at Respondent's kraal as a wife before and after the visit of 
the Respondent, but c-ontends that he never had earnal inter­
course with her. 

It was onlY after she hecame enamoured with first Defen­
dant and he.' evidently, was able to offer more dowry that the 
consummation of the marriage between Respondent and the 
girl was questioned. 

The facts as disclosed in the e\·idence were placed hefore 
the five Native Assessors and thev were unanimous in their 
decision that this was a marriage· in accordance' with Xative 
Law and Custom. 

This Court consider~ that the essentials of a Xative mar­
riage have been complied with; dowry has been paid and 
aceepted and the Plaintiff and woman have lived together as 
man and wife at Plaintiff's kraal. 

The appeal is accordingly dismissed with costs . 
H. F. ~[arsberg. Esq., )[ember, dissents. 

DISSENTII\G JuDGliiEXT IX THE CAsE OF 'f\\'ALINDWE and 
NXOWA NEKU, Appellants, vs. XQOTO l\IOXI , RPs­
pondent. 

(Appeal from the NatiYe CommissionPr's Court , Kentaui : 
Case X o. 190 of 1937 .) 

I regret I find mysplf unable to assent to tlw view takPn 
by my brothers in this case, the more ~o as the~· are supported 
by the unaminons opinion of the Natin• A sse~sors. "'ith the 
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main facts as outlinl'Cl in the majority judgment I find myself 
in agreement but I am unable to aiTIVP at the conclusion 
that from such facts it ca11 elearly be held that a Nativt­
customary union took place between Plaintiff and the woman 
l\londe. 'l'he facts, IJnefl~· . are that Plaintiff, while working 
at the mines wrote to his people to get .:\londe as his wife, 
that his people negotiated with .1\londe's people, that shP 
then took up residence at Plaintiff's kraal (still in his absence , 
be it noted), that cattle passed, that .1\londe thereupon 
regarded hc>rself- by dress, perfonnan<·e of housdwld <luties 
and so forth-as a wifL'. In this state she Ji,·ed on at th<• 
kraal for a period of t<>n months before Plaintiff returned 
fJ"Om the minc>s. He remained for three weeks and agam 
IPft for work for an indefinite period. There is no clear 
e\·idence that Plaintiff retunwd to his home from work for 
the express purpose of <·onsummating the union and Plaintiff 
and l\londe contradict one another as to wlwther intercourse 
took place>. The question naturally arises: .At what point 
of time did the customary union take effect ? Two obvious 
occasions suggest themselves. Firstly, when Monde originall:l" 
went to Plaintiff's kraal, and secondly. when Plaintiff 
r<>tnrned to his lo;aal. 

In regard to the first point 1 infer from the Pxpression of 
opinion of the Native Assessors that they support the idea 
that union would be regarded as having taken effect from 
the time when the girl was handed o\·er to Plaintiff's rwoplP . 

.At this stage Plaintiff. the man, was away at work with no 
definitely expressed intentions in regard to the time for his 
return. Had he not returned he would, according to the 
Native .Assessors, be regarded as having: deserted his wife. 
If this alliance between the Plaintiff and the woman is then 
to be regarded as customary union, it is, in my opinion, a 
1wgation of the fundamental ideas of marriage as <'mbodied 
in the statutory definition of customary nnion which means 
the association of a man and a woman i11 con.iugal relation­
ship according to i'lative La"· and Custmu. 

ln the other case the taking effect of tliP union would 
depend on the return of the man to the kraal. This could 
depend on the whim or caprice of the man or it might be 
purely accidental. In this case Plaintiff returned to his kraal 
and stayed there for a period of only three weeks, when he 
left again for an indefinite term. There is no evidence to 
show that he returned expressly in connection with this alli­
ance with .:\londe. Had she been absPnt from the kraal for 
any reason during his short stay it is questionable what 
would then have b<>en the position between them. 

This Court is asked. ther<>fore, to hold that the ·consumma­
tion of tlw marriage was dependent pure!~· on the ha,ppening 
of a very uncertain event, the return to the kraal of the 
Plaintiff. who on that occasion may or mav not ha\'<' found 
his wife awaiting him. · · 

Again, then. the whole transac-tion is so in c-onflict with the 
practice of all civilized peoples which demands that there 
shall be no uncertainty in r<>gard to the celebration of mar­
riage, that this Court ought not on the grounds of public 
policy to give its appro\·al to this type of alliance. Nor is 
there lack of authority for this proposition. 

In the case of Sofiba vs. Gova (1 N.A.C . 7) the dangers 
inherent in marriages bv prox~· were hinted at. There the 
Court felt that it could not uphold a maJTiage wlwrc th e 
eonsent of the husband to tlw contract had not hPPII gin'n , 
whure he was not en'n at the kraal to which tlw girl h:ul 
been sent and tlwre was nothing to show that he was likel.v 
to he there within a rPasonalJle time. 

The very natnrP of th<> marriage contract requires that both 
partiPs must be at hand to givP pffect to it. 
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It is signifieant that there is no other reported ease of 
marriage by proxy than the one quoted whieh was decided 
in 189G. 

'\'er<> it tnH' that such marriages are valid it is unbelievable 
that no cases should have been brought before the Courts 
wht-n' frecpwnt al·tions could be expected for damages on the 
grounds of adultery on the part of the wives in the absence 
of their proxy husbands. Hather. is it not a faet that the 
absence of reportPd casPs indicates that proxy marria~~es arP 
universally known to lJp invalid. 

In my opinion the facts of this Pase do not suggest that 
there was more than a proposal for marriag<> hetw<'en Plain­
tiff and :Monde. 

Such proposals are a n•gular feature of X ati,·e Custom and 
the praetice i~ well understood. 

Judgment should ha Ye been giYt>n for Defl'ndant. 

H. 1•'. ~IARSllERG. 
Butterworth, 21th ~eptPmber, 1938. 

NQAL.AGA DLULA vs. MBUYISELO Zl BONGILE. 

BuTTEHWOitTII: 21th Septl'mhN , l!J:38. Before \\'. J. G. 
})ears, I<:l;q., .\eting President . and ~lessrs. E. F. Godfrey 
aJHI H. F. l\larshe1·g, M embers of tlw X.A.C . 

.Xatit·1· Estafc-Fnr111alities c•ssential fur adoption of child 
and heir uy .:Yatit·e Latc-Fi·nuu Custom •. 

(AppPal from the N a tin• Commissioner's Court. Tsomo: 
CasP 1\o. 60 of 1938.) 

In this case Plaintiff l'laimed to be the brother and heir 
of the PstatP of the late Tiyana }layaba who died, lea,·ing 
no i:;sue. 

Defendant claimed to be the adopt ed son of the said 
Tiyana and his heir. 

Alternative!~· h(' elaiml'd that the cattle and sheep referred 
to in the summons W\'l"P his property, being acquired by his 
own earnings and that the pigs were no longer in existence. 

It is c-ommon eause that Plaintiff is the eldest and onlv 
sun-iving son and heir of the GrPat House of the late Mayaba 
and also heir to the late Tiyana, if J)pfendant is not his 
adopted son and heir as claimed. 

The 1\ ative Commissioner found that adoption had taken 
place. 

In regard to tlw alleged adoption the follmYing are the 
chief features in Defendant's case:-

He was giYen when weaned by his father to be Tiyana's 
heir. At baptism Defendant was given Christian names by 
Tiyana and also the family name of Dlula hy whieh he is still 
registered for tax pnrposl'S. The baptismal ceremony was 
followed by a feast at whieh the judicial officer finds the adop­
tion was made known in tlw presence of neighbours, not 
specially invited. including only one person relate-d by blood 
to Tiyana. 

The finding of the NatiYe Commissioner is appealed against 
for the reasons that-

(a) in the absence of a Chid in Fingoland, the headman 
was not informed of the adoption ; 

(b) only three witnesses attended the allege<! meeting. No 
neighbours were ealled nor were Malo Dlula and his 
two sons, members of the family, though available in 
the district, present. 





Plaintiff himsPif states that lw knP\\" nothing of tliP meeting 
and was not p1·esent, lmt this Court SPes no reasons to di s­
agrf'e with tlw jmlieial offic<>r's finding that he was warnf'd 
hut 1h•c·lined to attend. 

The HPadman wa s not prt•:-wnt uor was he advised of thP 
ndoption. 

The faetl' of tlw C':lSP WPI"I' snbmittPd to the Native Asses­
son; who xtatP:-

" In any pm;e of adoption it is necessary that the blood 
relations should IH' called no nw tter how far distant they are. 
\\' hen blood rPlntions have agrPPCl tlwn tlw matter is "tnken 
to thP Gn•at PlacP. Nowada:vs as therP are no paramount 
ehiefs for I<'ingn Land, \Ye 1·efer to the Hcaclman'~-as the 
' Great PlacP ' : That is an incfepP!IdPnt man and wonld lwlp 
to settle any disptttP whieh may arise later. 

In this case sneh steps lwn:- not bePn tak<>n. The childiPss 
man adopting should havP referred tlw matter to the GrPat 
!'lac(', P\"Pll if the heir of the GrP;It House did not attend 
although askecl to do so. It \Yonld also lw reported to tlw 
Great Plac·p that such a pf'rson rPfm;Ps to attend the adoption 
gathering. 

ThP haptism in ponncctiou with Clmreh Hites i~ not NativP 
Custom. On such oPcnsions f1·a~ts an• pommonly held and 
relatives are not I1Pcessarily callPd. "'e , therefore , hold that 
the- alleged adoption is not in aPL'ord with Native Cnstom. 
The taking of naml's is nothing. Even if there is ill-feeling 
between thf' parties hy going to thP Great Plnce it could have 
l1een sPttled or made known: The adoption would thPn have 
heen c·nrried. " 

It has repPatt•dl;~' been laid down by this Court that an 
adoption is attPnded with much formality: The r('latives of 
e,·en distant degreP and neighbours being assembl('d and a 
formal declaration made. The subsequent notifiPation to the 
Chief is of great importnnPe. As a matter of pral'iiPe suPh 
report is ,·erbally made to tlw HPadman \\"ho is regarded as 
the Chief's rPpr('SPntative , and he in turn conveys the news 
to the ChiPf. 

The statement of customs Pxpressed by the NativP Asses­
sors is in aecord with previon,; dePision of this Conrt. 

Tlw appeal is aPcordingly allowed "·ith Posts. 

As the evidenC'e led \\"as Ponfined to the question of the 
adoption tlw case i~ remitted to the judicial officer to dispose 
of the issue in regard to the !'State property if it is so desirPd 
b;v the pnrties. 

DUBULA MANTANGA vs. MZAMO MANTANGA. 

BuTTEHWOHTH: 27th September, 1938. Before W. J. G . 
.:\[ears, Esq .. Acting President. and .:\Iessrs. E. F. Godfrcy 
and H. F. l\Iarsberg, Members of the N.A.C. 

/'ra.ctice-En(j!liry in t erm.s of par. (3) of Heg11lation 3 of 
fi.N. No. 1664 of 1929- EPidencr heard in absencr of 
parties to enqniry-lrregularity-Procerdin.gs set aside 
and Cll(jllii"!J ordered to UC JI'I'Ofeeded ll~ifh de JlOVO . 

(A ppPal from the XativP Commi;;sioner's Court, 
Tsomo.) 

On the 21st January , 1938, thP Nati,·e Commissioner at 
1\;omo C'Ol11111C'IH"Pd an (•nquiry regarding the statns of the 
thrPe "·ives of tlw late Mantanga " ·ith a. ,·iew to ascertaining 
the rightful hPir to arabiP allotment No. 270, Location No. 7, 
Tsomo. 
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Certain evidence was taken and the enqmry adjourned sin~ 
dir for tht> PvideiH'P of om1 Za~r,ini i-lakiti. 'l'his witness was 
found on tlw 25th January , 1938, but neither of the partiPs 
now figuring as .AppPilant and Ht>spondent I'PHp<'ctively, was 
Jll'l'SL'Il t. 

An appeal was noted against the fin.diug of the Court, on 
the ground of \'ariou s iiTegularities and application was made 
at the samp tinw for a condonation of thP late noting of the 
appeal. 

As A pJwllant is in no way responsible for the dPlay tlw 
Court is prepared to allow the appeal to Le heard. 

'!'he Nativt> Commissioner purporU•d to couduct the enquiry 
in terms of paragraph (3) of regulation three of GovPrnment 
Notit·t> No. 1664 of Hl29, which r<>ads intrr alia a "Native 
Commissimwr .~hall summon lwforP him all the partiPs con­
ct•rncd ''. 

Ln the course of his reasons for judgmPnt the Native 
Commissiout•r states, rpferring to the alleged irregularities 
mentione·d in the grounds of appeal, it is (•orrect to state that 
l\rzamo .Mantanga (present Respondent) was not present at 
any stage of t lw enquiry. Both he and Dubula now cited 
as Appt>llant are young men who could not be of any assis­
tance in dt>termining the matter in issue , namely the status 
of Noposi. The tPrms of the paragraph quoted are peremp­
tory and although the young men mar not have been in a 
poHition to giYe evidence, neYerthelt•ss they were the rival 
claimants for the lot in question and were definitely parties 
eouPerned. The ('onduct of th<' t•nquiry without having sum­
moned ::\[zamo (HespondPnt) hdore him is a grave irregularity. 

The appPal is, therefore, allowP.d and the proceedings before 
the Native Commissionl'l' ~wt aside; tlw Pnquiry should LP 
conducted de novo. 

There will b<> no order as to f'osts. 
This Court \\'Onld draw attention to the fact that it has been 

great!~· hampered apparently by tlw omission from the record 
of certain statpments made heforc the Land Clerk on 2nd 
April, 1937. These statements possibly supply the key to the 
geneological tree proYided, "·ithont \\'hich it is not po;;sible 
to appn•ciate why the respective claims of certain landless 
persons han• been passl·d 0\'er in faYollr of thP present parties . 

RAWLINS LENGOLO vs. XOLO and DIP MADUNA. 

KoKs1'.-\U: 6th O(·tober, 19;~8. Before H. G. Scott, Esq., 
President, and )lessrs. F. C. Pinkerton and R. ,V, Ran­
cock, l\Iembers of the X.A.C. 

Child, illegitirnatr-Subsequent 11W'n·iage of parents by Chris­
tian Bit es legitimizes-.4.llegation l1y Defendant that child 
not that of mothrr by her husband but by another man­
Nwnber of facts adduced in farou ·r of contention that 
child is that of her rPputed paTents· Strong e1•idence 
required to rebut. 

Do1rry-Parties m11rrip,d by Basuto Custom liable to pay 
dowry fi.utl wule1· that 01lstom. 

(A ppeal from the l\'ative Connnissio11t>r's Court, 
)fatatiPle: Case 272/37.) 

In this case the Appellant sued the Respondent for 20 head 
of ea ttle, 1 horse, 10 roheep and an l\fqobo beast or their 
collective value £115 heing dowry due ·in respect of one 
A goes. 
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In his summon~ appPIIant alleges that he is the eldest son 
and Agnes ix the daughter of A. L. Phirimana and Seholas~ 
tlCa, born l\la folo; that he is enti tied to the dowry of 
..:\gnPs "·ho beeame engagl'd to marrY the ~<'cond Defendant 
son of the first Defe~Hlant , \Yho promisPd to pay dowr,v; 
that . .\gnes ha s marned second Defendant and that both 
by reason of the aforesaid promise as well as by Basuto 
Custom thf' D efendants are liable for the dowrv claimed or 
its Yaluc. · 

The plea is a dPnial that Agnes is tlw daughter of A. L. 
Phirimana or that any promise to pay dowry was made by 
first Defendan t. 

'I' liP following fads arP clear from the rPcord:-

l. That Scholastiea l\Iafolo was renderPd pregnant and 
gan• birth to th\· g irl ~\gnes. 

~. That a hout twelve months thereafter Scholastiea wa:; 
married b~· Christian Hites to Phirimana . 

3. That the marriage eertificatc shows that consent to this 
marriage was gtven by the bride's father . 

.J. That the :mm of £12 and t hree head of cattle were 
paid to Scholastica's father hy Phirimana. 

5. That Agnes was baptised as the ehild of Phirimana 
and Scholastica. 

G. That Agnes has livPd all ber life 'nth Seholastiea and 
Phirimana. 

1. That ~ehola:;tiea dec-lares that Phirimana IS the man 
"·ho caused the pregnancy which resulted in the birth 
of .-\.gne:;. 

This is a formidable array of facts in favour of thc AppPI­
lant's eontt>ntion that Agnes is the ehild of Phirimana aml 
Scholastiea and rPquires very strong evidence to rehnt it. 

ThreP witnesst•:; helonging to Scholasti<"a's family, .i\losala, 
Jack Kuka and }Lotiki Xuka are called hy Defendant and 
the~· all state that it was never ascertained \\;ho was .the fat her 
of _,-\gnes and that, cons<'<Iuentl~·, no fine was pa1<l for the 
pregnane·~·. Ddenclant (n•spondent) himself says, however, 
that Scholastica 's »educer \Yas a Tembu and this was well 
knmvn by everyone including .i\lotiki. He thus gives the 
lie direct to his own witnesses and casts Yery material doubt 
on their credibilitY. The three witnes!';es mentioned also 
dPny an~· knmdedg~ of the marriage by Christian Rites . 

• -\ ~ aln-':uly pointed out the marriage eertificatP, tl~ correl't­
ness of which ha:; not l.Jeen challenged, shows that the consent 
to the marriage wa s giYen by the bride':; father. If he 
knew and approved of th<' marriage it is in the highe:;t 
degree unlikely that the members of his family WPre nnawarP 
of it . 

.1\lotiki'o.; eYideneP ah;o must lw regarded with caution for 
he has a substantial interest in the issue of the cas<'. First 
Defendant has ah·ead~· paid him 13 h<'ad of cattle on aecount 
of Agnes' dmn,Y and if it is fonnd that he is not thP person 
entitled tlwreto he will have to rctnrn them. 

In the opinion of this Court the eYideli<'C in faYour of 
.-\gnt•s being tlw ehih::l of Phirimana and Sehola:;tiea is on•r­
whelmingl~· strong and has not hc('n rebutt<'d and that being 
so, although she was born prior to the marriagc of her 
parents, the pa~·mpnt of dowry and subst>q nent mal'l'iage 
would confer rights in her dowry on he!' father and, in the 
ev<'nt of his death, nn his heir who, in this case, admittPdl:y 
is the 1\ppellant. 

The marriagc of .Ag;nl's and second Defendant was one 
aceording to Ba suto Cnstom and not by Christian Hitf's. 
That being so the HefeHdaHis are liable to pa~· the fix<'d dowry 
aecording to that custom. 
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In argument before this Court the Appellant's attroney 
waived the claim to the .Mqobo beast. 

The appeal is allowed with eosts and the judgment in the 
Court below is altered to " J ndgment for Plaintiff for 20 
head of ca ttle , one horse and ten sheep or their eoll eC'tin~ 
value at £ll0 with eosts of suit ". 

ttlc.t7(T,. N) {, 5. 
GERTRUDE NCUME vs. ELINA LEBONA . 

KoKSTAD: 6th Oetoher. 193tl. Before H . G. ~cott , Esq ., 
President, and Messrs. F. C . l'inkerton and H. W . Ha n­
coek, Members of the N.A.C. 

1Ju.mages-Defamation-.!etua1 words used ne ed ·not he pro erd 
IJUt use of words of same l'jjrct and m eaning mnst 
be proved-Privile!}e-for plea uf, Defendant must rstolJ­
lish his interest in or duty tou:ards person to u·lw m 
I'Ommu.nieation is nwtle und tlud latter had an int ere st 
to receive it-Jleasure of dauwu es . 

(Ap]1eal from Nati,·e Commissioner's Court , 
Mount Fletcher: Case 324/38. ) 

In the Court below Respondent sued Appellant for £50 
as damages for defl'lmation of character. 

She complained that on the 3rd l\lareh, 1938, at Fletcher­
ville in the District of .Mount Fletcher in her presenee and 
in the presence aud hearing of one ~lark ~Ihusi appellan t 
made use of the following malieious and defamatory words 
of and eoncerning her:-

" Lomfazi akafanele kuza emtandazweni kuba lidikazi ulala 
no 1\Ifundisi u Neume, u sisi febe ". and " Amapamhili alom­
fazi adumbile, ekubuyini K omfundisi u Neume uzakuya 
kulala naye ". 

The translation of tlH'Se words is given in the summons as 
follows:-

This woman (referring to the Plaintiff) is not fit to eome 
to t he prayers beeause she is a dikazi and eohabits with 
He,·d. Neume and is also a loose woman. This woman 's 
(referring to the Plaintiff) private parts were swollen and on 
the return of Re,·d. N en me he is going to eohabit with he r 
(meaning Plaintiff)." 

In her plea Appellant denied making use of the words 
eomplained of but admitted that on enquiring from Mark 
Mbusi by what right he included Respondent in his elass 
as she was still a member of her (Appellant ':-;) ela ss and on 
his replying that he did so by authority of Revel. Ncume, 
who would "put it right ' ' she (.\ppellant) r epliPd that her 
husband, Revd. Neume, "eannot put this right as he has 
eommitted adultery with this woman " (meaning Plaintiff). 

She pleaded further that she is the wife of HeYd. Ncume 
and that she and Mark Mbusi are members and class leaders 
of tlw ehureh to whieh Re,·d. ~eume is attaehed as a minis­
ter of religion. 

Appellant further pleaded that the words used br ~1e r 
were used on a privile-ged oeeasion, she bona fid e heliPnng 
them to be trup in substanee and in faet and having reason ­
able gronnds for sueh belief. 





After lwaring evidence the Xati\·e CommissionPr enten'd 
judgment in favour of Respondent for £10 and costs. 

The appeal against this judg111eut is on the following 
grounds:-

1. Plaintiff failed to pro\'e that the defamatoQ' words 
alleged by her in her snmmons to have been uttered 
by Defendant were in fact so uttcred. 

2. Having failed to prove the several words set forth in 
her summons, Plaiutiff was not entitled-to enable her 
to succeed in the action- to rely upon words acknow­
ledged by Defendant to ha\'P bePn uttered In· her but 
in special circumsta ti('CS. • 

3. Even if Plaintiff was so entitled, an almndance of e\·i­
clence was adduced by Defendant to prove that the 
occasion on which she spoke of her hu sband (and only 
indirectly of Plaintiff) was privileged and that the 
words used hr her were privileged , she bona fidP be­
lieving them to he true in substance and in fact aud 
having reasonable and probable cause and grounds for 
such belief. 

4. The damages awarded are, in any event, excessive. 

The Native Commissioner found the following facts pro-
ved:-

l. Plaintiff is a class member of the l\Iethodist Church. 
2. Defendant is a class leader. 
3. ~lark 1\Ibusi is also a class leade r. 
4. At one time Plaintiff was a member of Defendant' s class. 
5. On the 16th Ft>bruary, 1938, at a elass meeting, Defen­

dant asked that defendant should be removed from he r 
class, which request was granted. 

6. Hevcl. N cunw, the 1\Iinister in charge, then mad<> 
arrangements for the Plaintiff to attend the clas-; 
<'Onducted by 1\lark Mbusi. 

'i. On the 3rd l\Iarch , 1938, Plaintiff attended a class held 
by l\Iark l\Ibusi. 

8. Defendant appeared at this class and wanted to· know 
why Plaintiff was attending it, stating that the trans­
fer had not yet been confirmed. 

9. When }lark l\Ibusi replied that he was acting under 
instructions from Revel. Ncume, Defendant replied that 
Plaintiff and nenl. Xcume had been committing 
adultery together. 

10. Defendant had no interest in making her statement 
to l\Iark 1\Ibusi nor had the latter anr interest in 
receiving it. 

11. Defendant ·nwde the statement recklessly and malicious],\·, 
without reasonahle grounds for believing it to be true. 

Jn regard to the first and second grounds of appeal there 
can be no doubt that Plaintiff had failed to prove the use 
of all the words set out in the summons, but she has proved 
that Defendant charged her with having committed adultery 
with Defendant's husband. 

fn an action for damages for slander it is not necl'ssary 
to prove the use of the exact words alleged in t he declaration, 
but it is necessary to prove the use of words to the sanw 
effect and having the same mcaniug [Smith rs. Gradwdl 
l6 E.D.C. 79; see also Wilson Mzinyati r.~. RI,\· l\lziuyati 
1930 N.A.C. (Cape & O.F.S.) 18 and Conway v.~. Westwood 
1936 N.P.D. 1936 (1) P-H .. J. 2G] or a material and defamaton· 
part of them [van der Sehyf rs. Loots 1937 W.hD. 1937 
(2) P-H.J. 241. 
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The most serious item in the summon~ is that Appellant 
charged Hespnn<knt with comwitting adultery with the Renl. 
Xcu nlC' wh ich is a material and defamatory ,;art of the words 
allegPd to have been mwd and WP are of opinion therefore 
that in t hese ('irenmstaH<'PS the I\ative Commissioner was 
correet in holding tl1at it was immatPrial '"hether the actual 
words complained of were used. 

Tlw appeal on the first and second grounds must fail. 
To dPal '"ith the third ground of appeal. 1 n order to 

Pstablish privilege the Appellant must establish that she 
had a dut~· or an interesL , legal, social or moral , to make 
the communication and that there wai'; an interest in the 
person to whom it was made to receiYe it. The question 
is not whether Appl'llant thought there was :-; ueh an i11terest 
or duty imt wlwther the interest or dutv did in fact exist 
( Holzgen vs. Woolwright 1927 T.P.D. 10 ·P-H.J. 11) and the 
onus of proYing that the occasion was a privileged o11e is 
H!JOII the Appellant [Erasmn~ rs. Scott & Prigge vs. ~cott 
1933 D & C.D.L. 19.13 (1) P-H.J. 4]. 

The Appellant made not the slightest attPmpt in her evi­
dence to show that she had a dutY or interest to make the 
commtmic·atioH to Mark l\lbusi or that he had an interest to 
receivl> it. The mere statement in her plea t hat they 
<ll'e both class leadPrs i!'; i ns11fficient to show such mutual 
i11terest without evideJH"e to show that there actually was 
!';Uch an interest. "'e are of opinion. therefon'. that the Xative Commissioner 
rightly held that the occasion wai'; not privileged. It is 
conseq uently, not neeessary to consider " ·hether the Appellant 
had reasonable grounds for beliPving thP statement to be 
true particularly as justification wa s not pleaded. At the 
same time we are not prepared to sa ,\' that the finding of the 
XatiYe Commissioner that the statement was made recklessly 
and ma liciously , without reasonabl e ground s for believing 
it to he true, is wrong. 

The fourth ground of appeal is that the damages are 
excessiYe. 

In the circumstan('t>S of the ease and in Yiew of the fact 
that a lJ.lea of privilege had been raised in the Court below 
and had failed the <lamages awarded were not excessiYe 
(see Donon111 t·s. l\Iudge 1921 T.P.D. 5. P-H .. J. 7.). 

The appeal is dismissed with ('OSts. 

GERTR UDE NCUME vs. ELIJAH LEBONA. 

KoKsT.m: i th Oetober , 1938. Before H. G. Scott, Esq., 
President and .:\[essrs . F. C. Pinkerton and R. ,V. 
Hancock, .:\!embers of the ·N.A.C. 

])pfrnnotion-.-tlwJlution arunf{'(/-lnadequate ·reasons given 
7Jy .Judicial Officer for rcject iua e1.·idence of Plaintiff's 
witnPsses-.Judament rrr ersed on :ippeal-Dnrnagrs­
A.ssessment of by Appeul r'o11rt. 

1'-mctire and Procedure-0/JiPrfion to snm mon s should liP 
mi.~ed in d11P f01·m and at proper time and not m erPly in 
orgument nfteT case for IJOth parties has l1Pen closed. 

<Appea l f rom XatiYe Commissioner's Conrt, .:\Iount Fletrlwr: 
Ca!';e 417/38.) 

This was an aetiou for damages for defamation. 
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The XatiYP ('omnJisf;iout>r •·nten·<l a judgnwnt of absolution 
t'rom the instance with <·osts on tlw grounds that-

(1) the I'Yidence for the Plaintifl' was unsatisfaetory; and 

(2) the summon~-; did not set out the " ipsiHsima vPrba " 
alleged to have heen used in the language which was 
employed. 

The appPal is against this judgment on tiH•He grounds:-
l. 'l'hat the evidence adduced on behalf of Plaintiff clearly 

and conYineingly estahli:;;hed that she had been defamed 
h~, Defendant as set out in her particulars of claim. 

2. Tlw .\lagistrate (p,·idPntly an error as the case was tried 
in the Native Commissioner's Court) erred in holding 
that Plaintiff was not entitiE'd to succeed by reason 
of the fact that the NatiYe words u:;;ed hv Defendant 
in defaming Plaintiff were not set out in the summons 
mon· especially as this objection was only raised by 
Plaintiff's attorney for the first time in argument after 
both parties had elosed their cases. 

~. The judgment is bad in law and is against the weight 
of t>vidence. 

Tlw Plaintiff, Gertrmle Lebona, })pfemlant' s niece, and 
Joseph .:\lolife gave eYidenl''' and stated that the following 
words were spoken to :\iokehe l\losuhlo by Defendant: " Do 
uot go to that woman. She is a thief. She has stolen the 
money w hi eh hPlougs to the teachers. .A constahle was he re 
yesh•rday." \\'hen Plaintiff asked if she was the person who 
stole the t eachers' money he replie-d : '' Yes, the money was 
found by the Policeman.'' 

Defendant admits that lw was at the house of Plaintiff' s 
husband with one :\Jokcbe on tht> day in question and that 
wlwn Plaintiff called l\Iokehe to go to her he (Defendant) 
said: " Do not go, you are walking with me. If you go to 
that woman von will become a witne.<;s. Some monev was lost 
da ,. he fore \'esterda" and that moneY has been fom{d. ·while 
yoi1 are with me t do not want y~u to go to that woman 
he ea use she once heat me.'' 

Th<• Xati,·e Commission<>r has re.iected the evidenee of 
Gertrude Lebona beeause she is li\'ing with the Plaintiff , 
and of Joseph ::\Iolife because he appears to he under Plain­
tiff's influence, as he states that he would not believe anv­
thing against Plaintiff. The rea sons given fm· rejecting tl1e 
eYidence of these witnesses appear to thi~ Court to be 
ina<lequate. The mere fact that Gertrude LeJona is living 
with Plaintiff is insufficient to disCI'edit her in the absencP 
of anything tending to show that she is untruthful. 

ln regard to J oHeph ::\Iolife the X ative Commissioner is 
incorrect in stating that he .-:aid he would not believe anything 
against Plaintiff. 'Vlwt hP did say was that h e did not 
believe the Defendant when he ~aid she was a thief, whieh 
is a ,·ery different thing. It is a somewhat startling 
doctrine that because a witness who hears a defamatory 
statement made of another person states he does not believe 
that statement he should be regarded as being under thl' 
infltwnce of the defamed without any furthl'r indication 
of ~>nch influenc·e. 

As already pointed out the Defe nd ant ad mits that he wa,; 
at the place on the day in question and mach• some referenee 
to mone_y having been lost but denies the accusation of theft. 
HP was accompanied hy l\Tokehe. This witness was not 
call<>cl by Defendant and no Pxplana t10n was offered for tlw 
failnn• to do so. 

The eviclenc<' of Plaintiff and hPr witnes;;es is clear and 
t his Court is of opinion that tlw Xative Commissioner has 
not gi\'en .'iound rPa sons for re.i<•l.'ting it and that judgment 
shonld ha\'e been entered for Plaintiff. 





The Native Couunis:;ioner appears to lravP regarded the 
fact that Plaintiff had not issued her summons until after 
the l'l'l'Oipt of a summons against lwr from Defendant's wife, 
as a point against the Plaintiff. If the Plaintiff had heen 
asked for an explanation of the delay she may have been 
able to giVl• an Pntirt>ly satisfac::tory mw. In the absence 
of any evidenl'e on the point we are of opinion that t he 
Xative Commissioner was not justified in allowing the fac t 
to influence him against lwr. 

1 n view of tlw concltrsion at which this Court has a rrived 
on the evidcncP it is not necessary to deal with the other 
grounds of appeal. It is desired, however, to point out that 
any objection to the summons should he raised in due form 
and at the proper time and not merely in argument after 
the case for both parties has been elosed. 

On the question of damages this Court is of the opinion 
that it is unnecPRsaJT to incur the extra expense which 
would be involved in remitting the case for the amount to be 
assessed by the Native Commissione r and will do so itself . 

The statement mad!' bv the Defendant is clearly d efama ­
tor~· p er se and was mad~ in the presence of sPverai wi t ncsRPS 
without any justification. In the circumstances we conside r 
that the amount of £10 would be fair and reasonable. 

The appeal is allowed with costs and the judgment in the 
(\nut hPlow altered to one in favotrr of Plaintiff for £'10 and 
costs of suit. 

THOMAS MAFOLO vs. JOHN DAMBUZA. 

KoKSTAD: 7th October, 1938. Before H. G. Scott , E sq., 
President, and )lessrs. F. C. Pinkerton and R. \Y. 
Hancock. l\lemhers of the X.A.C. 

I:andlord and 1'enant- Snb-lease-TVh Pre agreement of lease 
does not take e f!Pd until premises tak en over by lessee 
latter is not in a position to sub-let-Cla int for r ent an 
alleged snb-lease u•hue evidence sl10ws Pla-intiff was m erPly 
a guarantor and bad not him self ]>aid t o lnndlnnl­
A.bsolution from tl11> instance. 

(Appeal from 1'\ati,·e Commissioner's Court, Mata tiele : 
Case 290 / 37. ) 

Tn the Court below Plaintiff (Appellant) claimed from 
Defendant (Respondent) the sum of £14 . 17s. ::ld. , being £1-1 
as rent for certain Native Eating House premises for the 
months of July and August , 1937, sub-let to Defendant by 
Plaintiff, and 17s. 2d. electric current supplied t o the premises 
during Defendant's tenancy which he agreed to pay to Plaintiff 
and for which Plaintiff was i1~ turn liable to the owner of the 
premises. 

Defendant denied that Plaintiff had sub-let to him but 
alleged that Plaintiff held the licence dnring the period in 
question and had engaged him a s assist ent at a wage of £4 
per month but had not paid him and he counterclaimed fo r 
£8. 

The Acting A"isistant Nativ e Commiss ioner ente red jmlg­
ment for Plaintiff in convention for 17s. 3d. and costs and for 
Defendant in re-convention with costs. 
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An appeal has bceu noted against this judgment in so far as 
it dm•s not award Plaintiff £14 rent on the followin g 
grounds:-

1. It is common cause that the DefPndant did not hire the 
premises from its owner, Sor·our. 

2. Plaintiff pro\·ed-

(a) that he had leased the premises from it:, owner, 
Soronr, fo r July and August, 1937, guaranteeing 
him tlw rent for those months and that Defendant 
had promised to pay him (Plaintiff) the rent and 

(b) that Defendant was in oreupation of the premisef'. 

3. The Court found that tlw Defendant did run the business 
in the premises ou his own account and Plaintiff did not 
hire Defendant as pll>acled by Defendant. 

ln t hese eircumstances Plaintiff is entitled to judgment for 
July a nd August rent. 

The premises in question belong to J. J. Sorour, now 
deceased. Plaintiff apparently leased the premises from 
Sorour but it is not at all dear from his evidence when that 
ll•ase was to take effect. H e says " Sorour agreed to lease 
' house ' to me from 1st June , 1937. I thought a licence 
was required. I told Sorour I would wait for the result 
of my licence application before taking over. Sorour said 
he would lose his rent if I did not take over from 1st June, 
1937. I suggested that Defendant carry on until my licence 
was granted. Sorour said he had sacked Defendant as he 
had had a lot of trouble ana told me I had to guarantee 
rent. Rent was £5 for eat ing house and £2 for dwelling. 
~oronr told me this. This arrangement went through. " 

I t is quite clea r from this t hat the lease was not to take 
effect until he had taken over the premises and in the mean­
time he was merely a guarantor for the rent. This is furt her 
borne out by the fact that when he obtained a certificate 
fo r the issue of the licence he endea,·oured to obtain possession 
but Defendant refused to leave ana Plaintiff then had to 
obtain Sorour's assistance to get Defendant out of the pre­
mises and he actually obtained possession only on the 1st 
September, 1937. 

Plaintiff has not paid the rent to Sor our for Julv and 
August, 1937, and has

1 
apparently, neve r been called uilOn to 

dg so; a further indwation that he was not regarded as a 
lessee for that period. 

lf his lease did not take effect until the 1st of September, 
1937, then he was not in a position to sub-let to Defendant 
in July. 

In the opinion of this Court the fi uding of the Acting 
Assistant Native Commissioner that there was no sub-lease 
between Plaintiff and Defendant is eorrect. 

As it is possible that Plaintiff may yPt be called upon to 
im plement his guarantee for the rent it is considered advisable 
to alter the judgment in regard to the claim for £}..! so that 
he will not be precluded from bringing any action against 
Defendant to which he may be entitled. 

The appeal is di smissed with cost s bnt the judgment in 
tb~ Court below is amended by aclding the reto the following 
words:-

" Absolu tiou from the instance with costs in regard to 
the claim for £14." 
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NJAYINUNI MCITAKALI vs. CAWENI SIBAXA. 

PoRT ST. JoHNS: 13th Octolwr, 1938. Before H. G. Scott , 
Esq., President, and .:\Ies:srs. J. H. Nicholson and P. C. 
TweediP, .l\Iemb<>rs of thP 1\' . .A.C. 

Nutire Appeal l'uu.rt- l'rocedure-Applicatiun to prod·ucl' 
frPsh eridPnce is refused a.s no provision therefur in 
Rulc•s---.YntiPe Commissione-r's Cou·rt Practice and Pru­
ced•u·re-Evidence-A_pplicatiun uy Plaintiff after close 
of Defendant's ca;;e to call evidence of previous statement 
by Defendant incon-sistent with pre.sent testimony-Cir­
cttmstances of supposed statement 'lllnst ue referrPd tn 
sufficiently tu dl'signnte particular uccasion-Applicntion 
to ·cn ll ·reuuttino ev idencc-StntPment u·y Judic·inl Officer 
in reasons for judoment that it would be "irrP gnlar " to 
admit furtlte1· et'idl'ltCt' after case fur both parties had 
been closed-Provisions of R·uJe 5 (4) Order XVII Proc. 
145 of 1923 overlooked. 

Appea~ on facts-lVherP el'iclence did not satisfactorily estab-
1 ish ountership in lllt11 Jlarticular person judgment uf 
Oowrt 1Jelo11· fnr D efPndant altered to nbsolntinn from 
the instance. 

(.Appeal from .N a ti ,-e Commissioner's Court, 
Ngqeleni: Case 91 /1938.) 

Before this Court .i\Ir. Birkett, for Hespondent , applied 
to make use of an affida,·it, made since the hearing of this 
case in the Conr t below by Constable Lombard who im·esti­
gate-d a charge' of theft against Respondent. 

_Mr. Bou(·het for Appellant opposed the application. 
The rules of the )l"ati,·e Appeal Court do not provide for 

the production before that Court of fresh evidence. 
The application is accordingly refused. 
Plaintiff claimed three sheep or their value £1. 10s. from 

Defendant . Judgment was entered in favour of Defendant 
with costs. The appeal against this judgment is on the 
following grounds:-

l. That the Assistant ::\l'ati,·e Commis:o.ioner should have 
given credence to the evidence of both Tshozi and Dlayi, 
the previous owners of the sheep claimed, who were im­
partial witnesses and who are both men of standing. 

2. That the judgment is against the weight of evidence and 
the probabilities of the case. 

3. That the Assistant :Native Commissioner erred in dis­
allowing the applic·ation of Plaintiff's attorney to call 
rebutting evidence after the close of Defendant's case 
in order to show that Defendant had made a previous 
statement inconsistent with his present testimony iu 
regard to the manner in which he acquired the sheep 
in question , whic·h statement bear!-> rlirPctly on the 
subjec-t matter of the proceedings. 

L That the Assistant Native Commissioner has stated 
in his reasons for judgment that in view of the ('viden("l' 
before the Court an a.bsolution judgment was granted. 
This is not so. 

A judgment for Defendant was granted in spite of the 
fact that Plaintiff's attorney opposed same on the gro unds 
that if the Native Commissioner was not satisfied with the 
e,·idC'nce of Plaintiff and his witnesses in proof of the ownC'r­
ship , the judgment should not ha ,·e been for the d<>fendnnt 
but OIIP of absolution from the instance. 
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Plaintiff's case is that he bought a ewe sheep from one 
'l'shozi bearing the following marks:-

Three skeys on right car and black dots on Loth ears. 
He bought another ewL· from one Blayi which had a stump 
right ear and skcy top and bottom of left car. This ewe had 
a lamb after it came into Plaintiff's possession. These sheep 
Wl'l'e lost in the Spring of 1937 and eventually three sheep, 
two of which bore identical markings to those plaintiff had 
lost, were fonnd in possession of DPfendant who liYes some 
l'ight or ten miles from him. 

Both Tshozi and BlaYi WPn· called and identified two of 
the sheep as being thosL: sold by them rcspeetively to Plaintiff 
some three years ago. 

lt is admitted that one Kalinkuku had also laid claim to 
the sheep which Plaintiff says is the one he got from Tshozi 
and that Defendant was prosecuted for theft at the instanee 
of Plaintiff aiHI Kalinkuku and was acquitted. It is also 
admith'd that the l'armarks on t he sheep had been in no 
way tampered with. 

At first sight it would appear more than a coinc·idenc~ 
that Defendant should possess sheep, the markings ou which 
are identical to those plaintiff says he lost, but when we 
find that Kalinkuku also lays elaim to one sheep which has 
t>armarks that are somPwhat tmusual and has further natural 
distinguishing markings it would see m that in so far as 
this sheep is concerned tlwre is the possihilit~· that Plaintiff 
and the other witnesses who identifv it are mistaken. lt 
cannot be said, therefore, that Pla~ntiff has satisfaetoril,\ 
established his ownership to this animal. 

In regard to the other sheep illayi describes the earmark 
on the right ear as a stump and when asked to explain what 
he meant by a stump stated that half the ear was cut off. 
Defendant describes the stump as a piPce off the tip of i he 
right ear, and says this is one of tlw sheep he inherited 
from his father. The sheep were not brought before the Court 
so some doubt exists as to which of these witnesses were 
correct. There is further considerable discrepancy between 
the witnesses whether, at the time the sheep were claimed ),~· 
Plaintiff and Kalinkuku , the Headman pla('ed a distinguish­
ing mark on all three or only one or whether he placed no 
mark on any of them. 

In these circumstances we are of opinion that Plaintiff has 
failed to establish his elaim to the ownership of the sheep 
in question. At the sa me time the Defendant was not 
entitled on the evidenc·e to a final judgment. 

tn regard to the third ground of appeal it appears from 
the record that the Defendant was asked in cross-examination 
whether he had not told the Police or the Headman that 
hP had inherited all the sheep in question from his father. 
He -denied that he had done so, but said he mav have said 
that two of the sheep were inherited from his ·father. At 
the dose of Defendant's case Plaintiff's attomey applied to 
call evidence to rebut this denial but the application wa s 
refused. 

In his reasons for judgment tiH' Assistant Natire Commis­
sioner stated that he ha-d refused the application to call 
further evidence " on the ground that the PYidence coul!l 
have been called at the right time and in any case was likPI," 
to lw of no ralue ". 

The Assistant NatiYe Commissioner does not explain what 
he means by "at thP right time", but presmnably lw inten­
dPd to eonvev that tlH' evid0nce could have been ealled during 
tlw eourse of Plaintiff 's case. [f that is so then he is f' IParl~· 
\Hong lweause at that time Plaintiff had no knowh'dge as 
to the line of defence ])pfendant was going to pnrstw 1'\PPing 
that his plea was a hare denial that he was in possl'ssion 
of shee p belonging to Plaintiff nor was any indiention giv011 
in (·ross-examination. 
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. His remar,~ that the further l:vidence was " likely to be 
ol 110 value . IS .untortunate as 1t shows that he prejudged 
the value ot. encknee whH·h hP had not heard , which is 
Irregular. After the appeal was uoted the Assistant Nati,·e 
Commissioner furnished the following additional rea:>ons for 
judgment on this point: -

.. The inconsistency was not apparent during the pro­
eeedmgs nor has the Appellant furnislwd any details but 
on a point of law it would hav e been inegular to a dmit 
furthPr evidence after the (·ase for both parties had IJl'en 
elosed a:> t he poi n t at issue wa~ not of an unusual nature 
a nd wa s not required by the Court." 

1t is difficult to follow this reasoniug whid1 discloses some 
confusion of thought. Xaturally t he ineon:sisteney cou ld not 
be apparen t durmg tlw vroceeclings for t he Assistant Native 
Commissioner by refu:sing to a llow further evi dence had 
}JJ"eventecl that inL"Onsi:stl'n cy from being disclosed. He does 
not expla in either wh at details he ex pel"ted the Appellant 
to fnrmsh. .b to it being 1rregu lar to admit further evidence 
it is apparent tha t the c\ ssistant 1'\ative Commissioner has 
overlooked t he provisions of sub-rule (-1) of Hnle 5 of Order 
X\rTL in the sec·ond schedule to Pnwlamatiou No. 1-15 of 
19~3 whieh vrovides for the ealling of furthPr e vid011<:e by 
eit he r party , with the lea \·e of the Court , at any time 
befon' judgmen t subject to the proviso tha t sueh leave 
shall not be granted if it appears to the Cou r t that such 
evidenc-e was intentionally withheld out of its proper order. 

It may be remarked t ha t if the Assistant Native Commi s­
sioner is eorred in hi s statement that it would be irregular 
to allow the t:a lling of further evidenc-e afte r both parties 
had e!osed t hei r easp it would never he possible to ea ll 
rebutting ·eYidenc·p , for by it~ Yer,Y uature it ea n only he 
ealled after the party whose evidence it is d es ired to disproYe 
has c losed his ease. 

By these remarks th is Court cloPs not wish to infer that 
t he ~·hs i :sta nt NatiYe Commissioner erred in refusing the 
application in the present case hut merely that his reasons 
for doing so wer e inadequate and fau lty. 

Th e rule on the point at issue in this case is thus stated 
in Salzman vs. Holmes (1914 A. D. at p . -177) : ''Every 
wi t n ess under eross-Pxamination, in any proeeeding, civil or 
eriminal, may be asked whether he has made any former 
statement relatiYe to the subjeet matter of the proceedings 
a nd inconsistent with h is vresent testimony. the cireumstanees 
of tlw supposed statement being referred to sufficiently to 
dt>~;ignat e t he partieular occasion, and if he does not distinctly 
admit that he has made sw·h a statement, proof may be given 
that h e clid in faet make it.' ' 

ln t he present case the a lleged preYious inc-onsistent state­
ment was relative to the subjeet matter of the proceedings 
but the eireumstanees under whieh it was made were not , 
in the opinion of t hi s Court, referred to snffieiently to desig­
nate t he partieu lar oecasion on whieh it was made. The 
Defendant wa s merelv asked whether he had not made a 
ePrtain st atement to the Poli<·P or H eadman hut there was 
nothing to show where, on what oeeasion and under what 
c-ircumstances it w:1s made. Th e omission to do so ta kes 
the case out of th e rule above quoted and we are of opi nion 
that thP Assistan t KatiYe Commissioner was justi fied in 
refusing to allow the ealling of rebutting evi denee. The 
appt>al on this ground must fail. 

The fourth ground of appeal is a nwrP statement of faet 
and need not be eonRidered. If it wa s conte nded that the 
..tbsistant Native Commissioner had e rred in granti ng a 
final judgment for Defendant instead of a hsolntiou from t he 
instan<·e that should haYe het>n statNI. 
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It is clear from the record that t here is a genuine dispute 
as to the ownership of these shC'ep. The Plaintiff has failPd 
to prove his c·a se but t lwre is no doubt that further evidencP 
could hC' C'alkd finally to settle t he mattPr. 

This Court is satisfied that it has not been prov ed satis­
faetorily who the ownC'r of the sheep is and in t iH'se ci reum­
stanC'es consider s that a jndgmC'nt of absolution from the 
instanC'(' should han' been entcrecl in the Court helow. 

The appeal is allowed with costs and the judgment in tlw 
Court below altered to one nf absolution from the instanc<> 
with costs. 

GQWETA MAGWENKWE vs. MTIYWA MKELWANA . 

PORT ST. JoH:\"S: 13th October, 1933. Before H. G. SC'ott , 
Esq .. Pres ident , and :.\lessrs. ,J. H. NiC'bolson and P. C. 
Tweeclie, Members of t he X.A.C. 

:!ppeal-Latc noting-tlppl ication for cundunation-JJeloy 
cltl,(" tu failure to furnish written jwly111ent IJ efore P.rpit !I 
of period preseribed for noting appi'Ctl- Hclat ecl noting 
not due to fault of App!'/lant or his uttorney-Condona­
tion yra.ntecl-.ldultery-Xatil"l' Commissione1·'s juda­
ment on fa cts rcversed-Xceessify fo r p-ro]JI'T vruof of 
wl11lfcry in abse nn' uf a mteh. 

(Appeal from Native C'ommissionpr's Cmu·t, Bizana: 
CaxP Xo. 217/19:'37.) 

The judgment in this C'a~'>C' was deliverNl on t he 22nd April, 
1938, and the appC'al was not noted nntil the 18th July, 
1938, 57 days after the period prescribC'Cl by Rule 6 of the 
NativP AppP:li Conrt rules had expired. 

AppliC'ation .is now made fo r a condonation of the irregu­
larity. 

Th e record disc-loses the fa ct that application was made for 
a writte n jndgmept in t erms of Order XXIX in the seC'ond 
sC'hedule to Proclamation Xo. 145 of 1923, shortly after 
judgment was deliYerPd. The writtC'n judgment was i10t fm­
nishcd until the 18th July , 1938, and tlw appeal was noted 
on the same day. It is elea r , therefore, tl1at the delay w~s 
not due to any fault on tlw part of the Appellant or Ins 
attorney. 

In thC' cirC'umstances, and as no ohjedion was offered hy 
Respondent' s attorney, this Court is of opinion that indul­
gC'nce should be granted. 

The late noting of the appeal i!'; accordingly condmwd an(l 
• tlw hearing proceede-d with. 

This was an aetion for dama gcs for adultery, thf' su nimous 
alleging that DPfendaut had committed adultery with Plain ­
tiff 's wife at di,·e rs times and pla ces hut more C'specia ll:v from 
the month of D ecPmher , 193!5, to .JunC' , 1926, all(l as a rC's ult 
she gave hirth to twins. 

The XatiYC' Commissioncr ente rPd judgment in favonr of 
Plaintiff for fivp head of f'attl C' or £20 and costs of suit and 
the appC'al is against t hi s judgmf'nt. 





78 

The Native Commissioner states in his reasons for judg­
ment: -

" It is essential, for the purposes of this case, to determine 
when the twins were born-in winter of 1936 or in that of 
1937. If they were born in the winter of the latter year then 
the Defendant could not have been the father for the docu­
mentary evidence shows that he was away at work from a 
few clays before the 20th December, 1935, to a few days after 
the 12th April , 1937. If they were born in the winter of 
1936 then it was possible for Defendant to have been the 
fa ther." 

The Native Commissioner has evidently given careful con­
sideration to this e.ase and has fou nd as a fact that Plaintiff 
returned from work in or about early part of the winter 
of 1936, having been away for about a year, and that it was 
not long after his return home that twin daughters were born 
to his wife. 

'I'his findin g is perfectly sound if it is satisfactorily proved 
that Plaintiff returned in 1936 and the whole case really 
hinges on that fact. 

Plaintiff did not produce his mine papers which would have 
fixed the length of his absence and the approximate date of 
his return and has made no attempt to explain his omission 
to do so. In the absence of that evidence we are thrown 
back on his ,·erbal testimony and that of his wife on this 
point . An examination of their evidence discloses a number 
of contradictory statements which leave only two things defi­
nite and those are that when Plaintiff returned his wife was 
pregnant and that shortly thereafter she gave birth to twins 
but the date of th~se events is by no means certain . The 
Native Commissioner says that Plaintiff and his wife are 
quite uneducated and that it would not be fair to bind them 
down to any specific time or date. That, of course, is quite 
a reasonable attitude to adopt in the case of r aw Natives, 
but it should not be allowed to excuse such a very wide 
margin of error as is apparent in this case, especially where 
the matter of time is such an importan t factor. 

The case was tried in the Native Commissioner's Court on 
the 21st April , 1938, and all dates given are calcu lated as 
from that date. 

This is what Plaintiff says: " I returned just about this 
time two years ago '' (i.e. about April, 1936). " On my 
r eturn lpY wife was in an advanced state of pregnancy. She 
gave birth to twins, both daughters, last year" (i.e. 1937). 
" I returned from work after reaping year before last " (that 
would be sometime after June, 1936). " It was during the 
winter that my wife gave birth to the twiiL">-in the winter 
of the same year that I r eturned from work." This shows 
that he fix es the birth of the twins by the date of his return 
from work. 

Again Plaintiff says: " I questior,ted my wife about her 
pregnancy and she named Defendant. I took the pregnancy 
to Defendant but he denied being responsible." 

Presumably by this Plaintiff means that as soon as he 
discovered the pregnancy he went, as is customary, to charge 
Defendant with it . If the pregnancy occurred in 1936 he 
could not have then gone to Defendant as the latter was 
away at work. It seems much more likely that the pregnancy 
was discovered in 1937 a nd that that was when Defendant 
was taxed with it and that likelihood is rendered greater by 
Plaintiff's evidence under cross-examination where he says:-

" I took the pregnancy to Defendant after the birth of the 
twins . . . I went personally to see Defendant after tho 
birth of the twins. That was about two months after t he 
birth of the twins. Defendant was at home then. I went 
to the Headman immediately after I went to Defendant." 

6 
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If Plaintiff is correct in saying he went to Defendant two 
months after the birth of the twins, then it is clear that 
the twi ns were born in the early part of 1937, or, allowing 
a fair ly large margin of error, the latter end of 1936 and 
not in t he winter of 1936 as alleged by him and his wife. 
lt is evident t hat no great reliance can be placed on Plain­
tiff's evidence in endeavouring to fix the date. 

Let us see whether any assistance is lent by the evidence of 
Plaintiff's wife. S he contradicts herself considerably but this 
might be excused if there was not such a wide divergence 
between the dates she gives and those approximately fixed 
by even ts to which she refers. Her evidence is as follows:-

" I last gave birth to a child in the winter of last year. I 
gave birth to twin daughters then. Both died. The one was 
about five or six months old when it died. The other did not 
live more than a week. I do not know how long it is since 
t he second twin d ied. 1t died last spnng. It died some 
months before this last Christmas. This commg winter will 
be the first winter since I gave birth to the twins. I am 
mistaken this coming winter will be the second one since 
t lw t wins were born ." In cross-examination she says: " The 
second twin died the day after the Headman gave judgment 
in the case.'' 

The date of hearing by the Headman was just shortly 
before t he 8th October, 1937, the date on which summons 
was issued. Now while Plaintiff's wife corrected her state­
ment as to• t he date when she gave birth she made no change 
as to that of t he death of the second twin and its age at 
the,.. date of death. If she died at five or six months and was 
born in t he winter of 1936 it could not have been alive in 
October. 193i. If it was alive on the latter date then, 
accepting her statement as to its age at death, it must have 
been born early in 193i. If the child was born in the winter 
of 1936 then at t he time of the Headman's enquiry it would 
have been about fifteen months old. Now the Plaintiff's wife 
may be ignoran t and uneducated but she is hardly likely to 
have made such a great error in regard to the age of the 
chi ld when it died. 

It is of some significance too, that no witness other than 
P la intiff a nd h is wife was called in regard to the birth and 
df'ath of t hose twins. The witness, 1\Iandanti, who supports 
P lai ntiff's wife as to the adultery and who lives at the same 
kraa l, makes no mention of the twins. If the second twin 
was a live when the case came before the headman some reli­
able person could haye been called to give an estimate of its 
age. 

It will be seen that if the date of birth is accepted as being 
in t he winter of 1936 great difficulty is experienced in making 
the evidence-as to the age of the twins, when Defendant was 
charged with the adultery and the age of the second twin 
on death-fit in and then only can be effected by allowing a 
very wide margin of error. 

If, however, the date actually is 1937 that difficulty entirely 
disappea rs. 

The Native Commissioner has clearly ha sed his finding on 
his accep tance of the Plaintiff's evidence in regard to the 
elate of h is return from work. He says in his reasons for 
judgment that Defendant was away and. thereforP, is not 
in a position to contradict Plaintiff's t>vidf'ncc. It is the 
d u ty of P laintiff to prove his assertion and when it is found 
t hat the evidence he produces lea,•es considerable doubt on 
that point then, obviously, the Defendant must have the 
benefit of that doubt and should not be expected t_o prove a 
negative. 

The onlv witnesses in regard to the alleged adnltNy arc 
Pla intiff's. wife and 1\fadanti. This is not very convincing 
and, in view of th~ unsatisfactory nature of the rc>st of the 
case, is insufficient to establish the accusation. 
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ln the opinion of this Court the Plaintiff has failed to 
prove that Defendant committed adultery with and caused 
the pregnancy of his wife. 

'fhe appeal is allowed with costs and the judgment in the 
Court below is altered to one of absolution from the instance 
with costs. 

In earlier times Native Custom demanded that a husband 
should personally effect a catch before he could claim damages 
for adultery; latterly this custom has been somewhat relaxed, 
nu doubt, owing to the frequent and lengthy absences of 
husbands at t he mines and the consequent impossibility of 
them making a <A'ltch personally ; but even then it was 
required that the catch should be made by some male relative. 
Even this safeguard is being done away with and the ten­
dency is growing of relying on the evidence of the wife and 
a "go-between" only. This is unsafe and leaves the door 
open to the bringillg of false charges. 

It is the easiest thing possible to make a charge of adul­
tery and in the 1Jlajority of cases the unfortunate Defendant 
can only deny the charge. His only chance of succeedi ng 
is by tripping up the witnesses in cross-examination and 
where t here are only two witnesses that chance is consider­
ably reduced. If proper proof of adultery were more strictly 
insisted upon the number of adultery cases brought before 
the Courts would most probably be substantially reduced. 

JULY GETSE and M YOLWA MTOB AZI vs. LAKENI 
SIGAB U. 

PoRT ST. JoHNS: 13th October, 1938. Before H. G. Scott, 
Esq., President, and l\Iessrs. J. H. Nicholson and P. C. 
Tweedie, l\Iembers of the N.A.C. 

Adultery-Damages-Discretion of Judicial Officer to refuse 
absolution at close of Plaintiff's case-Evidence of woman 
-Corroboration of-Sufficiency of-False denials by 
Defendant of material /ads capable of innocent explana­
tion · may be regarded as. 

(Appeal from Native Commissioner's Court, Flagstaff: 
Case 10/38.) 

Plaintiff (Respondent) in the Court below sued the Defen­
dants (Appellants) for five head of cattle or £25 alleging 
t hat from the autumn to the end of winter of 1936 or 
thereabouts first Defendant committed adultery with and 
caused the pregnancy of his wife, l\Iamhlamveni, as a result 
of which she gave birth to a child at the commencement of 
l\Iarch, 1937. Second Defendant was sued as head of the 
kraal at which both Defendants reside and as such the 
guardian of first Defendant and responsible for his torts. 

The plea denied the adultery and admitted that first 
Defendant resided at the kraal of second Defendant who 
accepted Kraal Head responsibility for his torts but denied 
that he was his guardian. 

The Native Commissioner entered judgment for Plaintiff 
as prayed with costs and the appeal is against that judgment. 



• 
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The following facts are spoken to by Plaintiff's witnesses :-
1. That first Defe.ndant (referred to as " July " by Plain­

tiff's wife througbou,t her evidence) made love to 
Plaintiff's wife for some months and thereafter had 
connection with her and rendered her pregnant. 

2. The first act of connection took place at a stream 
(variously referred to as Mdonyeni and Ngwenyeni in 
the evidence) and the se.cond in a bush. 

3. \Vhen the pregnancy was discovered the stomach was 
taken to July at l\Iyolwa's kraal and the former then 
admitted his liability and agreed to pay five head of 
cattle as damages. 

4. Thereafter Plaintiff's father Sigabu and one Siguva 
went to l\lyolwa's kraal and found July was away. 
Damages were demanded from l\Iyolwa for the preg­
nancy and he said ,July should pay as Plaintiff's wife 
had brought the pregnancy and he had admitted it. 

5. A case was brought before the Headman, Ntata, against 
l\Iyolwa where he admitted that the woman had brought 
the pregnancy and admitted his responsibility. 

6. That July has been residing in Ntata's Loca,tion for 
some fonr or five years in close proximity to the kraal 
where Plaintiff's wife was living at the time the 
adultery is alleged to ha.ve taken place. 

At the close of Plaintiff's case Defendants' attorney applied 
for absolution from the instance but this was refused. 

As there was evidence on which a reasonable person might 
have given judgment for Plaintiff at the close of Plaintiff's 
case, we are of opinion that the application was correctly 
refused. 

Evidence for the def~nce was then called. 
First Defendant denied that he had ever seen :\'Iamhlam­

veni or l\Ianjilondi, the woman who corroborated her in 
regard to the adultery. He asserted that he had only been 
two weeks in the location and during that time had never 
visited any other kraal than Myolwa's, that he never heard 
of the case before the Headman , that the women had never 
brought the pregnancy to him and that he had never admitted 
his liability; that he was only at l\Iyolwa's once, that he does 
not live with l\lyolwa but with one ::\Ialumko, that he ·does 
not know the stream mentioned by Mamhlamveni except by 
its name (Ngwenyeni) but has ne.ver been near it; that he is 
known by the name July only in Lisikisiki District and that 
where he was living in Flagstaff District he was always 
called l\Iqolo. 

First Defendant is corroborated very largely by l\Iyolwa and 
1\Ialumko, but the latter says that the women did bring the 
pregnancy to l\Iyolwa's kraal and that l\Iyolwa was present. 

It is very significant that both l\Iyolwa and first Defendant 
should so strenuously have denied that the women ever came 
to the kraal. Again while l\Iyolwa and first Defendant are 
positive that the latter was only two we.eks at l\Iyolwa's 
kraal and then went to the mines l\Ialumko savs he was there 
two ~·ears before going to the mines. This evidence supports 
that of the Headman and discredits both l\Iyolwa and first 
Defendant. Furthermore., if first Defendant had been at 
l\Iyolwa's kraal for only two weeks the latter would never 
have admitted in his plea that he was an iumate of his kraal 
or have accepted responsibility for his torts. 

A careful consideration of the evidence leaves this Court 
with the impression that first Defendant was at l\Iyolwa's 
kraal for a period of some years and, if that is so, then his 
pretended ignorance of the identity of people living in close 
proximity and of the physical features of the surrounding 
country, and his denial of the length of his residence in the 
location are clearly dishonest. 
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The Plaintiff's case certainly was not strong, depending as 
is did largely on the evidence of the two women, but it 
a·eceived support from the unsatisfactory nature of the 
defence evidence. 

The Assistant Native ('ommissioner was entitled to assume 
that first Defendant's fal se denials of facts which, while 
ca pable of an innocent explanation , were made because he 
des ired to conceal the truth and to say that those false 
denials constituted corroboration of the women's story. (See 
Nolte vs. Rowe, 1926 T.P.D. , reported in Vol. 8, Prentice­
Hall l\1.24.) 

ln Van der 1\le.nve ·vs. Nel (1928 T.P.D., r eported in Vol. 
13, Prentice-Hall l\1.2), llarry, J. (dealing with the question 
of corroboration of the woman's word in seduction cases) said: 
" Or again , if the man's statements are proved to be false 
on a questwn which is material to the issue, his denial may 
g ive a difterent complexion to the case.'' 

The principles laid down in these cases would be equally 
applicable to adultery cases. 

In the opinion of this Court the Assistant Native Commis­
sioner was justified by the evidence in ent ering judgment 
in favour of Plaintiff and the appeal is accordingly dismissed 
with costs. 

NO·O FFIS I MB INZWA vs. GOLI MBANYARU. 

U.!IITATA: 19th October, 1938. Before H. G. Scott, Esq., 
President, and Messrs. J . H. Steenkamp and R. \Vronsky, 
l\lembers of the N.A.C. 

lllarriage-Olaim by wife for dissolution and declaration that 
dowry forfeit ed-Compromise by parties during course of 
action-Fulfilment by Defendant of his part of agreement 
- F1·ivilous excuse by wife for jailing to retum-Absolu­
tiort judgment. 

(Appeal from Native Commissioner's Cou rt, l\lqanduli: 
Case No. 394/37.) 

In the Court below Plaintiff (Appellant) claimed a dissolu­
tion of her marriage with Defendant (Respondent) on the 
ground that he had reject ed her and driven her away from 
his kraal and that he had fa iled to support her. In addition 
she asked for an order that Defenuant had forfeited the 
dowry paid by him for her . 

Defendant denied having driven her awa·y and stated that 
he was quite willing to maintain Plaintiff and to receive her 
back. 

The Assistant Native Commissioner entered judgment of 
absolution from the instance with costs and the appeal is 
against that judgment on the ground that it is against the 
weight of evidence. 

The case came on for hearing on the 9th April, 1938, and 
Plaintiff gave evidence in which she said she was prepared to 
go back to her husband. 
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At the conclusion of her evidence a compromise was arrived 
at and the fo llowing note was made on the record:-

" At this stage parties compromise and agree that Defen­
dant establish a new kraal at a site away from locality where 
Tsheleza resides and that the case be postponed ' sine die ' so 
as see if Defendant did established such site and whether 
or not P laintiff would return to him." 

Thereafter Defendant built a kraal and Plaintiff was duly 
a dvised thereof but she refused to return to Defendant . Her 
evidence is rather instructive as indicating her state of mind. 
She says:-

" Remember case was adjourned for Defendant to build 
hut for me. He notified me through my attorney that hut 
was built . I object to that hut as I do not like spot where 
it is built .... I don't know where I want kraal built .... 
I did not go to consult with Defendant. H e came to me when 
wall of hut was bui lt and I refused to assist." 

This evidence clearly shows that Plaintiff had no intention 
of returning to Defendant and that no matter where the 
kraal was bui lt she would still have refused to occupy it. She 
does not give any satisfactory reason for her dislike of the 
spot beyond a vague statement that it is n ear the woman 
whom she a lleges Defendant is living with and that she does 
not agree with the people of that n eighbourhood. 

Now whatever may have been the position previously the 
compromise arrived at on the first day altered the whole 
complexion of the case. Defendant has carried out his part 
of the agreement. 

I n the opinion of this Courti Plaintiff 's excuse for not 
returning to Defendant is frivi ous in the extreme. It is 
surprising that the judicial officer proceeded further ,vith the 
case after the conclusion of her evidence . 

The appeal, which, in the opinion of this Court, is one 
which should never have been brought, is dismissed with costs. 

GANA DLABA vs. AL F RED MAQUBA. 

Ul\ITATA: 20th October, 1938. Before H. G. Scott, Esq., 
President, a nd Messrs. J. H. Steenkamp and R. Wronsky, 
l\fembers of the N.A.C. 

Engag ement cattle-Placed in possession of payer to avoid 
attachment and for grazing p1.trposes-Claim by payee for 
returrv-Plea of rejection by girl-Onus on Defendant to 
prove-Inability of bridegroom to carry out engagement 
by marrying another wornarv-Forfeiture. 

(Appeal from Native Commissioner's Court, Qumbu: 
Case No. 157 /37.) 

F rom t he record it appears that R espondent's daughter , 
Girlie , became engaged to Appellant's nephew, P enrose , and 
certain cattle were paid on account of dowry. Hespondent 
says twelve were paid and Appellant says ten. 

In 1936 a judgment was obtairwd against R espondent by a 
:M:r. \Vinkworth and six of these cattle were attached. 
Appellant laid claim to t hem on the ground that the marriage 
between Girlie and P enrose had not yPt taken place. 'l'he 
cattle were released to him on the 15th December, 1936, 
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he obtained a permit to remove them to the R espondent but 
they were not takPn to him as he asked Appellant to keep 
them seeing he had other liabilities and feared they might 
be attached again and also because the grass at Appellant's 
was better. 

ln April, 1937, Respondent demanded these cattle from 
Appellant and as he did not hand them over sned him 
before the sub-headman and the H eadman and obtained 
judgment in both Courts. As these judgments were not 
complied with, snmmons was issued in the Native Commis­
sioner's Court on the 21st October , 1937, and judgment was 
entered in favour of Respondent for thirteen head of eattle 
or their value £3 each and costs. 

The appeal is against that judgment on the ground that 
it is against the weight of evidence. 

The Appellant resisted the claim on the ground t hat Girlie 
had refused to marry P enrose and thereafter R espondent 
had returned the dowry in view of that refusal. 

At tlw outset it may besaid that Appellant's evidence is 
at varianee with his plea that Hespondent returned the 
eattle in consequence of Girlie' s refusal to marry Penrose. 
It is elear that the eattle eame into his possession long before 
the alleged rejeetion and for the reasons which have already 
been stated. 

The allegation of rejection is based on a letter whieh 
Pen rose says he reeeived from Girlie in February, 1937, 
(Exhibit. A), in which she sa ,\'S she is tired of his people 
always abusing her and she does no t want to beeome his 
wife and that she has returned his eattle. 

Girlie denies having writte:n this letter and the only 
witness as to it being in her handwriting is P enrose. Girlie's 
evideuee appears to be supported by another letter admittedly 
written by her and which Penrose says he reeeived in May, 
1937. In this she says, inter alia, " I have been asking you 
for a long time to come back so that we can he married." 

The whole tone of this letter goes to show that there had 
not been any previous rejection by her. 

In the absence of any evidence other than that of Penrose as 
to the authorship of Exhibit " A " this Court is of opinion 
that the Assistant Native Commissoner was fully justified in 
doubting its authenticity. 

The doubt as to Girhe ha,·ing rejected P en rose is strength­
ened by Appellant' s own evidence. He says that he got a 
letter from P enrose in the weeding season of 1937 eontaining 
information directing him to keep the eattle. 

Presumably this information was the alleged rejection. 
That letter is not produced and Appellant admits that he 
made no mention of it either to R espondent or before the 
sub-headman or headman nor did he te ll the latter why he 
was retaining the eattle. He further says he never heard 
locally of any reject ion by Girlie. 

If P enrose had written to him that he had been rejeeted 
Appellant's natural course was to set up that defence whe11 
sued before the headman or to ha,·e claimed from the R es­
pondent the balance of the dowry which was not in his 
possession. H e takes neither of these courses', but keeps 
complete silence and e\·en when sued in t he Native Com­
missioner's Court does not make any counter-claim. 

If his defence is correct then he is entitled to the return 
of all the cattle paid. The Appellant it is tnH' a\·ers that 
the cattle belong to P enrose hut when six of them wPre 
attached he claimed them in his own name and this seems 
to show that he was the actual payer. 





Penrose has put it out of his power to carry out his 
engagement to Girlie by marrying another woman, so that 
unless he can prove a prior rejection by Girlie the dowry 
paid is liable to forfeiture. 

The onus is upon Appellant to prove that rejeetion and 
if he does not :-;uceeed in doing so the Hespondent is entitled 
to judgment. 

In tlh' opinion of this Court Appellant has failed to dis­
charge the onus upon him and the appeal is aecordingly 
cl ism issed with costs. 

GWIJI GONTSI vs. NOMTEBE SAZELA. 

Ul\ITATA: 21st October, 1938. Before H. G. Scott, Esq., 
President, and .Messrs. J. H. Steenkamp and R. 
'Vronsky, Members of the N.A.C. 

l'ractice and proeel/U1'1'-lnfornwtion supplied in reply to 
reiJllest for further particulars should IJ e eorreet and not 
calcllluted to dec ei l'P opposite party-Rvidenee-Onus of 
proof-Fail~tre by J>luintijf to eall tc1tn,ess on matter put 
in issue at conuneneement of proeredings--Jndgment for 
Plaintiff altered to absolution from th e instance. 

(Appeal from Native Commissioner's Court, Qumbu: 
Case No. ll /1938.) 

In the Court below Plaintiff (Hcspondent) claimed from 
Defendant (Appellant) (l) four head of cattle or their value 
£20, and (2) £7 eash lent and l8s. eost of a bag of wheat. 

Judgment was entered in favour of Plaintiff as prayed 
with eosts and the appeal is against that judgment on the 
following grounds : -

That as the matter was one purely of credibility, the 
Native Commissioner erred in finding that Plaintiff in the 
Court below had discharged the onus that was upon him. In 
view of the numerous diserepaneies in the Plaintiff' s case 
particularly the variance of the Plaintiff's testimony when 
opposed to the information eontained in his partieulars of 
claim and further particulars it is submitted that the Native 
Commissioner's judgment was against the weight of e,·idenee 
and probabilities of the case. 

In his particulars of claim Plaintiff alleged that about 
November, 1937. he exchanged with one l\l<lpungo two horses 
for fonr head of eattle; that he delivered the horses and 
took deliverv of the cattle hut cou ld not remove them because 
the locality 'where he lived was in quarantine; that l\lapungo 
died before the stock was remoYed and Defendant, who is 
J\lapungo's heir , took possess ion of the stock and now refuses 
to deliYer them. 

In regard to the second claim Plaintiff alleged that at 
about the time of the exchan ge of the horses he lent the late 
Mapungo the sum of £7 and sold him a bag of wheat for l8s. 
and as Defendant had taken possession of the late l\lapnngo's 
estate he was liable for these amounts. 

Before pleading to the summons Defendant asked for the 
following partieulars:-

l. " 7here the transaetion of exehango took plaee and who 
was present. 

2. 'Vho was present when the sum of £7 was lent to tha late 
1\lapungo. 
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The particulars furnished were:-
1. The transaction of exchange was completed at the kraal 

of the late Mapungo Gontsi, the Defendant 1being 
amongst others present at the time. 

2. The amount of £7 was lent to the late l\Iapungo at the 
luaal of the Plaintiff . 'fhere were several people at the 
kraal amongst them being Plaintiff 's wife and Jiloyi. 
One l\1pandana came with the late .Mapungo. 

Certain further particulars were asked for as to the descri p­
tion of the two horses and the cattle. But as the Appellant's 
attorney specifically stated that he was not basing his argu­
ment on the difference in the description given in the further 
particulars and that given in the evidence it is not necessary 
to refe r further to this matter. 

Defendant then pleaded denying the co ntract of exchange, 
the loan of £7 or the sale of wheat. 

He stated that about F ebruary, 1936, his late father hired 
Plaintiff to go to Basutoland to buy certain three horses for 
him and that he paid for these horses and is under no obliga­
tion to Plaintiff for same. 

H e stated further that during November , 1937, his father 
was extremely ill and completely unable to transact any busi­
ness of the nature described by Plaintiff. 

It is very difficult to ascertain from the Plaintiff 's evidence 
when the alleged transaction of exchan ge actually took place. 
In the summons he says it was in Norember, 1937, while in 
his evidence he g ives the date Yariously as the ploughing 
season of 1936 and winter of 1936. His witness, l\Iakutswana, 
the only one called to corroborate him , is un able to give any 
idea as to when the transaction took place. In regard to 
this witness it is of some significance that his name was not 
mentioned in the further particulars given by Plaintiff. H e 
was an important witness and it was to be expected that 
Plaintiff would have named him. Instead of that he con­
tents himself with the statement that the Defendant was 
amongst others present at the time. 

There are discrepancies in the ev idence of these two wit­
nesses also, which, while perhaps not of Yery serious import, 
lead this Court to r egard their statements with cau tion. 

Defendant's evidence on this aspect of the case is a denial 
that any exchange ever took place. He says that after 
r eaping season of 1936 his father hired Plaintiff to go to 
1\fount Flet cher district to fetch thr ee horses which he had 
previously bought from one Lamani Pasmani. 

Plaintiff also alleges that he purchased the horses from 
Lamani. 

There is no doubt that the horses were in the possession of 
the late l\Iapungo and that possession raises the presumption 
of ownership. That presumption t he Plaintiff has endea­
voured to rebut by the allegation that he gave them in 
exchange for cattle. 

We hare the position her e that both Plaintiff and Defen­
dant assert that the horses were purchased from Lamani Pas­
mani. This man is the one who could settle the matter with­
out any doubt and should have been called. The question is 
as to who should have called him. 

The Native Commissioner seems to think that Defendant 
should have done so, but he has overlooked the fact that the 
onus was on Plaintiff to prove his case and that the matter 
as to who purchased the horses from Lamani was put in issue 
at the verv commencement of the case. In these ci rcmn­
stances thi ~ Court is of opinion that it was the duty of the 
Plaintiff to produce this witness. In his absence it is not 
possible to say with anv cPrt itude who is telling the truth. 
As he was not called the Plaintiff has failed to di scharge the 
onus which rest ed upon him and judgment of absolution from 
the instance shoul1l have been entered . 
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The evidence on the second portion of the claim is also far 
fro m satisfactory. 

It will be seen that in the further particulars furnished 
Plaintiff stated that his wife and one .Ji loyi were present at 
the loan of the money and that Mpandana came with the 
late l\lapungo. 

In his evidence Plaintiff denied that he had told his attor­
ney this. H e states also that l\lpandana was not there and 
his wife says t he same and Mpanclana who was ca lled for the 
defence also says he was not there. 'l' hi;; Court is not prepared 
to believe Plaintiff in his assertion that he did not tell his 
attorney about l\lpandana. 

The statement was made and it could ha ve come from no 
one else but Plaintiff. 

Jiloyi is also mentioned as a witness present at this loan but 
he is not called and the Plainti ff says that while he was 
abou t th e kraal he was not present when the matter was 
discussed. 

It was argued hy R espondent 's attornev in t his Court that 
he was not obliged to divulge t he n ames of his witnesses in 
reply to a request for further particulars. Be that as it may 
it is certain that if he does disclose the information it should 
be corn•ct and not ca lculated to deceive t he opposite party. 
If he does di sclose false information he must not be surprised 
if it is used to t est his genuineness. 

The two witnesses whom Plaintiff had mentioned as having 
bPen present were admittedly not so present and a witness 
Hlapezulu, who was never mentioned before, is called to sub­
stantiate Plain tiff's story. This witness was a mere passer-by 
who called in at the kraal at the very moment when the 
Plaintiff's wife wa f3 bringing the money out of the hut to 
hand over to Plaintiff who then handed it to l\lapungo. One 
peculiar feature about this man's evidence is that he does 
not know for what purpose the money was being paid. A 
Native is notoriously curious and it seems extremely unlikely 
that he would have made no enquiries. Apart from this it 
is imposs ible that l\Iapun go would have gone alone to a ffect 
such a s ubstantial loan. 

The evidence in regard to the wheat is also unsu hstantial 
being that only of the Plaintiff .and his wife. 

In all the circumstances of the case we are of opinion that 
Plaintiff has also faile·d satisfactorily to discharge the onus 
upon him of proving these transactions. 

The appeal is allowed with costs and the judgment in the 
Court below altered to one of a hsolution from the instance 
with costs. 

MBAWULI NGQANGO and EIGHT OTHERS vs. KETANI 
GQUKUZA. 

UMTATA: 22nd October, 1938. Before H. G. Scott , Esq., 
President , and Messrs. J. H. Steenkamp and R. Wronsky, 
Members of the .N.A.C. 

Damages-lnj11ry causing d ea th-Action by son of deceased­
Not provPd that defendants responsib le fo r d ea th of 
d eceasl'd-Absol11ti on granted-Calculable pecuniary loss­
Difficulty of proring in Native cases-Suggestion that 
matter be brought to notice of Legislature-Costs of 
appeal on High er Scale· granted. 

(Appeal from Native Commissioner's Court, 
Umtata: Case No. 279/1937.) 

Plaintiff who is a minor and assisted hy his grandfather 
is suing Defendants jointly and severally for the sum of 
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£100 being damages sustained by him by reason of the 
death of his father caused by the Defendants who acting in 
concert, did wrongfully and unlawfully fight or attempt to 
fight and during which wrongful and unlawful act Plaintiff's 
father was killed. 

A plea in abatement was filed which was dismissed and 
Defendants have not appealed against this decision. Defen­
dants in their plea denied that they all attempted to fight 
and denied generally that they were responsible for the 
death of deceased and further maintain that Plaintiff sus­
tained no damages, and that even if he did, they were not 
liable therefor. 

The Defendants and three others were committed for trial 
on a charge of culpable homicide (reduced from murder) in 
respect of the death of deceased. 

The case was remitted by the Solicitor-General under 
Section 90 of Act No. 31 of 1917 and the Defendants were 
charged with the crime of Cupable Homicide or alternatively 
Fighting or attempting to fight and were convicted for 
,1 ttempting to Fight by the Assistant Magistrate. 

The record of the Criminal Case was handed in by consent. 
Judgment was entered by the Additional N atiYe Com­

missioner in favour of Plaintiff for £20 with costs against 
the Defendants joint!~· and severally, the one paying the 
others to be absolved. 

An appeal against this judgment has been noted on the 
following grounds :-

(1) That the finding of the Court that Defendants were 
responsible for the death of deceased is against 
the weight of evidence and probabilities of the case. 

(2) That the award of damages is also against the weight 
of evidence and probabilities of the case, or there is 
no evidence of any 1·eal calculable pecuniary loss 
upon which a judgment for Plaintiff could be founded 
and there is no proof of any damage to Plaintiff 
and the judgment is based on surmise and not on 
real evidence. 

(3) That Plaintiff has failed to prove his case. 
(4) That in any event the damages are excessive. 

The Additional Native Commissioner in his careful and 
able reasons for judgment has found the following facts, 
amongst others, proved:-

1. That the Defendants acting in concert were about to 
fight with some other boys when the deceased and 
other young men intervened. 

2. That deceased was struck by an assegai thrown from 
the side of the Defendants inflicting a wound from 
the result of which he died. 

He gives the following resume of the events on the occasion 
in question :-

" No evidence of the eYcnts leading up to the injury and 
death of the deceased was called, the parties relying on the 
evidence in the criminal case, the record of which was put in. 
According to the recorded evidence a number of young men, 
including deceased and some boys were attending an intonjane 
at Makunqa's kraal when the defendants arrived, armed with 
assegais, iron-shod sticks and knob-kerrics. A fight was 
about to take place between Defendants and the boys at 
the kraal when the deceased and other young men ran in 
between the opposing sides with the object of separating 
them. An assegai was then thrown from the side of the 
Defendants. It was apparently aimed at the opposing side, 
but it struck the deceased causing an injury from the effects 
of which he died. 
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JUatshona and Kupiso stated that it was thrown by second 
Defendant (Wantusi l\1gxoti). He, however, denied that he 
was at l\laknnqa' s kraal and his evidence is supported by 
ot her witnesses, but his evidence is very unsatisfactory. 
The r easons he gave for leaving surreptiously for the mines 
immediately after the incident are unacceptable. He was 
identified as one of the parties who took part in the attack 
by four Crown witnesses. The other Defendants stated that 
they were attacked and ran away; and it was suggested 
that the deceased was disliked and was deliberately stabbed 
by one of the young men with him. This suggestion is 
unsupported by facts a nd must be rejected. 'Vhichever party 
started t he trouble it is clear f rom the evidence that all 
the Defendants took part in the attempted fight; that 
while the two sides were facing each other ilssegai and 
_things were being thrown fro m Defendants' side; a nd that 
it was at this stage that the deceased was struC'k. 

The Defendants and the boys of the kraal were engaged 
in an illega l act whi<'h resulted in the death of the deceased. 
This being so, the Defendants are liable jointly and severa lly 
to the Plaintiff. . .. " 

It is clear from this passage of the reasons for judgment 
that the Additional Native Commissioner accepted in its 
entirety the evide1we given by the Native Crown witnesses 
to the effect that t he only persons a rmed with assegais were 
those on the Defendants' side while they themselves had no 
such weapons and t hat t he only assegais thrown came from 
the D<.'fendants' p_arty. The evidence for the defen<'e, however, 
was just the opposite, namely that they had no assegais and 
t hat the Crown witnesses were so armed and threw assegais 
at them. The Additional l\"ati>e Cf''l;:r.issioner does not 
say what he finds was the position. It is not improbable 
that some of the Crown ~Witnesses were armed with assegais 
in view of the fact that they were p roceeding to intervene 
between parties one of which were in possession of lethal 
weapons. 

If the finding of the Additional Native Commissioner that 
the death of deceased was cau sed by an assegai thrown by the 
Defendants' party is correct then clearly they were all guilty 
of C'ulpable homiC'ide. ' 

The Assistant ~[agistrate who tried the Criminal Case 
e,·idently was of opinion that this fact had not been suffi­
ciently prO\·ed otherwise he would have convicted them on 
t he major C'harge. 

This Court is of opinion that the eviden<'E~ does not estab­
lish that deC'eased met his death as the result of an asscgai 
thrown by an y of the Defendants. A perusal of the record 
shows that nearlv all the Crown witnesses speak of deN~ascd 
having been stabbed, while two state that they did not see 
any assegais being thrown. 

The District S urgeon stated that the point of the assegai 
which killed the deC'eased is rounded off and considerable 
force would have been required to penetrate the organs to 
the extent they were penetrated and expressed the opini~m 
that the wound was caused by a stab at close quarters wlulc 
not eliminating the possibility of it having been caused by 
throwing the assegai. 

It is unfortunate that evidence was not recorded as to 
the direction of the wound internally as this might have 
helped considerably in deciding what actually happened. 

If the defence evidenC'e that asscgais were being thrown 
at them is correct then the possibility of de<'('ased having 
been acC'idcntally injured by oue of his own party cannot bo 
disregarded. 
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As already pointed out this Court is not satisfied that 
the Defendants were responsible for the death of the deceased 
and judgment of absolution from the instance should have 
been entered. 

The appeal therefore sueceeds on the first ground. 

This being so it is not necessary to eonsider the other 
grounds of appeal but this Court wishes to state that it 
is very doubtful whether Plaintiff has suceeeded in proving 
any material loss to have been suffered by him, 

There have been several cases before this Court of a 
similar nature and in every one of them it has been found 
that the Defendants have been unable to prove any pecuniary 
loss. In the circumstances and under the conditions in whieh 
the generality of Natives live there is no basis on whieh 
to assess damages such as is possible in the ease of Europeans 
who usually have a more or less fixed ineome. The very 
large majority of Natives have no regular income and sub­
sist mainly from the produee of their lands and also from 
earnings on the mines at irregular intervals. 

In the event of the death of the bread winner through 
negligenee or malice his lands are cultivatf'd by some other 
member of the fami ly so that no loss occurs to the dependents 
on that account. Even where a man has been in the habit 
of going to the mines this has only been, probably, at 
irregular intervals and it is impossible to say whether, or 
when, h e would go again . 

Even when he did send money down it was used for the 
family generally and it is difficult to estimate with any 
degree of aeeuracy how much was spent on the persons 
aetually dependent upon him. Enough has been said to 
show the hardship under which the dependents of a Native 
labourer in trying to prove material loss. 

That they do suffer some loss cannot be questioned but 
how to prove it is the almost insuperable diffieulty. 

It is thought that the matter might be brought to the 
notiee of the Legislature with a view to steps being taken 
towards ameliorating the position. 

The appeal is allowed with costs on the Higher Seale 
and the judgment in the Court below altered to one of 
absolution from the instanee with costs. 

MBISHE MENZI vs. NTSHONTSHO MAGWEKE. 

UMTATA : 24th Oetober, 1938. Before H. G. Reott, Esq., 
President, and 1\Iessrs. J. H. Steenkamp and R. 'Vronsky , 
l\Iembers of the N.A.C. 

Native Appeal Courrt-ProcedU're-Failure of Clerk of Native 
Commission er's Co1lrt to notify parties of date of hear­
ing-Rule 18, Governtrnent Notice No. 2254 of 1928-Case 
struck of Toll-Application to restore case to roll granted . 

• 4dultery-lnsufficiency of evidence to establish charge of­
Judgment for Defendant altered to absol1dion fronL the 
instance where defence evidence unsatisfactory and 
further evidence for Plaintiff available. 

Costs of appeal-1\-o order mode where Appellant's attorney 
intimated that judgment not being attacked on the 
ground that absolution shonld have been granted in 
Court below. 
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(Appeal from Native Commissioner's Court, Cofimvaba: 
Case 188/ :37.) 

This case was on the roll at the session held at Umtata on 
15th June, 1938, but as there was no appearance for either 
Appellant or Hespondent it was struck off the roll. 

Application has now been made for the case to be reinstated 
on the roll on the ground that Notice of Hearing had not 
been furnished to the attorneys of the parties as required 
hy Rule 18 of the Native Appeal Court Rules (Government 
Notice No. 2254 of 1928). 

As the omission to prosecute the appeal was not due to 
any neglect on the part of the Appellant or his attorney 
thP application is granted and the case restored to the roll. 

The Plaintiff sued Defendant for 5 head of cattle or thier 
value £20 being damages for adultery with Plaintiff's wife 
Notembile and pregnaney. 

It is alleged in the summons that during or about Spring 
of 1936 and on divers occasions thereafter Defendant com­
mitted adultery with Plaintiff's wife as a result of which 
she became pregnant aud gave birth to a female child on or 
about the 21st September, 1937. 

Defendant in his plea denies the allegation . 

Judgment was entered by the Acting Native Commissioner 
in fa,·our of Defendant with costs. 

An appeal has been noted on the ground that the judgment 
is against the weight of evidence. 

It is clear from the record that the Plaintiff cannot be the 
father of the child born of his wife in view of the fact that 
he was absent at the mines from September, 1934 to August, 
1937. On his return he found his wife pregnant at her 
people 's kraal. She returned with him to his own kraal and 
named Defendant who is a cousin of Plaintiff , as being re­
ponsible for her condition. 

The only evidence of the actual adultery is that of Plain­
tiff's wife Notembile. The go-between Notimite corroborates 
her in r espect of the various appointments made on behalf 
of the Defendant. 

It is further alleged in the evidence that a woman by the 
name of Nondini also arranged two meetings for Defendant 
but this woman has not been called as a witness. Both 
Notembile and Notimite state that the various appointments 
were made for the adultery to take place at Plaintiff's 
kraal where his wife -,vas residing. 

Notimiti alleges that she made appointments for two 
occasions and thnt she took Defendant to Notembile on the 
first occasion and left him there after he had given her a 
shilling and on the second occasion she also went to the 
kraal and found Defendant there and after he had given her 
some tobacco she went home. 

There is no evidence that DefPndant and Notemhile were 
found in compromising circumstances at any time. The only 
other evidence is that of Plaintiff's minor son who states 
that Defendant visited their kraal on four occasions during 
night time. 

Evidence was given by Plaintiff 's messengers as to what 
took place at Defendant's kraal when Notcmbile was taken 
there with the charge but there is a good deal of discrepanc·y 
between these witnesses and N otembile and Plaintiff's caso 
is consequently weakened. 
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'l'he Courts have laid it down from time to time that the 
clearest proof of adultery is required but in the present case 
we have only the evidence of the Plaintiff's wife as to the 
specific act, nor is her evidence su pported by surrounding 
circumstances from which it may be assumed that adultery 
actually took place. 

This Court after careful considerat ion of the evidence is 
of opinion that Plaintiff has failed to est ablish the charge of 
adultery, but, at the same time, t ha t the D efE:'ndant was not 
entitled to a final judgment in view of the fact that there 
is other evidence which con be r·aiiPd on behalf of l'laintdl 
a nd the fact that th e defence evidence was not very satis­
factory. The more correct judgment would, therefore, have 
been one of absolution from the insta nce. 

The appeal is accordingly allowed and the judgment 10 

thE:' Court below altered to one of absolution from the 
instance with costs. 

In regard to the costs of appeal as the Appellant's attor­
ney before this Court intimated that the judgment was not 
being attacked on the ground that absolution should have 
been granted in the Court below it is considered that there 
should be no order as to costs of appeal. 

ALDEN QINA vs. HENRY QINA. 

UMTATA: 24th October, 1938: Before H. G. Scott, Esq., 
President, and l\Iessrs. J. H . Steenkamp and R . Wronsky, 
l\lembers of the N .A.C. 

Appeal-Practice and procedure-Objection in limine to 
hearing of-Failure to serve copy of Notice of Appeal on 
R espondent forthwith - Rtde 9 (1), G.N. 2254 of 1928-
0bjection u.pheld-RequiTements of Rule 9 indicated­
Leave to apply joT con donation of iT1'egularity at next 
S ession of Court gmnted . 

(Appeal from Native Commissioner's Court, Umtata: 
Case No. 633/37.) 

Respondent's attorney objected in limine to the hearing of 
the appeal on the following ground :-

That Appellant has failed to comply with Rule 9 (1) of the 
Rules of the Native Appeal Court made by His Excellency 
the Governor-General of the Union of South Africa in terms of 
sub-section (5) of Section 13 of Act No. 38 of 1927 in that 
although the notice of appeal is dated 6th July, 1938, the 
copy of such notice was served upon R espondent 's attorney 
on 19th July, 1938, only. 

Attached to the notice of objection are affidavits dated 
20th July, 1938, by l\Ir. E. A. Ensor at that time an attorney 
in the employ of R espondent 's attorney, and l\liss Esme 
Hemming, a clerk also in the- employ of Respondent's 
attorney, to the effect that the copy of the notice of appeal 
was served on the 19th July, 1938, and not before. 

The rule referred to in the notice of objection reads:-
" 9. (1) After the noting of an appeal or cross-appeal a 

copy of the notice of appeal or cross-appeal shall forthwith 
be served upon the other party. Such copy may be served, 
free of charge, by the party who noted the appeal or cross­
appeal, in person, by delivery to t he other party personally 
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in the presence of a witness; or at the request of the party 
noting the appeal or cross-a ppeal , such copy shall be served 
by the l\lessenger of Court concerned , upon prepayment by 
such party, of the l\tessenger 's fees for service." 

It has been held by this Court in the cases of B. Gxagxa 
vs. S. l\laku (1932 N .A .C. 3) and J . Ketabahle vs. l\1. l\lpamba 
(1937 N.A.C. 193) that service by the legal r epresentative 
of the Appellant on the legal r epr esentative of the Respondent 
is a good one , but it is desired to point out, in case the 
matter should be made the subject of objection at some future 
time, that the rule r'.'quires that where service is made by a 
party, which, as has been pointed out in the cases mentioned 
above, includes the legal representative of the party, this 
should be done in the presence of a witness. It is realised 
that the almost univer sal practice i n thefie matters is to 
se rve a copy of the notice of appeal on the legal r epresentative 
of the Respondent and obtain his acknowledgement on the 
original. 'Vhile no one has up to the present raised the 
objection that this is not a com pliance with the rule such 
objection may at some future time be raised. It is, therefore, 
desirable to point out exactly what the rule r equires to be 
done . Firstly the appeal or c ross-appea l must be noted with 
the Clerk of the Court , after noting the appea l a copy of the 
notice of appeal or cross-appeal must be served forthwith 
upon the opposite party and finally, if the service is e ffected 
by the party who noted the appeal in person, su ch party shall 
forthwith notify the Clerk of the Court with whom the appeal 
or cross-appeal was noted of the time, place ana manner of 
su ch service, and such senice shall have no force or effect 
until the Clerk of the Court has been so notified. 

It will be seen from what has been said above that the 
rule is imperative and failure to ca rry out its provisions 
strictly may result in technical objections to the hearing of 
appeals being raised and possibly allowed. 

During the course of his argument the R espondent's 
attorney referred to the following cases in which the question 
of failure to serve a copy of the notice of appea l on the 
opposite party was considered, Karro & Dansky vs. van der 
S puy (1919 C.P.D. 293); ~ltshali vs. Sishuba (5. N.A .C. 141) 
and B. Gxagxa vs. S. l\Iaku [1932. N.A.C. (C. & 0. ) 3.]. 
In all these cases mentioned it would appear that service 
on the opposite party had not been made at all. 

It is argued in the present case that the principle is the 
same whether no service at all has been effected or whether 
sen·ice is affected othe rwise than forthwith. 

The Appellant 's attorney bases his argument in opposition 
to the objection on , practically , three g rounds :-

(a) That Respondent' s attorney knew on the 6th July) 1938, 
that an appeal was being noted as he was so intormed 
in a letter of that date. 

(b) That the Court should take cogniza nce of the fact that 
it is the routine practice in his office to send a carbon 
copy of the notice of appeal to the opposite party at 
the same time as the appeal is noted. 

(c) That a s the Clerk of the Court noted on the reco rd 
that an appeal had been n oted the max im omnia 
praesumunhtr rite Psse acta must ap ply and it must 
be acce pted that he had satisfied hinuwlf t!lat se rvice 
on the opposite party had been effeeted. 

In regard to (a) all that need be saia is that notifica tion 
of intention to appeal is not sufficien t. A party may intend 
to appeal and then alter his mind. In the abst' n<'e of a 
definite notice that a n a ppeal has been noted the ot!H' r 
party is entitled to assume that such a'teration of intention 
had taken place. 





1 n regard to argument (b) this Court cannot take notice 
of a statement ex parte of the routine of a particular office 
especially where that practice does not conform to the require­
ments of the rules. 

The argument under heading (c) is ingenious but unsound. 
The maxim referred to would apply only if it were the duty 
of the Clerk of the Court to satisfy himself that service of a 
copy of the notice of appeal had been effected. No such duty 
is cast upon the Clerk of the Court by the rules. All that 
he is required to do is to see that the notice of appeal is 
properly stamped and approved security furnished. 

It is the duty of the Appellant's attorney to satisfy this 
Court that he has complied with the rule. ln this case he 
clearly has not clone so . 

The rule referred to requires that service of the copy of the 
notice .of appeal should be made upon the opposite party 
forthwith, which is defined in the Concise Oxford Dictionary 
of Current English as " immediately ", " without delay ". 
Service of notice thirteen days after noting the appeal cannot 
be regarded as complying with the rule and, in the opinion 
of this Court, the objection is a good one. The objection 
is accordingly allowed with costs and the appeal struck off 
the roll. 

l\lr. G. Hemming, for Appellant, asks that the Court should 
add to the judgment that leave is granted to make application 
at the next session of the Court for condonation of the 
irregularity. 

l\lr. Q. Hemming opposes. 
In view of the fact that no prejudice was sustained by the 

Respondent the application is granted and the following 
words added to the judgment:-

" Leave is granted to Appellant to apply at the next 
session of this Court at Umtata for condonation of the 
irregularity in noting the appeal and, if such application 
is granted, that the appeal should be heard at the same 
session ." 

JOHN, MARMAN vs. MAKENKESI BLAKFESI and 
BLEKFESI NCAMILE. 

KINGWILLIAMSTOWN: 12th December, 1938. Before H. G. 
Scott, Esq., President, and Messrs. M. L. C. Liefeldt 
and H. B. l\[yburgh, Members of the N.A.C. 

Damages-Seduction and pregnancy-Conception as result of 
inwmplete penetration. 

(Appeal from Native Commissioner's Court, Lady Frere: 
Case No. 29 /1938.) 

In the Court below Plaintiff (Appellant) sued Defendants 
(Respondents) for five head of ea ttle or their value £25 as 
damages for the seduction and pregnancy of his daughter 
Nonayi by first Defendant. The second Defendant being sued 
as kraal-head of fio;t Defendant. 

In his summons Plaintiff alleged that about the winter of 
1937, the first Defe ndant seduced and carnally knew his 
daughter Nonayi in consequence whereof she became preg­
nant and was delivered of a male chi ld which has recently 
died. 
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In the pl0a the seduetion was deniPd hut it was admitted 
that SC'cond DefPndant was the kraal-head of first Defendant. 

After hearing evideneP the Assistant Native Commissioner 
entPred a judgnwnt of absolution from the instance and the 
appeal is ngainst that judgment on the ground that it is 
against the weight of evidence. 

Jt appears from the Plaintiff 's Pviden('e that the girl 
Nonay1 gave birth to a child in March. 1938 , and that she 
then accused first Defendant of being the father. Plaintiff 
then sent messengl•rs to secollll Defendant who denied the 
allegation, but first DefPndant admitted he was in love with 
lwr and that he metshaed with her. The mattt>r was then 
taken before the Headman where first Defendant again 
admitted that he slept with the girl hut denied having had 
intPrcourse with her. 

The H eadman gavp no judgment but ordered the parties 
to go to the Native Commissioner. 

That same evening second Defendant came to Plaintiff's 
kraal saymg he was going to his friends at Umhlanga and 
asking for time to pay. SPcond Defendant \\·ent to Umhlanga 
and as he did not pay onP Stompie Mtsh ilelo was sent to him. 
He told Stompie he could not pay as his friend at Umhlanga 
had died but he would see what he eould do when his sons 
returned from work. Thereafter Gasmeni J an tu, who was 
ac-ting Headman then, saw second Defendant and asked why 
he did not pay. He replied that he had no cattle and Gas­
meni then said that he should have spoken nicely to Plaintiff 
and asked for time to pay. 

There is abundant evidence on behalf of Plaintiff that 
Nonayi and first Defendant have been sweethearts for years 
and that they used to metsha when attending boys dances 
and that this continued up to about June, 193i, when Nonayi 
became pregnant. • 

The first Defendant while admitting that he did metsha 
with N onayi denies that he ever had actual connection with 
her or that he caused her pregnancy. He says that he ceas~d 
metshaing with her when he went to school. His sister, 
Nongangam, states that he went to school about seven years 
ago and she, first Defendant and second Defendant state 
that since that time he has never attended boys' dances. Now 
it appears from second Defendant's e\· idenee that first Defen­
dant is only about fifteen years of age and consequently he 
would only have been about eight years old when he went to 
school. At that age he would not be attending dances and 
it is much more probable that the e\·idence for the Plaintiff 
Jn this point is correct. 

Second Defendant
1 

while admitting that he went to Plain­
tiff on se,•eral oeca$10ns. that Gasmeni did come to him and 
that he has friends. at Umhlanga states that he never asked 
for time to pay, that he never went to Umhlanga and that 
Gasmeni did not suggest he should have asked Plaintiff for 
time to pay. His explanation of the visits to Plaintiff was 
merely to qsk for time in order to question his son. 

This explanation is not satisfactory in view of his state­
ment that he had question ed his son and was satisfied with 
his explanation. That being so there was no need for any 
further questioning and the reason given for the visits to 
Plaintiff does not bear the stamp of truth. 

The witness Nongangam says that she saw Nonayi on two 
occasions under one blanket with one ~!papa and that she 
told the Headman about this. If this evidence is true it is 
strange that no mention of it was made by the other wit­
nesses. Nonayi denied having been caught under one blanket 
with l\lpapa. In the opinion of this Court the unsupported 
ev idence of Nongangam is wholly insufficient to show that 
N onayi metshaed with anyone else than first DefeudaJ!t. 
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We find as a fact that first Defendant did "metsha" with 
Nonayi for a considerable time before and up to about June, 
1937, !Jut the question sti ll r<>mai us whether he caused her 
pregnancy. 

In his reasons for judgment the Assistant Native Commis­
sioner states:-

" Although the Plainti ff (evidently a clerical error for 
Defendant) admitted ' metsha ' this is not concrete evidence 
of seduction (see Qabazayo vs. Nciso-Native Appeal Court 
Heports, Transkei, 1910-11). The Court here stated: ' The 
Court in the absence of any exa mination , can only conclu de 
that the girl was not sedu ced but was with the Appellant 
under the custom of ukumetsha for which a claim for damages 
cannot Le admitted.' 

In view of the fact that the custom of ukumetsha is not 
proof of seduction and that the Plaintiff had failed to 
establish that the parties had ml'tshaed the previous winter, 
the Court decided that the Plaintiff had not proved his claim 
and gave a judgment of absolution from the instance." 

Th e case quoted is not in point. In that case apart from 
the sb1tement of the g irl (which was denied by the Defendant) 
that she had heen seduced, there was no evidence in support 
of the seduction and the girl had not been examined by the 
women ir1 accordance with Native Custom. The present case 
is very different. H ere the gi rl has gi ven birth to a child 
and there can be no more " concrete evidence " of seduction 
than that fact. 

As there is conclusive proof of seduction it remains only to 
decide whether first Defendant can be held r esponsible for 
the pregnancy. He admits that he metshaed with Norutyi 
but denies actual connection. Nonayi says he did have con­
uection and her word is supported bv the faet that she 
ac·tually gave birth to a child. Under the custom of uku­
metsha full intercourse does not, as a rule, take place but 
semen is emitted between t he thighs of the girl in close 
proximity to the vagina and it is, therefor e, possible that 
some of the spermatozoa may find their way into the womb 
and so cause pregnane;"~'. 

That conception may take place as the result of incom­
plete penetratio~ is clear from the case of Selbourne Bokwe 
vs. Dorothy Kabane (1933, N.A .C. 43). 

This Court is of opinion that the evidence clea rly proves 
that :first Defendant caused the pregnancy of Nonayi. 

The appeal is accordinglv allowed with costs and the judg­
ment in the Court below altered to read:-

For Plaintiff as prayed with costs against both Defendants. 
jointly and severally the one paying the other to be absolved. 

HOWARD TABOSH E vs. SIGWAGWAGWA and 
J U!JI LIS I RASM EN I. 

KINGWILLIAMSTOWN: 13th December , 1938. Before H. G. 
Scott, FJSq., a,nd :\Iessrs. M. L. C. Liefeldt a nd H. B. 
Myburgh, Members of t he N.A.C. 

Damages-Seduction, and pregnancy-Con-ception as result of 
'tn.compl e t~ pen-etratio11r-OoTroboration of woman,' s evi­
den-ce- Pat erni ty-Suffi cicn,cy of proof of-Magistrate'.~ 
Uourt has n,o jurisdiction, to hear case bet U'ern N ati1Jes. 
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{Appeal from N ativc Commissioner's Court, Lady 
Frere : Case No. 32/1938.) 

This was an action for five head of cattle or their value 
£25 as damages for the sed uction about :\lay or June, 1937, 
of Plaintiff's ward, l\1.fumfu, by first Defendant as a result 
of which she became pregnant and was delivered of a female 
child about L•'ebruary, 1938. Second Defendant w.as sued as 
ltraallwad of first Defendant . 

The Assistant Native Commissioner entered judgment for 
Defendants with costs and Plaintiff has appealed on the 
ground that the judgment is against the weight of evidence. 

The Plaintiff is the cousin and guardian of the girl 1\Ifumfu. 
H e says that he returned from Johannesburg in the winter 
of 1937 and found the gir l pregnant and went to second 
J>efcndant. The first Defendant was then absent but second 
Defendant undertook to communicate with him. After a 
tune as he got no satisfaction he took the matter to the 
Headman's Court where both Defendants appeared. The first 
Defendant admitted having metshaed with l\Ifumfu but denied 
hanng caused her pregnancy. He was .asked whether he 
:suspected any other man but said he saw no other man with 
her. The Headman gm·e judgment against both Defendants 
for five head of cattle. Subseqm·ntly, the Plaintiff states 
the Headman re-opened the case and reversed his previous 
judgment. lt is suggested that certain evidence had come 
to light which satisfied the Headman that first Defendant was 
not the guilty party but the Headman was not ca lled and 
the first Defendant makes no mention of the case having been 
before the Headman at any time. The Headman's.action is 
thus left untirely unl'xplai'ned. 

l\Ifumfu's e,·idence is to the effect that she and first 
Defe ndant ha,·e been lovers for a matter of four years. He 
used tn come and fetch her at night from Plaintiff's kraal, 
where she was stayiug, that they used to have intercourse 
from time to time and that she used to return from these 
outgoings at dawJ). She became pregnant about May or 
.June, 1937, and gave birth to a female child about February, 
1938. She reported her pregnancy to first Defendant. She 
denies that she has had relations with any man other than 
first Defendant . -1\Ifumfu's statement as to first Defendant 
coming to fetch her at night is corroborated by Nogenise, 
Plaintiff's wife. 

First Defendant .admits that he metshaed with 1\Ifumfu, 
but denies ever havmg had connection with her or ever 
hm·ing visited Plaintiff's kraal. He says he discharged semen 
on her thighs but did not penetrate her and that he stopped 
metshaing with her year before last, i.e. in 1936. Later on, 
howe,·er, he says that they were still " metshas " at the t_ime 
his evidence was giv!:)n. 

The only other witness for the defence is a girl N okakade, 
who says that she does not know who i~ :\Ifumfu's metsha. 
She sa~·s that :\Ifumfu metshaed with Zakeyi and also told 
her that she was in foye with Dodo and Keke. Further that 
first Defendant last metshaed with l\Ifumfu on the Christmas 
before last Christmas, i.P. 1936. 

In his reasons for judgment the Assistant Native Commis­
sioner states:-

" The Defendant admits ' 111etsha ', a common practice 
amongst Natives. He denies that he met the girl the pre­
vious winter and is corroborated by an independent witness. 

In the face of these facts it would appear to me that the 
requisite amount of corroboration required to establish that 
the boy is the father of the child has not !wen produced. 



• 
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l consider that tte indcpPncknt testimony of the aunt is 
not sufficient corroboration and that the Court has a reason­
able douht regarding paternity." 

In regard to the first paragraph of this excerpt from the 
Assistant Native Commissioner's reasons for judgment this 
Court is of opinion that Nokakade's evidence is of little 
weight because it is vague and improbable. She makes the 
bare statement that )lfumfu "metshaed" with Zakeyi, but 
gives no details whatevc1·. Her statement that first Defen­
dant " last metshaed with l\Ifumfu on the Christmas before 
last Christmas " is not worthy of belief for she could not 
possibly know what he did uniess she was continuously with 
him from that time up to the present. Her statement was 
clearly made recklessly and without regard as to 'vhether 
or not it was true and leaves the impression that she was 
told what to say on this point. 

As this witness is unreliable there is left only first Defen­
dant's bare denial that he actually penetrated Mfumfu as 
against her statement that he had intercourse with her from 
time to time as a result of which she became pregnant. The 
onus of provin g that she had had relations with other men, 
who might have caused her pregnancy, rests upon the first 
Defendant and this onus he has signally failed to discharge. 

lt is true that where a Defendant denies the seduction his 
word is to be preferred to that of the woman unless the latter 
is corroborated. The rule of law is that by corroboration is 
meant Some C''idence in addition to the Woman's which, in 
some degree , is consistent with her story and inconsistent 
with the innocence of the Defendant (l\lacka~· vs. Ballot, 
1921, T.P.D. 430); evidence which justified the Court in 
believing the former rather thau the latter would be sufficient 
(Sholtemeyer ·vs. Potgieter, 1916, T.P.D. 188, referred to in 
Dubois vs. Fraser, A.D., 12th October, 1925-P.R. J. 7). 

What is the position in the present case? l\Ifumfu's state­
ment as to her being taken out at night is corroborated by 
~ ogenise. That she reported her pregnancy to first Defen­
dant is not denied. That she was seduced by someone is con­
clusively proved by the fact of her pregnancy. 

First Defendant admits that he metshaed with her and 
expended semen het,veen her thighs. There is no reliable 
evidence that she had intimate relations with any other man. 
In these circumstances the almost irresistible conclusion is 
that first Defendal!t was responsible for the pregnancy. It 
is possible that he did not fully penetrate the girl but it 
is possible to cause pregnancy without doing so [Selbourne 
Bokwe vs. Dorothy Kabane, 1933, X.A.C. (C. & 0.) 43]. 

This Court is o£ opinion that first Defendant's denial of 
having e,·er visited Plaintiff 's kraal where l\Ifumfu was living 
is false and this eau also he regarded as corroboration of her 
statement (see van der :Merwe v·s. Nel, 1929, T.P.D. 551; 
Jacobs vs . .Henning, 1927, T.P.D. 324 and Nolte vs. Rowe, 
1926, T.P.D. 615). 

As first Defendant has admitted metshaing with Mfumfu 
and as it is possible for preguancy to be caused in that way 
it is for him to shmv that he could not have been the father 
of the child or to satisfy the Court that the woman is not 
worthy of belief (see van der ·westhuizen vs. Maritz, 1927 
C.P.D. at p. 109). He has failed to do either. 

This Court is prepared to go further and to say that it is 
sat isfied that l\Ifumfu is worthy of belief and that it 
accepts her statement that actual intercourse took place. 

In these circumstances this Court is of opinion that the 
Assistant Native Commissioner erred in coming to the con­
clusion that there was insufficient proof of paternity and in 
entering judgment for the Defendants. 
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It is admitted in the plC'adings that second Defendant is 
head of the kraal of which first Defendant is an inmate and 
he, therefore, in accordance with Native Law and Custom is 
liable for the torts of the latter. 

The appeal is accordingly allowed with costs and the judg­
ment in the Court below altered to one in favour of Plaintiff 
as prayed with costs against both Defendants, jointly and 
severally, the one paying the other to be absolved. 

It is observed that throughout the record, except in the 
certificate of authentication, the judicial officer has subscribed 
himself as 1\.R.l\I. (an abbrc\'iation for Assistant Resident 
Magistrate) or Assistant Magistrate. This Com~t wishes to 
point out, as it has done in many previous cases, that this 
being a case between Natives it is cognisable only in the 
Native Commissioner's Court and that the Assistant Magis­
trate, as such, had no jurisdiction to hear it. 

RICHARD SIMANGA STAMPER vs. JOHN STAMPER. 

KINGWILLIAMSTOWN: 13th December, 1933. Hefore H. G. 
Scott, E sq., and l\Iessrs. l\I. L. C. Liefeldt and H. B. 
1\lyburgh, Members of the N.A.C. 

Claim for possession and delive1·y of property betu:een pnsons 
livinu in relationship of father and son-Contributions 
by you,th totrords cost of e1·e;etion of hut on Guardian's 
property whether refundable-Offer before issue of sum­
mons to uturn certain property but not delivered­
Costs-Gifts by bride's relations to bridegroom's rela­
tives not claimable by bridegroom-Oxen belonging to 
Plaintiff hired out b·y D efendant and proceeds used for 
ln·ual purposes-Whether claimable by Plaintiff-Claim 
f01· balance of proceeds of PW.intiff's cow sold by Defen­
da11t by p·ublie auctio1v--lVhere Plaintiff aveepted amount 
paid over at time of sale withont demwr he is estopped 
from disputing it three years later-Claim for statement 
of aeeotwt in respect of money remitted for purchase of 
immovable property- Onus on Plaintiff to prove amount 
act·wally remitted-llemoval by Plaintiff of materials from 
hut on Defendant's property towards cost of erecting 
which he had contributed-Whether Plaintiff a bona fide 
possessor-Damages. 

(Appeal from ~ative Commissioner's Court, 
Peddie: Case No. 12/1936.) 

In the Court below the Plaintiff (Appellant) claimed from 
Defendant (Respondent):-

l. Possession of a certain wattle and daub building situate 
in the Durban Mission Location, Peddie, or its value 
£8. 10s. alleging that the hut is his own property but is 
in possession of Defendant who refuses to hand it over. 

2. Delivery of a certain wagon sail or its value £5. 
3. Payment of the sum of £10, which was paid by one 

:;\ffanelo Jakavula on behalf of Nzenza Jakavula about 
June, 1932, for and on behalf of Plaintiff which 
Plaintiff requested Defendant to hold for him in sa.fo 
custody but which he now refuses to pay to Plaintiff. 
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(4) Payment of the sum of £2. 12s. being an amount 
received by Defendant for the hire of three oxen 
belonging to Plaintiff about January or February, 
1935, which he now refuses to hand oyer. 

5. Delivery of certain rcims, or their value 10s. Gd. 

G. Payment of the sum of 10s. balance of proceeds of a 
cow belonging to Plaintiff which was sold h;v Defendant 
which Defendant rc:>fu ses to pay to Plaintiff. 

7. A statement of account and debate thereof and payment 
of such sum not exceeding £200 as shall be founu 
to be due to Plaintiff alleging that during the years 
1927 and 1928 he remitted sums of money from Cape 
Town to Defendant from time to time for the purpose 
of the purchase by Defe>ndant on behalf of Plaintiff 
of J,ot No. 72, Hamburg, district of Peddie; that Defen­
dant purchased the said Lot for the sum of £65 hut 
neglrcts or refusPs to furnish a full and true state­
ment , with all items properly specified and supported 
by proper Youchers although this has been demanded 
from him. 

Paragraphs 1, 3, 5, and G arc denied by Defendant in 
his p lea. 

In r egard to paragraph 2 he admits being in possession 
of a sail but alleges that this was a gift to him by Plaintiff 
which he offered to r<>turn to Plaintiff before issue of sum­
mons and actually did so after receipt of summons anJ ho 
denies liability for any costs in connection therewith. 

In regard to paragraph 4 Defendant admits that about 
January , 1935, he hired four oxen to one J. Gewugula for 
teu days at 1s. per diem and that three of these oxen 
belonged to Plaintiff, but denies any liahility to hand over 
the proceeds to Plaintiff alleging that in his capacity as 
kraalhead and guardian of Plaintiff in accordance with Nati,·e 
Law and Custom, he was entitled to the use of any stock 
at the kraal and to appropriate the proceeds derived there­
from for mutual kraal purposes. 

4. In regard to paragraph 7 defendant alleges that on 7th 
October, 1936 (i.e. before the issue of summons), he dul.v 
fu rnished Plain tiff with a statement of expenditure and 
receipts in connection with the purchase and subsequent 
dealings of Lot No. 72, Hamburg, and denies liability to 
furnish any fu rt her account. 

In re-convention Defendant claimed £7. 10s. as damages to 
t he wattle and daub hut referred to in paragraph 1 of 
the summons, which he claims as his property, alleging that 
Plaintiff had remo\·ed three sliPets of iron from the roof of 
the hut about July, 1936 (the plea gives the year as 19:31 
but this quite evidently a cler ical error) and as a consequence 
the rains caused ext ensive damagP; also that in August. 
1936, Plaintiff locked the door of the hnt and deprived 
Defendant of possession thereof. 

In the e ,·ent of Plaintiff's claim in paragaraph 4 of the 
summons bei ng allowed Defendant made a further counter­
claim for £19. 19s. but it is not necessary to set out the 
details in view of t he conclusion at which this Court ha s 
arrived on the claim in convention. 

On the claim in convention the Native Commissioner 
granted absolution from the instance with costs and on the 
claim in reconvention for Plaintiff in reconvention for £1. 18s. 
with costs. 

The appeal is against the whole judgment on the ground 
that it is against the weight of evidence. 

Very voluminous evidence was taken in this case but the 
facts are comparatively simple. 
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Plaintiff is the illegitimate son of one 1\Iaude Mfongosi, 
sister of 1\Iolosi 1\Ifongosi and his father is an illegitimate son 
of Annie Stamper, an aunt of Defen dant. For a niJmber of 
years Plaintiff resided with his mother ' s people. 'Vhen it 
was time for him to vndergo circumcision rites he was taken 
to Defendant who made all necessa ry anangements for the 
ceremony. 'I'his was about 1922 or 1923. After completion 
of the initiation cerumonies Plaint iff lived with Defendant 
for a matter of 13 or 14 years and there is not the slightest 
doubt that during that time the relationship of father and 
son existed between them. 

About 1924 Plaintiff went to J ohannesburg to work and 
subseque ntly to Cape Town. From time to time he remitted 
money to Defendant and with some of this Defendant bought 
cattle for Plaintiff and also Lot No. 72 at Hamburg and some 
of the money was used for kraal purposes. 

About 1929, P laintiff became engaged to be married and a 
hut was put up for him on Defendant's allotment towards 
the cost of which Plaintiff contribu ted. Plaintiff alleges that 
this hut was put up on his allotment but this Court is satis­
fied that that was not the case. 

"'bile in Cape Town on one occasion Plaintiff purchased 
a wagon sai l and sent it to Defendant . This is the sail refer­
r ed to in paragraph 2 of the summon s. 

In 1933 Defendant sold a cow belonging to Plaintiff on 
the P eddie Stock Fair for £3. 15s. H e paid over to Plain­
tiff the net amount of the purchase price pmducing at the 
time the sales note_. 

About 1931 Plaintiff got married and the bride's people 
presented the sum of £10 to be divi ded amongst the relations 
of the bridegroom. After his marriage Plaintiff continued to 
live on Defendant's allotment in the hut which had been put 
up for him. 

In 1935 Defendant told Plaintiff to remove to another 
a llotment and undertook to put up a hut for him and 
arranged with one Vivane Nhlonhlo to do the building. 
During the Defendant's absenc-e Plaintiff prevailed on ' 'ivane 
to build a larger hut than Defendant had arranged fo r. On 
Dc>fendant's return lw refused to pa y the c-ontractor and a 
quarrel arose between Plaintiff and Defendant. The hut 
being unfinished Plaintiff took t hree sheets of iron off the 
roof of the hut on Defendant' s allotment which he had pre­
viously occupied and he also locked the hut and kep t the key. 

This is a general outline of the facts of the case as arri,·ed 
at by this Court after a careful consideration of the evidence. 

For the sake of clarity, however , it is desirable to deal 
with the Plaintiff 's claims seriatim :-

C'lnim No. 1.- As already sta t ed thi s Court is satisfied that 
the hut was built on the ·Defendant's allotment. It is clear 
that the Plaintiff did contribute a certai n amount towards 
the cost of erection and it was argued by 1\Ir. Cook fo r the• 
Appellant that judgme nt should at least have been gi ,•en in 
hi s favour for that amount on the principle that no man may 
enrich himself at the expense of another. 

That principle of law is well recognised but, in the opinion 
of this Court , is not applicable to the present case. The 
relationship in which the parties lived must not he lost sight 
of. It is quite c-lear that Plainti ff made t hese contributions in 
accordance with the usual Native Custom and th ere was no 
suggest ion that Defendant should refund anything to Plain­
tiff. Apart from this Plaintiff claims the whole hut as his 
property which he was not entitled to do. 

l n the opinion of this Court he has failed to )HO\"C' this 
claim. 
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Claim No. 2.- Dcfendant admits that he received from 
Plaintiff a wagon sai l but states he was under the impression 
that it was a gift. On the 14th SeptPmber, 1936, Plaintiff's 
attorney wrote to Defendant demanding, among other items, 
the delivery of this sai l. In reply Defendant' s attorneys 
pointed out that the sail was really a gift but that if Plain­
tiff desired to canc<-1 the gift he might do so, and it would 
be handed over. 

Again on 1st October, 1936, Ddendant's attorneys wrote:­
" He 1cagon sail: You have not mentioned whether your 

client still desires to ca ncel this gift to our client. Please 
let us know so that it can be deli ,·ered you if necessary." 

No reply was sc>nt to these letters and summons was issued 
on the 28th October, 1936, claiming, inter .alia, the deliyery 
of the sail. The sai l was then delivered to Plaintiff's attor­
ney. 

It has be<>n a1·gued before this Court that as no legal tender 
was made before the issue of summons Plaintiff should have 
been awarded costs on this claim. 

'Vith this contention this Court cannot agree. Had Plain­
tiff clearl:v intimated, in response of the letters above referred 
to, that he had not made a gift of the sail and demanded 
its deli,·ery there can b<• no doubt that it would have Leen 
handed over. 

In these circumstances we do not consider he was entitled 
to co~ts, particularly as it would be almost impossible to allo­
cate costs in respc>ct of this claim. 

Claun No. 3.- ,Vhoever may have a claim to this money it 
certainly is not the Plaintiff . The gift was made, not to 
him , but to c>ertain of his relations. He bases his claim 
to the possession of the money on the fact that he contends 
that he, and not Defendant is the> right person to distribute 
the money. If tlwre is any substance in that contention it is 
remarkaLle that he did not assert his supposed right at the 
time instead of waiting a mattPr of six years before doing so. 

There is no suhstanc>e in this claim and Appellant's attor­
ney frankly admitted that he was una blc> to support it. 

Clai m. Ko. ,L-It is clear from the evidence of Jafani Gwen­
gula, Plaintiff's own witness, that the amount paid for the 
hire of the oxen was only £2, so that at the utmost Plain­
tiff's share would be oniy £1. 10s. Defendant states that 
the amount received was expended to buy food for the whole 
family in which Plaintiff and his family shared. The Nath·e 
Commissioner states that this explanation is reasonable and 
we agree. It is quite clear that at the time Plaintiff laid 
no claim to this money and apparently acquiesced in it being 
used by Defendant. That being so he cannot now claim a 
refund. In any case he has not pro,·ed how much. if any, 
was used Ly Defendant for his own purposes. 

Claim No. 5.-In regard to this the Native Commissioner 
states in his additional reasons for judgment:-

" Since giving my written judgment on 8th August last 
appeal has been noted in this case and I have perused the 
e\·idence and my judwent. On page 16 of the judgment I 
stated that the reims (item 5 of claim) were ac>tuall~· made 
from the hide of :_1. beast given hy Defendant for slaughter 
at the wedding feast. This is not the position. The Least 
from whieh the reims were made belonged to tlw Plaintiff . 
Defendant admits this. 'Villiam Mlakalaka, one of Plain­
tiff's witnesses stat<>s that the skin from this beast was given 
to him by Defendant, tha't Defendant wished to buy the 
skin from him but that he (:\llakalaka) fron~ a dc>sire to 
make a contribution, aetually gave the skin to DdPndant . 
These facts are admitted by Defendant in his evidence>. 
Defendant states that Mlalmlaka as a messenger was entitlPd 
to the skin. He did not consult Plaintiff lwfor<> handing 
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tlw skin to Mlakalaka but told him when he and Plaintiff 
w<:'re making re ims out of the skin t hat l\Ilakalaka had handed 
back the skin. Plain tiff says he was unaware that the skin 
of t he beast was given to t he dowry messenger aud says that 
if it was he objects. He admits, however , that if the mes­
senger pays all the swazis then he is enti t led to the skin . 
It is a fact that the skin was given to the messenger. H e 
bears out Defendant's story in this connect ion and is one of 
Plaintiff's witnesses. lf this be the case it is strange t hat 
Plaintiff should, as he states, have been unaware of the gift 
having been made . The probabilities are 1 t hiuk that Plai n­
tiff knew that t he skin had been give n to t he messenger as 
a gift iu respect of his services which were in fact carried 
out for the b<:'nefit of Plaintiff himself. He a ppears to have 
raised no objection at t he time." 

'l'his is exactly t he impression left on the mind of this 
Court by the evidence. ln t hese circumstances Plaintiff has 
no claim to the r eims or their valu e. 

Claim. So. 6.-The cow was sold for £3. 15s. Plaintiff says 
he rece iv<:'d only £2. 10s. from Defendant and he estimates 
the balance due to him at 10s. Defendant states that t he 
amount he paid over was something over £3 a nd that he 
produced the sales note to Defendant at the time. If this 
sta tement is correct, and t he evidence su pports it, then 
Plaintiff has no claim . 

It is argue<! before t his Court that as Defendant pleaded 
payment it was his duty to have produced the sales note 
showing exactly wha t amount was realized , the expenses 
incurred and the balance due to Plaintiff. This seems some­
what unreasonable seeing t hat at t he time of the transaction 
the sa les note was produced a ud Plaintiff vv·as apparently 
satisfied . If there was a balance due l!e should have raised 
the matter at the time nnd cannot now be heard to say 
that he did not recei ,·e t he full amount aft er the lapse of 
three years. The fact that no protest was raised in this 
matter as well as the other claims uutil after the dispute 
g iving rise to these pro(·eedings , indicates that Plaintiff is 
raking up these old matters irrespective of whether there 
ir, any sound foundation for h is claims in the hope that 
Defendant will h a,·e to pay some of t hem at least. 

Clai'm, No. 7.-Plaintiff alleges that during 1927 to 1929 
he sent Defendant £100 in all for the purchase of Lot 72 , 
Hamburg, which he was told was the purchase price and 
it was when he r ece ived t he title deed that he found the 
purchase price was only £65. H ere he is not telling the 
truth for he admits the declaration of purchaser was sent 
to him in Cape Town for signature aud consequently 
he must have bee n a \\'are at t he t ime of the a mount. 

Defendant , at Plaintiff 's request , furnished him with a 
statement showing that he had received in a ll only £65 
a nd had actually expended £98. 5s. 10d. He admits having 
received a further £10 in a ddition to the £65. 

He seems to h ave been quite car eful an d hon est in this 
matter for he paid to his attorneys the various amounts 
received by him, except the last £10, and got them to keep 
a n account of his transactions in connection with the land. 

The Plaintiff asserts that he sen t first £25, t hen £30, then 
£20, t hen £15 and lastly £ 10 , but he gives no idea as to 
the dates when or in what manner t he various amou nts 
were sent. 

If he sent bank notes these would be r egistered and he 
should have been able to produce the registered slips from 
the post office. 

If he sent postal notes he should have the counterfo ils. 
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He ha;; given no evidence as to what his earnings were 
from ·which it might have been possible to dcuuce whether or 
not lw could have saved the very large amount he claims to 
have done. 

It must be remembered that in addition to the £100 he 
bought a sail and sPnt other money to buy cattle, also, if 
his statement is to be believeu, that he spent quite a large 
sum on his wedding. 

His story certainly sounds improbable. It is for Plaintiff 
to prove what amount he sent and his statement, which is 
unsupported in any way, is denied by Defendant who pro­
duces some proof to substantiate his story. 

In regard to the counterclaim the Defendant admits that 
he took three .sheets of iron from the hut which this Court 
has found did not belong to him. The hut was left unpro­
tected and Defen~lant (Plaintiff in reconvention) says it 
was damaged by ram. 

It was contended by Appellant's attorney that Plaintiff 
was a bona fide possessor and that he was therefore entitled to 
remoYe the materials belonging to him. 

A bona fi·d e possessor is one who at the time of his coming 
into possession of land is under the bona fide impression that 
the land belongs to him or that he is entitled to the posses­
sion of the same. Such a person r etains his ownership in 
materials affixed by him to the land of another until he has 
given up possession of the land and may remove the materials 
again, if he can uo so without any serious damage to the 
land (see Maasdorp Vol. 2., Fourth Edition, page 48). 

The Plaintiff in this case cannot be r egarded as a bona 
fide possessor in the sense set out above. He was never 
in possession of the land on which the hut was built nor 
did he build the hut. It was erected by the owner of the 
land, for the sole purpose of providing a place for the 
latter to live in. Plaintiff was merely the occupier of a 
house on another person 's property towards the cost of 
erecting which he contributed. Now whatever claim he might 
have to a refund of the amount he had contributed he 
certainly had no right to take the law into his own hands 
and remove what he claimeu to be his material thereby 
causing damage to Defendant. 

This Court is not prepared to disturb the award made 
by the Native Commissioner. 

The Native Commissioner has gone very carefully into 
the whole case and this Court is in agreement with his 
finding t h at the Plaintiff has failed to prove his various 
claims. 

The appeal is dismissed with costs. 

ABRAHAM NTE K ISO vs. WA LA ZA and NGWETAFA 
VANQA . 

KINGWI LLIAMSTOWN : 13th December, 1938. Before H. G. 
Scott, Esq., President, and Messrs. M. L. C. Liefeldt 
and H . B. Myburgh, Members of the N.A.C. 

D(Hn.ages~Seductio·n and pregn.ancy- Doc·umentary evidence­
Case submitted for decision solely on handwTiting con­
tained in documents- Onus on Plaintiff to pTove Defen­
dant's signature where latter denies it. 
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(Appeal from Native Commissioner's Court, Lady Frere: 
Case No. 49/38.) 

This was an action for fke head of cattle or their value 
£25 damages for the seduction and pregnancy of Plaintiff 's 
daughter, Median , by the first Defendant . Second Defendant 
was sued as Kraalhead of first Defendant. 

In the plea first Defenda nt denied the seduction and 
second Defendant admitted that he was the kraalhead . 

The Plaintiff gave eviden ce in the course of which he 
stated that in November, 1937, his wife made a certain 
report to him as a resul t of which he went to the D efenda nt's 
kraal. First Defendant was away and second Defendant 
asked him t o wait until the first Defendant returned . H e 
agreed to do so and went there again in September, 1938, 
where he found the two Defendants and three other men . 

At t his meeting first Defendant denied having caused the 
pregnancy of Plaintiff's daughter. Two lett ers were pro­
duced one of which he admitted having written , the other 
he denied being the author of. As he denied being the 
cause of the pregnancy no decision was come to and the 
present case was brought a nd t he letters in question were 
put in marked " A " and "B" respectively. On Exhibit 
" A " is a postscript which will be referred to later. 

At the close of Plaintiff's Examination in Chief, Mr. 
Hoole, Defendant 's agent, admitted that his client wrote 
Exhibit " A " with the exception of the postscript and 
d emed that he wrote E x hibit " B ". He then proceeded to 
cross-examine Plaintiff very briefly and then t he following 
note a ppears on the record :-

" At this stage Mr. Hoole admits a ll material facts and 
states that he desires t hat his client (Defendant) be placed 
in the witness box to admit or deny his signature in letter 
B. " 

" 1\Ir. Kelly agrees. Also to admit or deny the postscript 
on letter 'A '." 

First Defendan t was then put in t he witness-box and under 
oath denied having written t he pof'tscript on exhibt A. In 
regard to letter B he said : " I see letter ' B ' before the 
Court. The signature on letter ' B ' , to say nothing of the 
fa ce of the letter , is not mine." 

H e was cross-examined a nd asked to point out differences 
in the handwriting in t he two letters which he did. 

At the conclusion of his evidence the following note was 
made on the r ecord: -

" 1\fr. Kelly and Mr. Hoole agree at this stage that this 
case depends on the handwriting in letter s ' A ' and 
' B ' and agree further that the Court decides whether the 
handwriting in these letters is t he same. Both 1\fr. K elly 
and Mr. Hoole further agr ee that this case be decided on the 
evidence in regard to the hand-writing alone and that any 
appeal will likewise be only on this point." 

"At the r equest of the Court "\Valaza Vanqa wrote 
Exhibits E and F ." 

The Assi8tant Native Commissioner, afte r considering the 
letters and other exhibits came t o the conclusion tha t neither 
the postscript on E xhibit A nor Exhibit B were written by 
first Defendant and entered judgment accordingly for D efen­
dants. The a ppeal is against t his judgment on the grounds 
that-

(1) 

(2) 

the Assistant Native Commissioner committed an error 
of judgment and was wrong in fact in holding that the 
letter " B " had not been wri t t en hY Defendant 
"Walaza" and that t he signature " "\Vallacy Vanqa" 
was not the signature of the said Defendant W alaza; 

the judgment was aga inst the weight of eviden ce. 

I 
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The reason why the postscript to letter A and the letter 
n arc so important is because they contain an admission by 
first Defendant, if tlwy were written by him , of his respon­
sibility for the pregnancy of Plaintliff's daughter. The 
fo llowing is a translation :-

Postscript to letter " A " :-
" Here is another thing, if you have anything with you 

don't hide me my friend, tell me when you are being 
questioned, don't hide me, I am the person who did that 
thing." 

Letter " B ". 
" Dear, in short words, while your heart is sore I don't 

know if you say you have been to my home and you say 
you \\'Pre not given a word, f have however received letters 
from home. I don't know because J have admitted my 
g uilt that I made you pregnant. Then I havt• hf'ard that my 
elder brother is not at home, lw is away at work. I do not 
know whc>rf' he is. I have heard that he was not there 
wlwn your people took you to my kraal. Please r,rust in 
God and so will I. 1 haven ' t much to say. l stop there." 

lf these kLters were written bv first Defendant t lwt e can 
be no question as to his liability ;nd it is therefore necessary 
that they should be examiuf'd carefully. 

It must Le borne in mind that Exhibits A (with thu exce1)­
tion of the postscript) D, E and F are admittedly in first 
Defend.mt's handwritmg. 

On a careful examination of the various exhibits we find 
the following :-

In Exhibits A, D, E and F the cross-stroke of the " t" 
in almost ev0ry instance passes right through the vertical 
stroke, thus "t ", whereas in the postscript the Exhibit A 
it dof's not but the symbol i<> written thus " t ", while in 
exhibit B there are examples of both methods of writing 
the symbol. 

A very striking differen0e is found in the formation of 
the letter " z " in tlw various exhibits. 

In A , D, E, F the formation is uniformly alike. The 
stroke of the loop not being carried through the down stroke 
or joined to the next succeeding letter. In the postscript 
to Exhibit A and in Exhibit B this letter is formed entirely 
differently, the stroke of the loop im•ariably being parried 
right through and joined to tht> succeeding letter. 

The most marked difference is in the formation of the 
letter " K ". In the Exhibits A, D, E and F it is written 
thus " l;; ", whereas in the disputed letters it is thus " K '' . 

Again the capital " K " in the word Kleinburg in Exhibit 
" B " is entirely different from that in all the other Exhibits. 
It is observed also that t he spdling is not the same. In 
Exhibit " B " it is "Kleinburg" and in all the other 
Exhibits " Kleinberg ". 

These are only a few instances of the difference which 
exist between the two sets of exhibits. There are other 
differences which, with the do0uments before one, it is 
possible to observe but difficult to pnt on paper. But after 
all what chiefly weighs with this Court is the clifferf'IH'e 
between ihc gcileral appearan0e and character of the writing 
in the postscript to Exhibit A and that in Exhibit B to that 
in the other exhibi ts. It is significant too that the distinct 
peculiarities in certain letters in the postscript to Exhibit 
A are reproduced in Exhibit B but arP entirely abs0nt in all 
the other f'xhibits, a matter which gi1·es rise to tllC' grave 
suspicion as to the genuineness of thu postscript and of 
Exhibit B. 
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lt is contended tha t t lw sig nature " \Vallacy Vanqa " on 
Exhibit " B" is clearly t hat of firs t Defendant. At fi rst 
sight there is a distinct resemblance with his admitted signa­
tures but he has, in his evidence, pointed ou t cer t ain 
differ ences which aro clearly noticeable , e.g. that th e " V " 
in Exhibit A is more slant ing than in " B ", that the 
" Y's " arc diffe rent in t ha t one has a short curve and the 
other is longer and more slanti ng; t hat th1 · " q's" a re ve ry 
different in that in Exhibt A t hP loop closes up thus " q " 
and in Exhibit R it is ope n t hus" q ". fn addition to these 
differences pointed out by first Defenda nt it is to be observed 
t hat in E xhibits A, D, E a nd F t he " V " in " \Vallacy " has 
a small loop in the last up st roke but this is absent in 
Exhibit B. It is al so significa n t t hat when .Mr. K elly 
exposed only the signatures of the three letters " A ", " B " 
a nd " D " and asked the first DcfPnda n t to state which 
signature he had written he was able , apparently without 
hesita tion to point out the signature on the letter " B " 
as not being hi s own . 

The Defendant has denied t hat the ~ignature on Exhibit B 
is his and the onus was upon t he Pla intiff to prove tha t it 
,,·a s. H e has made no a t tempt to do so, a nd Defendant's 
denial stands uncontradict ed . 

It is observed that while t he Ass ist ant Native Commis­
sioner' s finding in rega rd t o lett er B is attacked on appeal 
his findin g in regard to the postscrip t to letter A is not 
questioned . There can be little do ubt that these were written 
by the same person . J f t he finding in regard to the post­
sc ript is corrPct it follows that t h at in rega rd t o le tte r " B " 
is also correct. 

While it is possible tha t the Pl ain t iff is in a position to 
produce further evidence in support of his claim , the parti es 
through their attorneys have agq 'ed tha t the case should 
be decided only on the handwriting a nd it would t herefore 
appear that they do not desire t o avail themselves of any 
additional evidence they may be able to produce. 

This Court has accordingly not considered the question of 
an absolution judgment , a nd with the documentary evidence 
before it , . it is sat isfi ed t ha t t he findings of the Assistant 
Nati,·e Commissioner are correct . 

The appeal is dismissed wit h costs. 








